EDGAROnline

BARNES GROUP INC

FORM 10-Q

(Quarterly Report)

Filed 11/01/13 for the Period Ending 09/30/13

Address

Telephone
CIK
Symbol
SIC Code
Industry
Sector
Fiscal Year

123 MAIN ST

BRISTOL, CT 06010

8605837070

0000009984

B

3490 - Miscellaneous Fabricated Metal Products
Misc. Fabricated Products

Basic Materials

12/31

Powere 4 &y EDGAROnline

http://www.edgar-online.com
© Copyright 2014, EDGAR Online, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

Distribution and use of this document restricted under EDGAR Online, Inc. Terms of Use.


http://www.edgar-online.com

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
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(860) 583-7070
Registrant's telephone number, including area code

Indicate by check mark whether the registranth@s filed all reports required to be filed by Sextl3 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act &4L8uring the preceding 12 months (or for such
shorter period that the registrant was requirdiilésuch reports); and (2) has been subject th §iling requirements for the past 90 days. Y8 No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant nsmtted electronically and posted on its corpoveg® site, if any, every Interactive Data File need to be submitted and posted pursuant to
405 of Regulation S-T (8232.405 of this chaptemjrduthe preceding 12 months (or for such shorégiogl that the registrant was required to submitgost such files).  YedXl No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting comp&se the definitions of “large accelerated filer,
“accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting compaiy'Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated fileix] Accelerated filer O
Non-accelerated filerCd Smaller reporting compariy

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act)v¥es O No
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

BARNES GROUP INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

(Unaudited)
Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Net sales $ 269,49: $ 232,47t 800,43( $ 670,58(
Cost of sales 189,48 170,34¢ 544,61! 483,13¢
Selling and administrative expenses 51,97: 39,64: 166,67¢ 114,57¢
241,46( 209,99( 711,29: 597,71t
Operating income 28,03: 22,48¢ 89,13¢ 72,86«
Interest expense 2,401 3,24% 10,00( 8,04¢
Other expense (income), net 241 872 1,70z 1,78i
Income from continuing operations before incomes$ax 25,38¢ 18,37( 77,43¢ 63,03:
Income taxes 4,00¢ 2,34: 31,42¢ 9,92¢
Income from continuing operations 21,38: 16,02¢ 46,00¢ 53,10¢
(Loss) income from discontinued operations, néhobme taxes (Note 2) (47€) 2,45¢ 197,69¢ 12,41«
Net income $ 20,908 % 18,48: 243,70:  $ 65,51¢
Per common share:
Basic:
Income from continuing operations $ 04C % 0.3C 08¢ $ 0.97
(Loss) income from discontinued operations,aiétcome taxes (0.02) 0.04 3.67 0.2
Net income $ 03¢ % 0.34 45 % 1.2C
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations $ 03¢ % 0.3C 08 % 0.97
(Loss) income from discontinued operations,aiétcome taxes (0.02) 0.04 3.6 0.22
Net income $ 03¢ $ 0.34 444 % 1.1¢
Dividends $ 011 $ 0.1C 031 $ 0.3C
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic 53,009,72 54,508,38 53,818,95 54,618,63
Diluted 54,304,99 55,098,26 54,854,45 55,234,47

See accompanying notes.




BARNES GROUP INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Dollars in thousands)
(Unaudited)

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 3I

2013 2012 2013 2012

Net income $ 20,90: $ 18,48: $ 243,70:  $ 65,51¢
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax

Unrealized (loss) income on hedging actisitieet of tax (1) (144 95 20z (302)

Foreign currency translation adjustments ofi¢éx (2) 21,87¢ 24,567 10,34+ 14,11:

Defined benefit pension and other postretaenbenefits, net of tax (3) 1,874 394 19,81« 4,30t

Total other comprehensive income, net of tax 23,60¢ 25,05¢ 30,36( 18,11¢

$ 4451.  $ 43537 % 274,06:0  $ 83,63«

Total comprehensive income

(1) Net of tax of $(106) and $(106) for the threentis ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 , resplgctnd $331 and $(425) for the nine months er®fgatember 30, 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

(2) Net of tax of $843 and $1,587 for the three therended September 30, 2013 and 2012 , respgetared $332 and $1,095 for the nine months endpteSer 30, 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

(3) Net of tax of $1,500 and $687 for the three therended September 30, 2013 and 2012 , respgetired $12,871 and $2,848 for the nine months eSdgdember 30, 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

See accompanying notes.




BARNES GROUP INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
(Unaudited)

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, less allowances (2013 -4§3,2012 - $2,858)
Inventories
Deferred income taxes
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

Deferred income taxes

Property, plant and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Goodwill

Other intangible assets, net
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities
Notes and overdrafts payable
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Long-term debt - current
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Accrued retirement benefits
Deferred income taxes
Other liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)
Stockholders' equity

Common stock - par value $0.01 per share
Authorized: 150,000,000 shares
Issued: at par value (2013 - 60,164,924 share<, 269,202,029 shares)

Additional paid-in capital
Treasury stock, at cost (2013 - 7,420,504 sh2@k2 - 4,999,556 shares)
Retained earnings
Accumulated other non-owner changes to equity
Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

See accompanying notes.
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September 30, 2013

December 31, 2012

$ 230,28t $ 86,35t
230,16 253,20:

179,96 226,22

26,30 33,90

16,747 18,85¢

683,46 618,54(

29,52 29,96

600,47 634,46

(376,06¢) (401,36)

224,41 233,09

452,93 579,90

366,97 383,97

21,86 23,12

$ 1,77917.  $ 1,868,591
$ 7,70 $ 3,79¢
92,58( 99,03

127,76t 96,36

54,83 69¢

282,88 199,89

285,60 642,11

130,19( 159,10

48,49¢ 48,70

15,45¢ 18,65¢

602 592

362,35: 332,581
(170,409 (99,75¢)

860,39 633,441
(36,39 (66,75:)

1,016,541 800,111

$ 1,77917.  $ 1,868,591




Operating activities:
Net income

BARNES GROUP INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in thousands)
(Unaudited)

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Amortization of convertible debt discount

Gain on disposition of property, plant and equepin
Stock compensation expense

Withholding taxes paid on stock issuances
(Gain) loss on the sale of businesses

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of thect$fof acquisitions/divestitures:

Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred income taxes
Long-term retirement benefits
Other
Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities:

Proceeds from disposition of property, plant andigment
Proceeds from (payments for) the sale of businesses
Change in restricted cash

Capital expenditures

Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired

Other

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Financing activities:

Net change in other borrowings

Payments on long-term debt

Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock
Common stock repurchases

Dividends paid

Excess tax benefit on stock awards

Other

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash flows
Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

Non-cash investing activities during the first nmenths of 2012 include the assumption of $45,53¥bt in connection with the acquisition of Syntrea Molding Solutions.

See accompanying notes.
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Nine months ended September 30,

2013
$ 24370 $ 65,51¢
44,95' 40,19(
1,77¢ 1,641
(632) (219
16,09: 6,56¢
(2,04 (1,129
(313,47) 78¢
(11,699 (12,31)
(405) 981
(815) (5,689
8,98¢ 2,75¢
27,78 (4,29
(6,609 1,47¢
23¢ (17,967
4,700 (1,009
12,57 77,30
895 55€
539,11 (339
— 4,900
(33,799 (22,929
— (296,71)
(1,909) (3,019
504,31 (317,53
3,881 (4,55
(482,15 (78,06%)
178,00 376,00
10,87 5,63(
(68,60 (19,037
(16,495 (16,24%)
3,31: 1,65¢
(1,320 (1,189
(372,509 264,20
(447) 884
143,92¢ 24,84
86,35t 62,508
$ 230,28t $ 87,35




BARNES GROUP INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All dollar amounts included in the notes are staté in thousands except per share data.)
(Unaudited)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying unaudited consolidated balancet sinel the related unaudited consolidated statanoéimicome, comprehensive income and cash flows haen prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles for imtefinancial information and with the instructiomsform 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X. Thesolidated financial statements do not
include all information and notes required by actig principles generally accepted in the Unitéat& of America for complete financial statemefte balance sheet as of December 31, 2012
has been derived from the 2012 financial statemafrBarnes Group Inc. (the “Company”). For addiabmformation, please refer to the consolidatedficial statements and notes included in the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeafeel December 31, 2012 . In the opinion of managéna# adjustments, including normal recurringraeds considered necessary for a fair
presentation, have been included. Operating refarltbe three- and nine-month periods ended Sdpe0, 2013 are not necessarily indicative ofréselts that may be expected for the year
ending December 31, 2013 . Certain reclassificatitave been made to the prior year amounts to cortfothe current year presentation.

In the second quarter of 2013, the Company contpkiie sale of its Barnes Distribution North Amerizssiness ("BDNA") to MSC Industrial Direct Co.clr("MSC") pursuant to the terms of the
Asset Purchase Agreement dated February 22, 2083APA") between the Company and MSC. The Compeaagived proceeds of $539,116 through Septembet(@, net of transaction costs
and closing adjustments paid. All previously repdrfinancial information has been adjusted onmspective basis to reflect BDNA results as disicnrgtd operations in the consolidated staten

of income. See Note 2.

In the first quarter of 2013, the Company changediganizational structure to align its stratdgisiness units into two reportable business segmArtospace and Industrial. The Company has
transferred the Associated Spring Raymond busifi@ss/mond"), its remaining business within the fermrDistribution segment, to the Industrial segmBatymond sells, among other products,
springs that are manufactured by certain Indudttiginesses. All previously reported financial mfation has been adjusted on a retrospective tmsiflect the segment realignment. See Note 12.
In the third quarter of 2012, the Company complétedcquisition of Synventive Molding Solutionshéfacquired business has been integrated intathsstrial segment.

2. Discontinued Operations

Barnes Distribution Europe

On December 30, 2011, the Company sold substanéifilbf the assets of its Barnes Distribution Eag@"BDE") business to Berner SE (the "Purchasard) cash transaction pursuant to the terms
of a Share and Asset Purchase Agreement ("SPA"hartie Company, the Purchaser, and their respeeieeant subsidiaries. The Company received grosseeds of $33,358 , which
represented the initial stated purchase pricey@lded net cash proceeds of $22,492 after coratiderof cash sold, transaction costs paid andrgjasdjustments. The final amount of proceeds
from the sale of the BDE business was subject b gosing adjustments that were reflected in difooed operations in periods subsequent to thgodison. The income from operations of
discontinued businesses for the nine-month pemoé@ September 30, 2013 includes a final settlewfemtetained liability related to BDE.

As required by the terms of the SPA, the Company iequired to place €9,0@8 the proceeds in escrow to be used for any st of general representation and warranty clafhsent a breac

of warranty claim, the funds would be released fesorow on August 31, 2012 unless there were ay plending claims. Cash related to a pending olavid remain in escrow until a final
determination of the claim had been made. On Augitis2012, the Purchaser provided a notice of brea@arious warranties to the Company. The Compajected the Purchaser's notice and
demanded release of the full escrow effective Augis2012. The Purchaser refused to releasaithestrow, and only €3,900 plus interest was s®davhereas €5,100 ( $6,895 at September 30,
2013) plus interest remains in escrow. The Compmdmjgcted to the retention of the escrow and exgeqesevail in this matter. The Company has rectittie restricted cash in other assets at
September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012.




Barnes Distribution North America

On April 22, 2013, the Company completed the sGBRINA to MSC pursuant to the terms of the APA beem the Company and MSC. The total cash considaregceived for BDNA through
September 30, 2013 was $539,116 , net of transectists and closing adjustments paid. The net-&fteproceeds are expected to be $406,267 aftaidemation of certain post closing
adjustments, transaction costs and income taxesCbmpany has made income tax payments of $95¢Td#d to the gain on sale during the nine-montltogeended September 30, 2013. The

remaining income taxes payable have been recordaccrued liabilities in the consolidated balartoeess. The Company recorded a net after-tax gahi®4,417 on the transaction in the nine-
month period ended September 30, 2013, net ofacdios-related costs of $9,986 .

The following amounts related to BDE and BDNA wedezived from historical financial information. Thenounts have been segregated from continuing apesand reported as discontinued
operations within the consolidated financial staats:

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Net sales $ — 3% 73,58 $ 93,17 $ 231,99¢
Income before income taxes 10 4,97 4,967 21,70(
Income tax expense 462 2,50¢ 1,68¢ 8,531
(Loss) income from operations of discontinued besses, net of income taxes (459 2,46¢ 3,27¢ 13,16:
(Loss) gain on transaction (@) (21) 313,47: (78¢)
Income tax (expense) benefit on sale (16) 6 (119,059 38
(Loss) gain on the sale of businesses, net of irc@ixes (23 (15) 194,41 (749)
(Loss) income from discontinued operations, néhobme taxes $ (476) $ 2,45° $ 197,69t $ 12,41«

3. Net Income Per Common Share

For the purpose of computing diluted income fromtozwing operations and net income per common sliageveighted-average number of common sharetaodisg is increased for the potential
dilutive effects of stock-based incentive plans aodvertible senior subordinated notes. For thegae of computing diluted income from continuingi@tions and net income per common share,
the weighted-average number of common shares adistawas increased by 1,295,270 and 589,876 éothitee-month periods ended September 30, 2013Gk#®, respectively, and 1,035,506
and 615,842 for the nine-month periods ended Sdm@eB0, 2013 and 2012, respectively, to accountri@ipotential dilutive effect of stock-based inemplans and convertible senior
subordinated notes. There were no adjustmentstoria from continuing operations or net income ffier purposes of computing income available to comstockholders for those periods.

The calculation of weighted-average diluted shargstanding excludes all shares that would hava bag-dilutive. During the three-month periods ed®&eptember 30, 2013 and 2012 , the
Company excluded 27,300 and 367,428 stock optiespgectively, from the calculation of weighted aggr diluted shares outstanding as the stock optvondd have been anti-dilutive. During the

nine-month periods ended September 30, 2013 an?l 26& Company excluded 177,550 and 33186k options, respectively, from the calculatiénveighted average diluted shares outstan
as the stock options would have been anti-dilutive.

The Company granted 130,600 stock options, 16Ir@8tBicted stock unit awards and 135,055 performahare awards in February 2013 as part of itsamyrant awards. All of the stock options
and the restricted stock unit awards vest uponingeertain service conditions. The restricted lstagit awards are included in basic average comshanes outstanding as they contain
nonforfeitable rights to dividend payments. Thef@enance share awards are part of a long-term iReliteasure program, which is designed to asses€dmpany's performance relative to the
performance of companies included in the Russé€lD2f@dex over the three -year term of the progradirey December 31, 2015. The performance goalmdependent of each other and based on
three metrics: the Company's total shareholdermgtTSR"), basic earnings per share growth andaipey income before depreciation and amortizagimwth (weighted equally). The participants
can earn from zero to 250% of the target awardth@edward includes a forfeitable right to divideagivalents, which are not included in

8




the aggregate target award numbers. The fair \@flthee TSR portion of the performance share awanas determined using a Monte Carlo valuation met®the award contains a market
condition.

In the first quarter of 2013, the Board of Direstof the Company approved a Transition and Res@mnaigreement (the "Agreement") for its former GHixecutive Officer (“Former CEQ”) in
connection with his resignation of the CEO role aigdassumption of a Vice Chairman role. The Agreenprovided that, in exchange for the Former CE®lwery of an effective release of
claims, his adherence to certain restrictive comenand the successful provision of transitiowises, including with regard to certain equity gsrthe successful sale of the BDNA business, the
Former CEO's outstanding equity awards are modifiedcrease the post-termination exercise peodtock options until the earlier of ten yearsiirthe date of grant or five years from the
retirement date and made non-forfeitable all ontlitey stock options, restricted stock unit awanus performance share awards that remained unvestdite day of his agreed to resignation date
from the Company. The original vesting dates efeljuity awards serve as the delivery dates angetiermance metrics continue to apply to the perémce share awards. The Company recc
$10,492 of stock compensation expense in thediratter of 2013 as a result of the modifications.

The 3.375% convertible senior subordinated notesidivarch 2027 (the “Notes”) are convertible, undertain circumstances, into a combination of aasthcommon stock of the Company. The
conversion price as of September 30, 2013 was ajpately $28.31 per share of common stock. ThetiddLeffect of the Notes is determined based oratlerage closing price of the Company's
stock for the last 30 trading days of the quartec@npared to the conversion price of the Notesledthe net share settlement method, there wer@@8@nd 128,594 potential shares issuable
under the Notes that were considered dilutiveHerthree- and nine- month periods ended Septenfth@033 , respectively. There were no potentiateshessuable under the Notes for the three-
and nine- month periods ended September 30, 202 adotes would have been anti-dilutive.

4. Inventories

The components of inventories consisted of:

September 30, 2013 December 31, 2012

Finished goods $ 71,07¢ $ 126,13¢
Work-in-process 60,38¢ 56,18¢
Raw material and supplies 48,49¢ 43,89t
$ 179,96: $ 226,22

5. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill:
The following table sets forth the change in theyitag amount of goodwill for each reportable segirend for the Company as of and for the periodedrseptember 30, 2013 :

Aerospace Industrial Other Total Company
January 1, 2013 $ 30,78¢ $ 41424  $ 134,878 $ 579,90!
Divestiture — — (134,709 (134,709
Purchase accounting adjustment — 2,627 — 2,627
Foreign currency translation — 5,27¢ a7y 5,107
September 30, 2013 $ 30,78¢ $ 422,14¢ $ — 3 452,93!

In the first quarter of 2013, the Company realigitedeportable business segments by transfernad\ssociated Spring Raymond business ("Raymoitd'lemaining business within the former
Distribution segment, to the Industrial segment Goodwill related to BDNA ("BDNA goodwill"), alsa business within the former Distribution segmersts $134,875 at December 31, 2012.
BDNA was sold on April 22, 2013. See Note 2. In tiiree months ended September 30, 2013, certaiftasecprice adjustments were made in connectionthétlacquisition of Synventive.

In the second quarter of 2013, management perfoita@shnual goodwill impairment testing. Based lois assessment, there was no goodwill impairmetgrized.
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Other Intangible Assets:

Other intangible assets consisted of:

September 30, 2013

December 31, 2012

Range of Accumulated Accumulated
Life -Years Gross Amount Amortization Gross Amount Amortization
Amortized intangible assets:
Revenue sharing programs (RSPs) Up to 30 $ 293,70 $ (61,965 $ 293,70  $ (54,63
Customer lists/relationships 10-15 91,30¢ (15,574 102,80¢ (21,727
Patents and technology 7-14 41,97: (12,27 41,97: (7,758
Trademarks/trade names 5-30 11,95( (7,399 12,75( (7,497%)
Other Upto 15 12,69: (7,70) 12,69: (6,927)
451,62( (104,909 463,92( (98,547
Unamortized intangible asset:
Trade name 10,00( 10,00(
Foreign currency translation 10,267 — 8,59¢ —
Other intangible assets $ 471,88  $ (104,909 $ 482,51¢ $ (98,547

Gross amounts of $11,500 and $800 (accumulatedtiation of $11,387 and $800 ) that were includeithiw customer lists and trademarks, respectivelyDecember 31, 2012, were related to

BDNA.

Estimated amortization of intangible assets fourfafperiods is as follows: 2013 - $24,000 ; 20$24,000 ; 2015 - $24,000 ; 2016 - $23,000 and 224,000 .

In the third quarter of 2013, management perforitednnual impairment testing of its trade nameindefinite-lived intangible asset. Based on tlisessment, there was no trade name impairment

recognized.

6. Debt

The Company's debt agreements contain financia@ras that require the maintenance of interestrege and leverage ratios. The Company is in camgsi with its debt covenants as of
September 30, 2013, and closely monitors its &ubampliance based on current and anticipatedeigoonomic conditions.

Long-term debt and notes and overdrafts payalfeptember 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 consited

September 30, 2013

December 31, 2012

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value
3.375% Convertible Notes $ 55,63t $ 69,92 $ 55,63¢ 57,971
Unamortized debt discount — 3.375% Convertible Kote (1,34¢) — (3,127 —
Revolving credit agreement 285,60( 286,67 589,20( 599,17:
Borrowings under lines of credit and overdrafts 7,70C 7,70C 3,38( 3,38(
Foreign bank borrowings 54C 541 94t 947
Other 3 3 574 574

348,13: 364,84 646,61: 662,05(

Less current maturities (62,537 (4,494
Long-term debt $ 285,60( $ 642,11¢

The 3.375% Convertible Notes are subject to redemgtt their par value at any time, at the optibthe Company, on or after March 20, 2014. The holders may also require the Company to
redeem some or all of the notes at their par vatudarch 15"of 2014, 2017 and 2022. As such, the balance skthotes of $54,290 ( $55,636 par value) and tlateddeferred tax balances are
classified as current in the accompanying balaheetsas of September 30, 2013. The 3.375%
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Convertible Notes are also eligible for conversipon meeting certain conditions as provided initidenture agreement. The eligibility for conversisnletermined quarterly. During the third
quarter of 2013, the 3.375% Convertible Notes weteeligible for conversion. During the fourth auea of 2013 , the 3.375%onvertible Notes will not be eligible for conversi The fair value ¢
the Notes was determined using quoted market ptieggepresent Level 2 observable inputs.

On September 27, 2013, the Company entered irte@nd amendment to its fifth amended and restatenlving credit agreement (the "Amended Credit &gnent”) and retained Bank of
America, N.A. as Administrative Agent for the lemsleThe Amended Credit Agreement extends the ntptdaite of the debt facility by two years from Sapber 2016 to September 2018 and
includes an option to extend the maturity dateafomdditional year, subject to certain conditidfiee Amended Credit Agreement also adds a new foigsidiary borrower in Germany, Barnes
Group Acquisition GmbH, maintains the borrowing itatgility of the Company at $750,000 and adds aoetion feature to increase this amount to $1,08®,0rhe Company may exercise the
accordion feature upon request to the Administeafigent as long as an event of default has notroettwr is continuing. Borrowings under the Amen@zddit Agreement continue to bear intel
at LIBOR plus a spread ranging from 1.10% to 1.70Pke Company paid fees and expenses of $ 1,1&8njunction with executing the second amendmerat $ees will be deferred and
amortized into interest expense on the accompar@orgolidated Statements of Income through its ritgtu

The Company's borrowing capacity remains limited/asious debt covenants in the Amended Credit Agesg, certain of which have been amended in Seme&013. The Amended Credit
Agreement requires the Company to maintain a @iti©onsolidated Senior Debt, as defined in the AdeeinCredit Agreement, to Consolidated EBITDA, afinéel, of not more than 3.25 times at
the end of each fiscal quarter, a ratio of Constdid Total Debt, as defined, to Consolidated EBIT&Aot more than 4.00 times at the end of eadalfiguarter, and a ratio of Consolidated
EBITDA to Consolidated Cash Interest Expense, fisel# of not less than 4.25 times at the end ohdecal quarter. The Amended Credit Agreemerd ptevided that in connection with certain
permitted acquisitions with aggregate consideraticexcess of $150,000 , the Consolidated Senibit ReEBITDA ratio and the Consolidated Total DebEBITDA ratio are permitted to increase
to 3.50 times and 4.2fmes, respectively, for a period of the four fisgaarters ending after the closing of the acqisitAt September 30, 2013, the Company was in ¢iamge with all covenan
under the Amended Credit Agreement. The fair vafuhe borrowings is based on observable LevepBtsmusing discounted cash flows based upon thep@oy's estimated interest costs for
similar types of borrowings.

In addition, the Company has available approxinya$&5,000 in uncommitted short-term bank credisirf"Credit Lines"), of which $7,700 was borrowée@&eaptember 30, 2013 at an interest rate
of 2.14% and $2,800 was borrowed at December 312 20an interest rate of 2.16% . The Company kamlorrowed $580 under overdraft facilities at &mber 31, 2012 . There were no
borrowings under overdrafts facilities at Septen8#r2013 . Repayments under the Credit Lines aeendthin seven days after being borrowed. Repaysnefithe overdrafts are generally due
within two days after being borrowed. The carryamgounts of the Credit Lines and overdrafts appratinfair value due to the short maturities of tHasancial instruments.

The Company also has foreign bank borrowings. &irevhlue of the foreign bank borrowings are bamedbservable Level 2 inputs. These instrumentsateed using discounted cash flows
based upon the Company's estimated interest arssinilar types of borrowings.

Other debt consists primarily of bank acceptandeisiware used to pay certain vendors. Bank accegsamepresent financial instruments accepted ligine€hinese vendors in lieu of cash paid on
payables, generally range from three to six mointimsaturity and are guaranteed by banks. The firesof the bank acceptances are based on obseihel®#l 2 inputs and their carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to their short matusitie

7. Derivatives

The Company has manufacturing, sales and distoibdécilities around the world and thus makes itmests and conducts business transactions den@dimavarious currencies. The Compan
also exposed to fluctuations in interest ratescammodity price changes. These financial exposamesnonitored and managed by the Company as agrahfart of its risk management program.

Financial instruments have been used by the Comjgangdge its exposure to fluctuations in interatgs. In April 2012, the Company entered into fiyear interest rate swap agreements

transacted with three banks which together corthierinterest on the first $100,000 of the Compaogis-month LIBOR -based borrowings from a variabte plus the borrowing spread to a fixed
rate of 1.03% plus the borrowing spread. Theseestaate swap agreements were accounted for hdloashedges.
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The Company also uses financial instruments to éédgexposures to fluctuations in foreign curreegkghange rates. The Company has various contatggnding which primarily hedge
recognized assets or liabilities, and anticipataddactions in various currencies including theigripound sterling, U.S. dollar, Euro, Singapoo#adt, Swedish kroner and Swiss franc. Certain
foreign currency derivative instruments are tre@edash flow hedges of forecasted transactiofifor&ign exchange contracts are due within twarge

The Company does not use derivatives for specelatitrading purposes or to manage commodity expesu
Changes in the fair market value of derivatives thelify as fair value hedges or cash flow hedgesrecorded directly to earnings or accumulatedraton-owner changes to equity, depending on
the designation. Amounts recorded to accumulateeraton-owner changes to equity are reclassifieghtoings in a manner that matches the earningadnub the hedged transaction. Any

ineffective portion, or amounts related to conssabat are not designated as hedges, are recoiréetydto earnings.

The following table sets forth the fair value amisuorf derivative instruments held by the Company.

September 30, 2013 December 31, 2012
Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:

Interest rate contracts $ —  $ (4860 $ —  $ (1,81
Foreign exchange contracts 14€ — 94t —
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:

Foreign exchange contracts 41C (46) 2,37( (152)
Total derivatives $ 55¢ $ (532) $ 3,31t $ (1,970

Asset derivatives are recorded in prepaid expessé®ther current assets in the accompanying ddasedl balance sheets. Liability derivatives reldteinterest rate contracts and foreign exch
contracts are recorded in other liabilities and@ed liabilities, respectively, in the accompanyaamsolidated balance sheets.

The following table sets forth the gain (loss), oftax, recorded in accumulated other non-ownanghs to equity for the three- and nine- monthoplsrended September 30, 2013 and 2012 for
derivatives held by the Company and designatedgihg instruments.

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Cash flow hedges:
Interest rate contracts $ (242) $ (551) $ 82t $ (1,250
Foreign exchange contracts 98 64€ (623) 94¢
$ (144 $ 95 $ 20z $ (302)

Amounts included within accumulated other non-owetenges to equity that were reclassified to expensing the first nine months of 2013 and 201atesl to the interest rate swaps resulted in a
fixed rate of interest of 1.03% plus the borrowspgead for the first $100,000 of one-month LIBORrbwings. The amounts reclassified for the foredguhange contracts were not material in any
period presented. Additionally, there were no an®uecognized in income for hedge ineffectivenesing the three- and nine- month periods endedeBaper 30, 2013 and 2012.

The following table sets forth the (losses) gagworded in other expense (income), net in the diolaged statements of income for the three- and-nimonth periods ended September 30, 2013 and
2012 for non-designated derivatives held by the @aomy. Such amounts were substantially offset bggg@losses) recorded on the underlying hedged as$iability.

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Foreign exchange contracts $ 1,361 $ 2,38( $ (2,12) $ 3,30¢
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8. Fair Value Measurements

The provisions of the accounting standard for¥alue define fair value as the price that woulddu®ived to sell an asset or paid to transfertalitigin an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. This starud@sdifies the inputs used to measure fair vaitethe following hierarchy:

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets fortidahassets or liabiliti¢

Level 2 Unadjusted quoted prices in active marf@tsimilar assets or liabilities, or unadjustewted prices for identical or similar assets doiliies in markets that are not active, or
inputs other than quoted prices that are obsenfablbe asset or liability

Level 3 Unobservable inputs for the asset or liak

The following table provides the financial assetd &éinancial liabilities reported at fair value amgasured on a recurring basis:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in Active

Markets for Significant Other
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Significant Unobservable Inputs

Description Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
September 30, 2013
Asset derivatives $ 55¢ $ — 3 55¢€ $ —
Liability derivatives (532) — (532) —
Bank acceptances 4,01z — 4,01z —
Rabbi trust assets 1,85¢ 1,85¢ — —

$ 5891 $ 185¢ $ 4,031 3% —
December 31, 2012
Asset derivatives $ 331t $ — 3 331t $ =
Liability derivatives (1,970 — (1,970 —
Bank acceptances 3,441 — 3,441 —
Rabbi trust assets 1,831 1,831 — —_

$ 6,611 $ 1831 $ 4,78¢ % =

The derivative contracts are valued using obseevalirent market information as of the reportingedauch as the prevailing LIBOR-based and U.Sstmgainterest rates and foreign currency spot
and forward rates. Bank acceptances representfalanstruments accepted from certain Chineseoousts in lieu of cash paid on receivables, generatige from three to six months in maturity
and are guaranteed by banks. The carrying amoéitiie dank acceptances, which are included withépgid expenses and other current assets, apptexiaiavalue due to their short maturities.
The fair values of rabbi trust assets are baseglioted market prices from various financial excleang
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9. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

Pension and other postretirement benefits expersessted of the following:

Three months ended September

30, Nine months ended September 30,

Pensions 2013 2012 2013 2012

Service cost $ 1,39 $ 1,70¢  $ 483¢ % 4,96
Interest cost 5,01¢ 5,41¢ 15,04: 16,15¢
Expected return on plan assets (8,27%) (8,21€) (24,867 (24,50¢)
Amortization of prior service cost 18t 20¢ 567 62¢
Amortization of actuarial losses 4,03¢ 3,17C 12,33: 9,02¢
Curtailment loss — — 19¢ —
Settlement loss — 91 637 91
Special termination benefits — — 1,01¢ —
Net periodic benefit cost $ 2,361 $ 2,377 $ 9,76t  $ 6,361

Three months ended September

30, Nine months ended September 30,

Other Postretirement Benefits 2013 2012 2013 2012

Service cost $ 58 $ 69 $ 17¢  $ 20¢E
Interest cost 51z 642 1,54¢ 1,902
Amortization of prior service credit (223) (39¢) (78%) (1,189
Amortization of actuarial losses 241 26¢ 762 811
Curtailment gain — — (3,08)) —
Net periodic benefit cost $ 58¢ $ 58t $ 1,379 $ 1,72¢

The curtailment loss (gain), settlement loss amtisp termination benefits during the first ninentits of 2013 relate to certain defined benefit j@mand other postretirement benefit plans that
were impacted by the completed sale of BDNA in Ap@i13. These amounts have been segregated frotimaioig operations and reported as discontinuedatipms within the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The Company contributed to a multi-employer defibedefit pension plan under the terms of a colledbargaining agreement. This mwdtiployer plan provides pension benefits to cefftaimer
union-represented employees at BDNA. The Compatgrméned that a withdrawal from this multi-employ#an, following its entry into a definitive agreent to sell BDNA in February 2013,
was probable. The Company has estimated thatsesasent of a withdrawal liability, on a pre-tasadiunted basis, is $2,788 . The expense was retwitlein discontinued operations during the
first quarter of 2013. The Company completed thhe saBBDNA during the second quarter of 2013.

10. Income Taxes

The Company's effective tax rate from continuingragions for the first nine months of 2013 was #®&®mpared with 15.7% in the first nine months @2 and 13.5% for the full year 2012 and
includes the impact of $16,389 of tax expenseedl# the April 16, 2013 U.S. Tax Court Decisioag($Note 13 of the Consolidated Financial StatemeBi€luding the impact of the U.S. Tax
Court Decision, the Company's effective tax rabenficontinuing operations for the first nine month2013 was 19.6% . The remaining increase initiseriine months of 2013 effective tax rate
from the full year 2012 rate is due to the absafdhe 2012 reversal of certain foreign valuatiioveances and tax rate decreases in certain fojaiigdictions, the increase in the Company's
Swedish effective tax rate and the projected chamg®e mix of earnings attributable to higher-taxjurisdictions or jurisdictions where losses aatrive benefited in 2013. The Aerospace segment
was previously awarded international tax incentiveme of which are scheduled to expire in 2013.
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11. Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Inooe by Component

The following table sets forth the changes in aadlated other comprehensive income by componerth®nine-month period ended September 30, 2013 :

Gains and Losses on

Pension and Other
Postretirement Benefit

Foreign Currency

January 1, 2013 $

Other comprehensive income before reclassificatior®nsolidated statements of
income

Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comgmslve (loss) income to the
consolidated statements of income

Net current-period other comprehensive income

Cash Flow Hedges Iltems Iltems Total
(432) $ (146,44) $ 80,12. $ (66,757
321 12,67: 6,201 19,19:
(119 7,14% 4,14 11,167
20z 19,81« 10,34+ 30,36(
(2300 $ (126,62) $ 90,46 $ (36,39

September 30, 2013 $

The following table sets forth the reclassificaianut of accumulated other comprehensive incomeohyponent for the three- and nine-month periodeeér®kptember 30, 2013 :

Details about Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incom

Affected Line ltem in the
Consolidated Statements of Income

Components Amount Reclassified from Accumulated Other Comprehasive Income
Three months ended September 3C  Nine months ended September
2013 30, 2013
Gains and losses on cash flow hedges
Interest rate contracts $ (2200 $ (637)
Foreign exchange contracts 13z 65¢
(89) 28
53 91
(35) 11¢
Pension and other postretirement benefit items
Amortization of prior-service credits, net $ 38 $ 21¢€
Amortization of actuarial losses (4,279 (13,099
Curtailment gain (ne — 2,88z
Settlement los — (637)
(4,24) (10,639
1,50C 3,48¢
(2,74) (7,149
Foreign currency items
Charge to cumulative translation adjustment (sGRQINA) $ — 8 (4,149
— (4,149
Total reclassifications in the period $ (2779 % (11,167

(A) These accumulated other comprehensive incommgoaents are included within the computation ofpetodic pension cost. See Note 9.
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12. Information on Business Segments

The Company is organized based upon the natute pfaducts and services. Segment informationnsistent with how management reviews the businessaees investing and resource
allocation decisions and assesses operating peafaren The Company has not aggregated operatingesegfor purposes of identifying reportable segment

In the first quarter of 2013, the Company changediganizational structure to align its stratdgisiness units into two reportable segments: Aawsgand Industrial. The Company has transferred
the Associated Spring Raymond business ("Raymoitd'lemaining business within the former Distribatsegment, to the Industrial segment. Raymond, sehong other products, springs that
are manufactured by certain Industrial businessiépreviously reported financial information hasdn adjusted on a retrospective basis to reflecségment realignment.

The Aerospace segment produces precision-machimkethbricated components and assemblies for otiginapment manufacturers (‘OEM”) of commercial getgines, airframes and industrial
gas turbines throughout the world, and for thetenii. Aerospace also provides jet engine compomegrthaul and repair services for many of the wendajor jet engine manufacturers, comme
airlines and the military. In addition, Aerospacarnmufactures and provides aerospace aftermarket ppats. The Industrial segment is a global suppfiéigh quality manufactured precision
components for critical applications, and a leadirgigner and manufacturer of highly engineeredcastbmized hot runner systems and componentsngativerse industrial end-markets such as
transportation, energy, electronics, medical devaoed consumer products. The Industrial segmeatpaldicipates in the design, assembly and digichwf engineered supplies for the global
industrial base.

The following tables, adjusted on a retrospectasidto reflect the segment alignment, set forfitrmation about the Company's operations by itsrepmrtable segments:

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012

Net sales

Aerospace $ 101,74 $ 98,37( $ 296,62: $ 289,39:

Industrial 167,74 134,10° 503,80¢ 381,19:

Intersegment sales — 1) 1) 2
Total net sales $ 269,49: $ 232,47t $ 800,43( $ 670,58(
Operating profit

Aerospace $ 7151 $ 14,12: $ 32,73 $ 39,79¢

Industrial 20,87 8,36¢ 56,40¢ 33,06¢
Total operating profit 28,03 22,48¢ 89,13¢ 72,86¢

Interest expense 2,401 3,24 10,00( 8,04¢

Other expense (income), net 241 872 1,70z 1,780
Income from continuing operations before incomes$ax $ 25,38¢ $ 18,37( $ 77,43 $ 63,03

September 30, 2013 December 31, 2012

Assets

Aerospace $ 52529t $ 533,46!

Industrial 929,45! 907,12:

Other® 324,42! 428,000
Total assets $ 1,779,17.  $ 1,868,591

(A) "Other" assets include corporate-controlleceéssthe majority of which are cash and deferredtsets. Other assets as of December 31, 201helsde the assets of BDNA, which was sold on Ap2i 2013. See Note 2.

16




13. Commitments and Contingencies
Product Warranties

The Company provides product warranties in conogatiith the sale of certain products. From timértee, the Company is subject to customer claimb vaspect to product warranties. Product
warranty liabilities were not material as of Sepbt@m30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 .

The Company was hamed in a lawsuit arising ouhadlieged breach of contract and implied warratya lsustomer of Toolcom Suppliers Limited (“Toolc)na business previously included
within the former Logistics and Manufacturing Sees segment, related to the sale of certain preguir to the Company’s 2005 acquisition of Toalcdn 2006, the plaintiff filed the lawsuit in
civil court in Scotland and asserted that certaodpcts sold were not fit for a particular use. T@npany settled the lawsuit during the first geradf 2013 with an outcome that did not have a
material effect on the consolidated financial stegats. The final settlement expense is includetimihe income from operations of discontinued besses in the consolidated statements of
income for the nine-month period ended Septembe2@03.

Income Taxes

On April 16, 2013, the United States Tax Court emed an unfavorable decision in the matarnes Group Inc. and Subsidiaries v. Commissiofiénternal Revenu@Tax Court Decision”). The
Tax Court rejected the Company's objections andgeg penalties. The case involved IRS proposedadiunts of approximately $16,500 , plus a 20% pemald interest for the tax years 1998,
2000 and 2001.

The case arose out of an Internal Revenue SerYR€) audit for the tax years 2000 through 200BeTadjustment relates to the federal taxation iigm income of certain foreign subsidiaries.
The Company filed an administrative protest of ¢hadjustments. In the third quarter of 2009, thenffany was informed that its protest was deniedaatack assessment was received from the
Appeals Office of the IRS. Subsequently, in Novem®009, the Company filed a petition against 88 in the United States Tax Court, contesting élxeassessment. A trial was held and all b
were filed in 2012. In April 2013 the Tax Court D&on was then issued rendering an unfavorablesietagainst the Company and imposing penalties.

On August 20, 2013, the Tax Court issued an orfgating the tax and penalties due (“Court Appb¥assessment”). Following entry of this order, bpérties have until November 18, 2013 to
decide whether or not to appeal the Tax Court DatiOn November 18, 2013, or earlier if an appeéled by the Company, the Court Approved Assemsnbecomes due. The Company plar
appeal the Tax Court Decision to the United St@msrt of Appeals for the Second Circuit. As a resfithe unfavorable Tax Court Decision the Comphay recorded an additional tax charge in
the first nine months of 2013 for $16,389 . The @any's reserve balance now includes the estimated @pproved Assessment and the presumed utdizatf net operating losses related to this
matter.

In the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company exptrtaake a cash payment of approximately $13,0GQeelto tax, interest and penalties as a restitteoTax Court Decision.

Acquisition

On September 30, 2013, the Company entered intmee$urchase and Assignment Agreement (the "Fhaohase Agreement") with Otto Manner Holding AGerman company based in
Bahlingen, Germany (the "Seller"), and three shald#rs of the Seller, for the acquisition (the "Aisition") of all the shares of the capital sto¢kle operating subsidiaries through which the
Seller operates (the "Manner Business"). The M&Business is a leader in the development and metunéaof high precision molds, valve gate hot rursystems, and system solutions for the
medical/ pharmaceutical, packaging, and persomaltuaalth care industries. The Manner Businessides manufacturing locations in Germany, Switzerland the United States, and sales and
service offices in Europe, Hong Kong/China and dap&e purchase price payable by the Company &Atyguisition pursuant to the terms of the Shanease Agreement is €275,000 ,
comprised of €247,500 in cash (subject to certdjnsaments under the Share Purchase Agreemenghamds of the Company’s common stock having a \afl§27,500 as calculated under the
Share Purchase Agreement. The Manner Businesspethte within the Company's Industrial segmenttadCompany has funded the cash portion of thehase price from cash on hand and
borrowings under the Amended Credit Facility. Trem®any completed the acquisition of the Mannerr®rss on October 31, 2013. The accounting for truisdion has not been completed at
the date of this filing given the proximity to tAequisition date. See Note 14.
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14. Subsequent Event

On October 31, 2013, the Company completed theisitiqn of the Manner Business. Pursuant to theaseof the Share Purchase Agreement, the Compayuyred all the shares of capital stocl
the Manner Business for an aggregate purchaseqfr€€81,200 ($ 381,331 ) which was paid througlombination of € 253,726 in cash ($ 344,636 ) 832,493 shares of the Company's
common stock (valued at € 27,500 pursuant to tleeSRurchase Agreement and $ 36,688ed upon market value at close). The purchaseipcludes preliminary adjustments under the seofi
the Share Purchase Agreement, including approxlynét26,000 related to cash acquired ($ 35,3184, ia subject to post closing adjustments. The Gopunded the cash portion of the
purchase price from cash on hand and borrowingenutheé Amended Credit Facility.

With respect to the unaudited consolidated findrigfarmation of Barnes Group Inc. for the threenttoand nine-month periods ended September 30, 2042012 PricewaterhouseCoopers L
reported that they have applied limited procedimescordance with professional standards for evewf such information. However, their separafgoredated November 1, 2013 appearing
herein, states that they did not audit and thegat@xpress an opinion on that unaudited consel@ifinancial information. Accordingly, the degrdaeliance on their report should be restricted in
light of the limited nature of the review procedsigpplied. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is not stitjeibe liability provisions of Section 11 of tBecurities Act of 1933, as amended, for their
report on the unaudited consolidated financialrimfation because that report is not a “report” tpat” of the registration statement prepared or certifigdPricewaterhouseCoopers LLP within
meaning of Sections 7 and 11 of the SecuritiesoA933, as amended.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfing
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Barnes Group Inc.

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidatechbalaheet of Barnes Group Inc. and its subsidiasesf September 30, 2013 and the related consedidéatements of income and
comprehensive income for the three-month and nioetmperiods ended September 30, 2013 and Sept@dp2012 and the consolidated statements of dasfs for the nine-month periods
ended September 30, 2013 and September 30, 201g inferim financial information is the responstgiof the Company's management.

We conducted our review in accordance with thedsteds of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBiqUnited States). A review of interim finandiaformation consists principally of
applying analytical procedures and making inquigEpersons responsible for financial and accogmiatters. It is substantially less in scope thaawdit conducted in accordance with the

standards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdglard (United States), the objective of whickhis expression of an opinion regarding the findrstetements taken as a whole. Accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion.

Based on our review, we are not aware of any naterodifications that should be made to the accawipg consolidated interim financial informatiorrfbto be in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United Stafesmerica.

We previously audited, in accordance with the saadisl of the Public Company Accounting OversightrBd@nited States), the consolidated balance skieef December 31, 2012 , and the related
consolidated statements of income and compreheirgioene, of changes in stockholders' equity ancash flowsor the year then ended (not presented herein)iraadr report dated February :
2013, we expressed an unqualified opinion on tkossolidated financial statements. In our opintbe,information set forth in the accompanying cdidsted balance sheet information as of
December 31, 2012 , is fairly stated in all matagapects in relation to the consolidated balaf@et from which it has been derived.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Hartford, Connecticut

November 1, 2013
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Fémcial Condition and Results of Operations
OVERVIEW

Please refer to the Overview in the Managemenssu3ision and Analysis of Financial Condition anduiRs of Operations in the Company's Annual Repoifform 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2012. The Annual Report on Form 1@wKather documents related to the Company areddaat the Company's websiteww.bginc.com

In the third quarter of 2013, the Company entenédl & Share Purchase and Assignment AgreemenitStis@e Purchase Agreement”) with Otto Manner Hgldu®, a German company based in
Bahlingen, Germany (the "Seller"), and three shaldgrs of the Seller, for the acquisition (the "Ai=ition") of all the shares of the capital stoé¢kle operating subsidiaries through which the
Seller operates (the "Manner Business"). The MaBusiness is a leader in the development and metuéaof high precision molds, valve gate hot rursystems, and system solutions for the
medical/ pharmaceutical, packaging, and persomaltoealth care industries. The Manner Businessides manufacturing locations in Germany, Switzerland the United States, and sales and
service offices in Europe, Hong Kong/China and da@m October 31, 2013, the Company completeddhaisition of the Manner Business. Pursuant tdéhms of the Share Purchase
Agreement, the Company acquired all the shareapital stock of the Manner Business for an aggeegatchase price of € 281.2 million ($ 381.3 millievhich was paid through a combination of
€ 253.7 million in cash ($ 344.6 million) and 1,03234shares of the Company's common stock (valu€®@t5 million pursuant to the Share Purchase Agese and $ 36.7 million based upon
market value at close). The purchase price inglydeliminary adjustments under the terms of ther&Rurchase Agreement, including approximatel§.€ gillion related to cash acquired3$.3
million), and is subject to post closing adjustnseffihe Company funded the cash portion of the mselprice from cash on hand and borrowings unéeAthended Credit Facility.

In the second quarter of 2013, the Company contpkbie sale of its Barnes Distribution North Amerizssiness ("BDNA") to MSC Industrial Direct Co.cln("MSC") pursuant to the terms of the
Asset Purchase Agreement dated February 22, 2083APA") between the Company and MSC. The totsha@nsideration received for BDNA through Septend0e 2013 was $539.1 million,
net of transaction costs and closing adjustmerits e net after-tax proceeds and net gain onfeaie the transaction are expected to be $406.Bomiand $194.4 million, respectively. In April
2013, the Company initially utilized the proceedseduce borrowings under the Credit Facility. Sujoently, the Company utilized a portion of thegeeds under the Credit Facility to repurchase
shares of the Company's common stock under itsgiylainnounced repurchase program and to provideafopayments related to the gain on sale. Theg@om also plans to utilize a portion of
proceeds to fund investments in profitable growitttives, for general corporate purposes, to fpedsion plans, and to repurchase additional conmshares. See Note 2 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In the first quarter of 2013, the Company changediganizational structure to align its stratdgisiness units into two reportable business segmArtospace and Industrial. The Company has
transferred the Associated Spring Raymond busifi@ssmond"), its remaining business within the ferrDistribution segment, to the Industrial segmBatymond sells, among other products,
springs that are manufactured by certain Indudttiginesses. All previously reported financial mfation has been adjusted on a retrospective tmsidlect the segment realignment.

Aerospace

Aerospace produces precision-machined and fabdeamponents and assemblies for original equipmemtufacturers ("OEM") of commercial jet enginestrames, and industrial gas turbines
throughout the world, and for the military. Aerospalso provides jet engine component overhaulepair ("MRO") services for many of the world's wrajet engine manufacturers, commercial
airlines and the military. MRO activities includeetmanufacture and delivery of aerospace afterrhapgare parts, participation in revenue sharingms (‘RSPs”) under which the Company
receives an exclusive right to supply designatéstmiarket parts over the life of the related aftozagine program, and component repairs.

Aerospace's OEM business competes with both tlnigget engine OEMs and a large number of machbiaind fabrication companies. Competition is basahiyon quality, engineering and
technical capability, product breadth, timelinesyvice and price. Aerospace's machining and fativic operations, with facilities in Arizona, Comtieut, Michigan, Ohio, Utah and Singapore,
produce critical engine and airframe componentsuitin technically advanced processes.

Aerospace's MRO business competes with aerospabts Giervice centers of major commercial airlinesl ather independent service companies for tharrapd overhaul of turbine engine
components. The manufacturing and supply of aeoespfiermarket spare parts, including those relatéldde RSPs, are dependent upon the reliableimedytdelivery of high-quality components.
Aerospace's aftermarket facilities, located in Ganticut, Ohio and Singapore, specialize in the
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repair and refurbishment of highly engineered congmts and assemblies such as cases, rotatingabsr serouds and honeycomb air seals.
Industrial

Industrial is a global manufacturer of highly-eregned, high-quality, precision parts, products systems for critical applications serving a diverastomer base in end-markets such as
transportation, industrial equipment, consumer petsl electronics, medical devices, and energyusext on custom solutions, Industrial participatethé design phase of components and
assemblies whereby the customers receive the bepéfipplication and systems engineering, newysbdevelopment, testing and evaluation, and theufaaturing of final products.

Industrial designs and manufactures customizedumster systems and components - the enabling té&myntor many complex injection molding applicat®nt is a leading manufacturer and
supplier of precision mechanical products, inclgdimecision mechanical springs, compressor reagsand nitrogen gas products. Industrial also ffie@tures high-precision punched and fine-
blanked components used in transportation and tridliapplications, nitrogen gas springs and madigystems used to precisely control stamping pesnd retention rings that position parts
shaft or other axis. Industrial is equipped to pieElvirtually every type of precision spring, frdime hairsprings for electronics and instrumentkatge heavy-duty springs for machinery.

Industrial competes with a broad base of largesanall companies engaged in the manufacture and&alestom metal components and assemblies andetesipn the basis of quality, service,
reliability of supply, engineering and technicapadility, geographic reach, product breadth, intiona design, and price. Products are sold primahitough its direct sales force and a network of
global distribution channels.

Industrial has manufacturing, sales, assembly distdbution operations in the United States, Brazanada, China, Czech Republic, France, Germadig, Italy, Japan, Mexico, Netherlands,
Portugal, Singapore, Slovakia, South Korea, Sigiveden, Switzerland, Thailand, Turkey and the Wdnikangdom.

Third Quarter 2013 Highlights

In September 2013, the Company entered into a demmendment to its fifth amended and restated vingkredit agreement (the "Amended Credit Agreeff)ieihe Amended Credit Agreement
extends the maturity date of the debt facility \p tyears through September 2018 , amends the trogstain debt covenants, maintains the borrowivaglability of the Company at $750.0
million and adds an accordion feature to increhseamount to $1,000.0 million.

Additionally in September 2013, the Company enténémnithe Share Purchase Agreement with the Seliehe Acquisition of the Manner Business. The @amy subsequently completed the
acquisition of the Méanner Business on October 8132 The Manner Business will operate within thenPany's Industrial segment. The Company has futitedash portion of the purchase price
from cash on hand and borrowings under the Crexitlify.

In the third quarter of 2013, sales increased ByG#hillion, or 15.9% from the third quarter of 2010 $269.5 million. This increase was driven @ity by an incremental $25.0 million sales
contribution from the Synventive business durinly dind August 2013 (acquisition completed on Aud@¥t2012). Organic sales increased by $11.5 mijllw 5.0% , with growth in both the
Aerospace and Industrial segments.

Operating income in the third quarter of 2013 imsed 24.7% to $28.0 million from the third quade2012 and operating income margin increased @06ff6 to 10.4% . Operating income during
the third quarter of 2013 benefited from the profintribution of both the Synventive business amdased organic sales, and improved productivitfyimvthe Industrial segment. Benefits were
partially offset by an $8.6 million pre-tax invengosaluation charge related to a specific familysphire parts within the repair and overhaul busin®perating income during the third quarter of
2012 included $5.1 million of short-term purchaseaanting adjustments and transaction costs raguitom the acquisition of Synventive.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Sales

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change 2013 2012 Change
Aerospace $ 1017 $ 984 $ 34 34% $ 296.6  $ 289.. $ 7.2 2.5%
Industrial 167.7 134.1 33.¢ 25.1% 503.¢ 381.2 122.¢ 32.2%
Intersegment sales = = = —% = = = —%
Total $ 2695 $ 2328 $ 37.C 5% $ 800« $ 670.6 $ 129.¢ 19.4%

The Company reported net sales of $269.5 milliothénthird quarter of 2013 , an increase of $37lbam or 15.9% , from the third quarter of 201Zhe acquisition of Synventive on August 27,
2012 provided an incremental $25.0 million of redes during July and August 2013. Organic sale®ased by $11.5 million, which included an increafs®3.4 million at Aerospace and an
increase of $8.1 million at Industrial. The weakenof the U.S. dollar against foreign currencieseased net sales by approximately $0.5 million.

The Company reported net sales of $800.4 milliothénfirst nine months of 2013, an increase of $a28llion or 19.4% , from the first nine months2d12. The acquisition of Synventive in
August 2012 provided an incremental $108.5 miltidmet sales during January through August 2018a6ic sales increased by $22.6 million, which ideldian increase of $7.2 million at
Aerospace and an increase of $15.4 million at lwésThe strengthening of the U.S. dollar agafostign currencies decreased net sales by appabeiyn$1.3 million.

Expenses and Operating Income

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,

(in millions) 2013 2012 Change 2013 2012 Change

Cost of sales $ 189.t $ 170.% $ 19.1 112% $ 544.¢ $ 483.] $ 61.5 12.7%
% sales 70.2% 73.2% 68.(% 72.(%

Gross profit? $ 80.C $ 62.1 $ 17.¢ 28.8% $ 255.¢ $ 187.¢ $ 68.4 36.5%
% sales 29.1% 26.7% 32.(% 28.(%

Selling and administrative expenses  $ 52 $ 396 % 12.2 31.1% $ 166.7 $ 114¢  $ 52.1 45.5%
% sales 19.2% 17.1% 20.8% 17.1%

Operating income $ 28C % 228 % 515 247% $ 891 $ 72¢ % 16.2 22.%%
% sales 10.4% 9.7% 11.1% 10.%

(1) - Sales less cost of sales.

Cost of sales in the third quarter of 2013 incrdask2% from the 2012 period, while gross profirgimaincreased from 26.7% in the 2012 period t&@2®in the 2013 period. Gross margins
declined at Aerospace and improved at Industriatiig the 2012 period, gross margins were negativepacted by the short-term purchase accountijgserdents related to the acquisition of
Synventive. The acquisition of Synventive resulted higher percentage of sales, and increased grofit margin, being driven by Industrial duritige 2013 period. Gross margin benefits from
Synventive were partially offset by an $8.6 millipre-tax inventory valuation charge related to ec#ffir family of spare parts within the repair ameerhaul business. Selling and administrative
expenses in the third quarter of 2013 increaset¥3from the 2012 period due primarily to the incesrtal operations of Synventive. As a percentagalefs, selling and administrative costs
increased from 17.1% in the third quarter of 201.29.3% in the 2013 period. Operating income intkiiel quarter of 2013 increased 24.7% to $28.0anilfrom the third quarter of 2012 and
operating income margin increased from 9.7% to%0.4

Cost of sales in the first nine months of 2013éased 12.7% from the 2012 period, while gross fpnudirgin increased from 28.0% in the 2012 perio82®% in the 2013 period. Gross margins
declined at Aerospace and improved at Industria¢ dcquisition of Synventive resulted in a highencpntage of sales, and increased gross profitimdrging driven by Industrial during the 2013
period. Gross margin benefits from Synventive weaeially offset by the $8.6 million pre-tax inveny valuation charge related to a specific familgpare parts within the repair and overhaul
business recorded in the third quarter
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of 2013. Selling and administrative expenses irfitsenine months of 2013 increased 45.5%n the 2012 period due primarily to the increnaéwoiperations of Synventive and CEQO transitions
of $10.5 million. As a percentage of sales, seling administrative costs increased from 17.1%eérfitst nine months of 2012 to 20.8% in the 20&Bqal. Operating income in the first nine
months of 2013 increased 22.3% to $89.1 milliomfthe first nine months of 2012 and operating ineanargin increased from 10.9% to 11.1% .

Interest expense

Interest expense decreased by $0.8 million ane#s&d by $2.0 million in the third quarter andfttst nine months of 2013, respectively, compacegrior year amounts. The increase during the
first nine months of 2013 was primarily the resaflhigher average borrowing rates under the vagiadle credit facility (the “Credit Facility”). Ding the third quarter, borrowings were
substantially reduced as proceeds from the BDNA sa&lre used to reduce debt under the Credit Racilit

Other expense (income), net
Other expense (income), net in the third quartetQdf3 was $0.2 million compared to $0.9 milliorthie third quarter of 2012 . The decrease was pilynduie to changes in foreign exchange net
transaction losses during the period. In the finse months of 2013, other expense (income), net$ta7 million compared to $1.8 million in the firine months of 2012.

Income Taxes

The Company's effective tax rate from continuingragions for the first nine months of 2013 was #dmpared with 15.7% in the first nine months @2 and 13.5% for the full year 2012 and
includes the impact of $ 16.4 million of tax expemslated to the April 16, 2013 U.S. Court Decigjdiote 13 of the Consolidated Financial Statemantsbelow). Excluding the impact of the U.S.
Tax Court Decision, the Company's effective tar fabm continuing operations for the first nine rtimnof 2013 was 19.6%. The remaining increasedrfitht nine months of 2013 effective tax

rate from the full year 2012 rate is due to theeabs of the 2012 reversal of certain foreign vadmaallowances and tax rate decreases in certegigfojurisdictions, an increase in the Company's
Swedish effective tax rate and the projected chamg®e mix of earnings attributable to higher-taxjurisdictions or jurisdictions where losses aatrive benefited in 2013. The Aerospace segment
was previously awarded international tax incentiveme of which are scheduled to expire in 2013.

On April 16, 2013, the United States Tax Court emed an unfavorable decision in the maltarnes Group Inc. and Subsidiaries v. Commissiofiénternal Revenu@Tax Court Decision”). The
Tax Court rejected the Company's objections and@eg penalties. The case involved IRS proposedsadfunts of approximately $16.5 million, plus a 2pénalty and interest for the tax years
1998, 2000 and 2001.

The case arose out of an Internal Revenue SefRE") audit for the tax years 2000 through 200BeTadjustment relates to the federal taxation figm income of certain foreign subsidiaries.
The Company filed an administrative protest of ¢hadjustments. In the third quarter of 2009, thenfany was informed that its protest was deniedaatack assessment was received from the
Appeals Office of the IRS. Subsequently, in Novem2009, the Company filed a petition against &8 In the United States Tax Court, contesting alxeassessment. A trial was held and all b
were filed in 2012. In April 2013 the Tax Court D&on was then issued rendering an unfavorablesgeragainst the Company and imposing penalties.

On August 20, 2013, the Tax Court issued an orfgating the tax and penalties due (“Court Appb¥assessment”). Following entry of this order, bpérties have until November 18, 2013 to
decide whether or not to appeal the Tax Court DatiOn November 18, 2013, or earlier if an appeéled by the Company, the Court Approved Assemsnbecomes due. The Company plar
appeal the Tax Court Decision to the United St@msrt of Appeals for the Second Circuit. As a resfithe unfavorable Tax Court Decision the Comphay recorded an additional tax charge in
the first nine months of 2013 for $16.4 million.efBompany's reserve balance now includes the @stin@ourt Approved Assessment and the presumeghtitin of net operating losses related to
this matter.

In the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company exptxtaake a cash payment of approximately $13 miltilated to tax, interest and penalties as a reétifie Tax Court Decision.

Discontinued Operations

On April 22, 2013, the Company completed the presfp announced sale of BDNA to MSC pursuant tot¢hnes of the APA between the Company and MSC. Téragzainy has received net cash
proceeds of $539.1 million through September 3Q328fter consideration of transaction costs ansintpadjustments paid. The net after-tax procesglsxpected to be $406.3 million after
consideration of certain post-closing adjustmemésisaction costs and income taxes, which are ¢eqbég be paid during 2013. The Company recordeet after-tax gain of $194.4 million on the
transaction, net of transaction-related costs 6f@nillion. The results of BDNA have been segredatnd presented as discontinued operations. Iminieemonth period ended September 30,
2013, the Company recorded a $197.7 million gamfdiscontinued operations. The gain relates
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to the net after-tax proceeds less the book vditieecassets sold or otherwise disposed of anthtitene generated by the operations of BDNA throitgjbale date, partially offset by charges
related to the pension plans related to BDNA afidal adjustment related to a retained liabilitytlze Barnes Distribution Europe business. See Ratiethe Consolidated Financial Statements.

Income and Income per Share

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,
(in millions, except per share) 2013 2012 Change 2013 2012 Change
Income from continuing operations $ 214 $ 16.C $ 5.4 33.4% $ 46.C $ 531 $ (7.2 (13.9%
(Loss) income from discontinued operations, net of
income taxes (0.5) 2.t (2.9 NM 197.% 124 $ 185.% NM
Net income $ 20 % 185 $ 2.4 13.1% $ 2437 % 65.8 $ 178.2 NM
Per common share:
Basic:
Income from continuing operations $ 04C $ 03C $ 0.1C 33.:% $ 08 $ 097 $ (0.13) 11.9%
(Loss) income from discontinued operations,afiet
income taxes (0.09) 0.04 (0.0%) NM 3.67 0.2% 3.44 NM
Net income $ 03¢ % 034 % 0.0t 147% $ 45  $ 1.2 $ 3.32 NM
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations $ 03¢ $ 03C $ 0.0¢ 300% $ 084 $ 097 $ (0.13) (13.9%
(Loss) income from discontinued operations,afiet
income taxes (0.09) 0.04 (0.05) NM 3.6( 0.2Z 3.3¢ NM
Net income $ 03 $ 03¢ % 0.04 11.6% $ 444§ 11¢ 3 3.2t NM
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic 53.C 54.t (1.5 (2.7% 53.¢ 54.€ (0.9 (1.5)%
Diluted 54.: 55.1 0.8 (1.49% 54.¢ 55.2 0.3 (0.7%

NM - Not meaningful

In the third quarter of 2013 , basic and dilutecbime from continuing operations per common shameased 33.3% and 30.0% , respectively, from ting tjuarter of 2012 and for the first nine
months of 2013 decreased 11.3% and 13.4% , respblgtirom the first nine months of 2012. The chesigvere directly attributable to the changes ioiime from continuing operations for the
periods. Basic and diluted weighted average comshanes outstanding decreased due to the repurehast50,697 shares during the first nine month20df3. The decrease in diluted shares was
partially offset by an increase in the dilutiveesff of potentially issuable shares given an inaéashe Company's stock price and the modificatiboutstanding equity awards granted to the
former Chief Executive Officer in the first quart#r2013.

Financial Performance by Business Segment

Aerospace
Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change 2013 2012 Change
Sales $ 1017 $ 984 3 34 34% $ 2966 $ 289« $ 7.z 2.E%
Operating profit 7.2 14.1 (7.0 (49.9% 32.7 39.¢ (7.3 (17.9%
Operating margin 7.C% 14.2% 11.(% 13.8%

The Aerospace segment reported sales of $101.ibmiifl the third quarter of 2013 , a 3.4% increfsen the third quarter of 2012 . A sales increasthe original equipment manufacturing
("OEM") business was patrtially offset by lower saie the aftermarket business. Within aftermargales declined in both the repair and overhaulnessi and the spare parts business. Increased
sales within the OEM business reflected strengttheieenand for new engines, driven by increasedadirproduction whereas a decline in sales witheafiermarket repair and overhaul business
was driven by a trend of deferred maintenancehérfitst nine months of 2013, this segment repostdds of $296.6 million, a 2.5% increase fromfitse
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nine months of 2012 primarily as a result of insezhsales in the OEM manufacturing business, giseially by sales declines in the aftermarketirepnd overhaul and spare parts businesses.

Operating profit at Aerospace in the third quace2013 decreased 49.3% from the third quartei0dR2o $7.2 million. The operating profit benefifsincreased sales in the OEM business and
lower employee related costs, primarily due to imtise® compensation as a result of the level of@benpany's pre-established annual performance sangete more than offset by an $8.6 million
pre-tax inventory valuation charge related to asjefamily of spare parts within the repair angechaul business, the profit impact of lower satethe aftermarket businesses and increased costs
of new product introductions within the OEM busisiels assessing inventory valuation for the speéé#imily of spare parts used to support its repaé overhaul business, management takes into
consideration the required level of exchange inmgnto meet customer needs, current market priaimdydemand, which depend on the frequency and sfopeair and maintenance of aircraft
engines, the number and age of engines in thdlatsfteet and the various market channels. Inciveent quarter, after consideration of the Compapjans to effectively access various marke
the near term, the Company recorded the valuatiange to reduce the carrying value of the inventoriys estimated net realizable value to reflestent market pricing in readily accessible
channels. Operating margin decreased from 14.4%€i2012 period to 7.0% in the 2013 period. Opegapirofit in the first nine months of 2013 decreh$&.8% from the first nine months of 2012
to $32.7 million. The results were driven by thefjtrbenefit of increased sales in the OEM busireesslower employee related costs, primarily dui¢entive compensation, more than offset by
the third quarter $8.6 million pre-tax inventoryluaion charge related to a specific family of gpparts within the repair and overhaul businessGB@ transition costs of $3.9 million allocated to
the segment during the first quarter of 2013.

Outlook: Sales in the Aerospace OEM business asedan the general state of the aerospace maikehdyy the worldwide economy and are driven byrter backlog through its participation
certain strategic commercial and military engind aitframe programs. Backlog in this business weL$! million at September 30, 2018f which approximately 63% is expected to be géibin
the next 12 months. The Aerospace OEM businesshmaypacted by adjustments of customer inventorglée commodity availability and pricing, changeghe content levels on certain
platforms, including insourcing, changes in produtschedules of specific engine and airframe @nogy; as well as the pursuit of new programs. Seless in the Aerospace aftermarket repair
overhaul business are expected to be impactedibufitions in end-market demand and changes inrmastinsourcing. Incremental management fees witieraftermarket RSP spare parts
business are dependent on future sales volumeararitkated as a reduction to sales. Managemenirfe®ase once during the life of each individuralgram, generally in the fourth or later years
of each program. Management continues to belisvadtospace aftermarket business is competitivesjtipned based on well-established long-term enstaelationships, including maintenance
and repair contracts in the repair and overhauhless and long-term RSP agreements, expanded tapsalkind current capacity levels.

Management is focused on growing operating prof&exrospace primarily through organic sales growtbductivity initiatives, new product introductand continued cost management.
Operating profit is expected to continue to bea#fd by the profit impact of changes in sales v@umix and pricing, particularly as it relateshe highly profitable aftermarket RSP spare parts
business, and investments made in each of its éss#s. Management actively manages commodity ipgoeases through pricing actions and other pradticinitiatives. Costs associated with
increases in new product introductions and the iphysransfer of work to lower cost manufacturiegions may also negatively impact operating profit.

Industrial
Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,
(in millions) 2013 2012 Change 2013 2012 Change
Sales $ 1677 $ 1341 % 33.€ 251% $ 503.¢ $ 381.C $ 122.¢ 32.2%
Operating profit 20.¢ 8.4 12.5 NM 56.£ 33.1 23.8 70.6%
Operating margin 12.4% 6.2% 11.2% 8.7%

Sales at Industrial were $167.7 million in thedhjuarter of 2013 , a $33.6 million increase fréwa third quarter of 2012 . The acquisition of Sytiree on August 27, 2012 provided an
incremental $25.0 million of sales during July aweyust 2013. Organic sales increased by $8ltlon, or 6.1%, during the 2013 period. Saledienefited from foreign currency translation wt
increased sales by approximately $0.5 million asuts. dollar weakened against foreign currendiethe first nine months of 2013, this segment regubsales of $503.8 million, a 32.2% increase
from the first nine months of 2012. Synventive citmtted $108.5 million of sales during the Januarpugh August 2013 period. Organic sales, whiafefieed from
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favorable pricing, increased by $15.4 million dgrihe 2013 period. The negative impact of foreigmency translation decreased sales by approxign&feB million.

Operating profit in the third quarter of 2013 adllistrial was $20.9 million, an increase of $12.8iom from the third quarter of 2012. Operating firbenefited primarily from the profit

contribution of the Synventive business, the priafipact of increased organic sales volume and mtddty improvements. During the 2012 period, opieig profit was negatively impacted by $5.1
million of short-term purchase accounting adjustteemd transaction costs related to the acquisiticynventive. Operating profit in the first nimonths of 2013 was $56.4 million, an increase of
70.6% from the first nine months of 2012. The iasewas driven by the profit contribution of then@ntive business, favorable pricing and improvetipctivity. Operating profit in the 2012
period was also impacted by $5.1 million of shertst purchase accounting adjustments and transaumigis related to the acquisition of SynventiveeSehbenefits were partially offset by CEO
transition costs of $6.6 million that were alloahte the segment in the first quarter of 2013.

Outlook: In the Industrial manufacturing businesseanagement is focused on generating organic ged@gh by leveraging the benefits of the diveesifproducts and industrial end-markets in
which its businesses have a global presence amiirdting new products. The Company also remainssied on sales growth through acquisition and expgrgkographic reach. The Synventive
acquisition in 2012, for example, adds innovativedpicts and services and is expected to expan@dhegany's global marketplace presence. In Septe2ii&, the Company entered into a Share
Purchase Agreement with the Manner Business argkgulently completed the acquisition on Octobe2813. The Manner Business will operate within tleenPany's Industrial segment and will
further provide innovative products and servicesugh the manufacture of high precision molds, eaate hot runner systems, and system solutiortedanedical/ pharmaceutical, packaging,
personal care/health care industries. Our abilityenerate sales growth in the global markets ddryeéhese businesses is subject to economic éomslitOrder activity in certain end-markets,
including transportation, may provide extendedsgl®wth. Strategic investments are expected teiggancremental benefits in the long term.

Operating profit is largely dependent on the satdsmes and mix within all businesses of the segnméanagement continues to focus on improving pabflity through leveraging organic sales
growth, acquisitions, pricing initiatives, produity and process improvements. Costs associatddimgteases in new product introductions, strategiestments and the integration of acquisitions
may negatively impact operating profit.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Management assesses the Company's liquidity irstefrits overall ability to generate cash to fursdoperating and investing activities. Of particuaportance in the management of liquidity are
cash flows generated from operating activitiesjtaapxpenditure levels, dividends, capital sta@nsactions, effective utilization of surplus casisitions overseas and adequate lines of credit.

The Company's ability to generate cash from opamatin excess of its internal operating needs ésadiits financial strengths. Management contirtodscus on cash flow and working capital
management, and anticipates that operating aesviti 2013 will generate adequate cash. The Comglasgly monitors its cash generation, usage aeskpvation including the management of
working capital to generate cash.

On September 27, 2013, the Company entered irte@nd amendment to its fifth amended and restatenlving credit agreement (the "Amended Credit &gnent”) and retained Bank of
America, N.A. as Administrative Agent for the lemsleThe Amended Credit Agreement extends the ntatdaite of the debt facility by two years from Sspber 2016 to September 2018 and
includes an option to extend the maturity dateafomdditional year, subject to certain conditioffee Amended Credit Agreement adds a new foreigsidisiny borrower in Germany, Barnes Group
Acquisition GmbH, maintains the borrowing availélibf the Company at $750.0 million and adds arpadion feature to increase this amount to $1,080lidon. The Company may exercise the
accordion feature upon request to the Administeafigent as long as an event of default has notroegwr is continuing. Borrowings under the Amen@eddit Agreement continue to bear intel

at LIBOR plus a spread ranging from 1.10% to 1.70Pke Company paid fees and expenses of $1.2 milli@onjunction with executing the second amendnerch fees will be deferred and
amortized into interest expense on the accompar@argolidated Statements of Income through its ritgtu

The Company's borrowing capacity remains limited/asious debt covenants in the Amended Credit Agerg, certain of which have been amended in See&013. The Amended Credit
Agreement requires the Company to maintain a aiti©onsolidated Senior Debt, as defined in the AdeeinCredit Agreement, to Consolidated EBITDA, afingel, of not more than 3.25 times at
the end of each fiscal quarter ("Senior Debt Rjtia'ratio of Consolidated Total Debt, as defirtedzonsolidated EBITDA of not more than 41@es at the end of each fiscal quarter, and a od
Consolidated EBITDA to
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Consolidated Cash Interest Expense, as definguhtdéss than 4.25 times at the end of each frpeafter. The Amended Credit Agreement also providasin connection with certain permitted
acquisitions with aggregate consideration in excé$450.0 million, the Consolidated Senior DebEBITDA ratio and the Consolidated Total Debt tolEBA ratio are permitted to increase to
3.50 times and 4.25 times, respectively, for agukedf the four fiscal quarters ending after thesitig of the acquisition. At September 30, 2013 ,Gbenpany was in compliance with all covenants
under the Amended Credit Agreement. The Compang& nestrictive financial covenant is the SeniobDRatio which requires the Company to maintaiat@rof Consolidated Senior Debt to
Consolidated EBITDA of not more than 3.25 timeSaptember 30, 2013 . The actual ratio at SepteBhe2013 was 1.48 times. On October 31, 2013, tmapany completed the acquisition of
the Méanner Business, a permitted transaction potdoghe terms of the Amended Credit Agreement.

In the second quarter of 2013, the Company conpkbie sale of BDNA to MSC. The total cash consitlenareceived for BDNA through September 30, 20E&%539. Inillion, net of transactio
costs and closing adjustments paid. The net adteptoceeds from the transaction are expected $486.3 million. The Credit Facility does not régtthat the Company use the proceeds from the
sale of BDNA to reduce its outstanding borrowinigsApril 2013, the Company initially utilized apptionately $ 480.0 million of the gross proceedseaduce borrowings under the Credit Facility.
Subsequently, the Company utilized $55.8 milliodemthe Credit Facility to repurchase 1.9 millitraes of the Company's common stock under its @ykdnnounced repurchase program and
$95.7 million to provide for tax payments relatedtte gain on sale. The Company also plans taetdiportion of the proceeds to fund investmengsafitable growth initiatives, for general
corporate purposes, to fund pension plans, aneipiorchase additional common shares. See Noteh2 @ansolidated Financial Statements.

The Company's 3.375% Convertible Notes are suljeretdemption at their par value at any time, atdption of the Company, on or after March 20, 20THe note holders may also require the
Company to redeem some or all of the 3.375% Coillemlotes on March 180f 2014, 2017 and 2022. Accordingly, the 3.375% \@utible Notes, classified as long-term debt aBetember 31,
2012, have been classified within the current partf long-term debt as of September 30, 2013. Raywn the 3.375% Convertible Notes, if requirechbte holders, is expected to be financed
through internal cash, borrowings under its CrEditility and the sale of debt securities, or a doation thereof.

Operating cash flow may be supplemented with eatdrarrowings to meet near-term business expam®eds and the Company's current financial commisndimne Company has assessed its
credit facilities in conjunction with the Septemi23t, 2013 refinancing and currently expects tlsabénk syndicate, comprised of 17 banks, will cargito support its Credit Facility which matures
in September 2018. At September 30, 2013 , thepaosnhad $464.4 million unused and available fardwings under its $750.0 million Amended Creditifity, subject to covenants in the
Company's debt agreements. At September 30, 28dditjonal borrowings of $ 442.1 million of Totakbt and $ 349.3 million of Senior Debt would haeei allowed under the covenants.
Additional funds may be used, as needed, to suppei€ompany's ongoing growth initiatives. The Campbelieves its credit facilities and access fmtahmarkets, coupled with cash generated
from operations, are adequate for its anticipamdré requirements. The Company subsequently u26@ 8 million of additional borrowings to fund thequisition of the M&nner Business on
October 31, 2013.

In April 2012, the Company entered into five-ya@erest rate swap agreements transacted with liardes which together convert the interest on trst $100.0 million of borrowings under the
Company’s Credit Agreement from a variable rates phe borrowing spread to a fixed rate of 1.03% jhe borrowing spread for the purpose of mitigpiia exposure to variable interest rates.

Any future acquisitions are expected to be finartbedugh internal cash, borrowings and equity, combination thereof. Additionally, we may from &no time seek to retire or repurchase our

outstanding debt through cash purchases and/oaegels for equity securities, in open market purehiasnder a Rule 10b5-1 trading plan, privatelyotiaged transactions or otherwise. Such
repurchases or exchanges, if any, will depend ewmgiling market conditions, our liquidity requirents, contractual restrictions and other factors.
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Cash Flow

Nine months ended September 30,

(in millions) 2013 2012 Change

Operating activities $ 12¢ $ 770 $ (64.7)
Investing activities 504.: (317.5) 821.¢
Financing activities (372.5) 264.2 (636.7)
Exchange rate effect (0.9 0.¢ (1.3
Increase in cash $ 143¢ $ 248 % 119.1

Operating activities provided $12.6 million in castthe first nine months of 2013 as compared 8.8 illion in the first nine months of 2012. Iret@013 period, operating cash flows were
positively impacted by improved operating perforeanwvhich was offset within net income by $10.5lioril in non-cash CEO transition costs and $ 16 Mianiin tax expense recorded in the first
nine months of 2013. Operating cash flows in th&32Period were negatively impacted by a $95.7 arilincome tax payment related to the gain on thecf&BDNA. The cash proceeds from the
sale are reflected in investing activities. Highash payments for accrued employee incentive cosapien, which was earned in 2011 and paid in tts¢ duarter of 2012, and contributions to the
Company's pension plans negatively impacted th@ p@tiod. The cash generated from operations i2#8 period, together with borrowings under thenfany's credit agreements and cash
received from the sale of BDNA, was primarily usedcapital expenditures, the repurchase of stockthe payment of dividends.

Cash proceeds of $ 539.1 million from the sale DNB\, net of transaction costs and closing adjustsyeare included in investing activities for thel3(period. See Note 2 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements. Investing activities in td&2 period primarily consisted of the cash outfloiv296.7 million to fund the Synventive acquisitidnvesting activities also included capital
expenditures of $33.8 million in the 2013 periodnpared to $22.9 million in the 2012 period. The @amy expects capital spending in 2013 to approxrigd6 million. Investing activities in the
2012 period also include the release of approxilp&# 9 million of escrow funds related to the 2GiHle of the BDE businesses.

Financing activities in the first nine months ofl20ncluded a net decrease in borrowings of $300liBon compared to a net increase of $293.4 millio the comparable 2012 period. The decrease
in the 2013 period reflects the utilization of peeds from the BDNA sale to reduce borrowings. Hoedase in the 2012 period reflects the utilizatbnet borrowings to fund the Synventive
acquisition. Payments on long-term debt in the 20dr2od include the payment of $45.1 million of tiétat was assumed in the Synventive acquisitiamgusash on hand held by foreign
subsidiaries. Proceeds from the issuance of constumk were $ 10.9 million and $ 5.6 million in th@13 and 2012 periods, respectively. During the minths ended September 30, 2013 and
September 30, 2012 , the Company repurchased Ridmaind 0.7 million shares, respectively, of thempany's stock. The cost of the repurchases wa$ $6illion in the 2013 period and $19.0
million in the 2012 period. Total cash used to gaydends was $16.5 million in the 2013 period cangul to $16.2 million in the 2012 period.

At September 30, 2013, the Company held $ 230l®min cash and cash equivalents, substantidllgfavhich was held by foreign subsidiaries. Theseounts have no material regulatory or
contractual restrictions and are expected to pilynamd international investments. The Company sidlssequently used a significant portion of itshdasfund the Acquisition of the Méanner
Business. The Company has not repatriated anyopaofi current year foreign earnings to the U.Sirdpthe first nine months of 2013; however, repaipins of a portion of current year foreign
earnings are planned during the remainder of 2013.

The Company maintains borrowing facilities with kano supplement internal cash generation. At Seipée 30, 2013 , $285.6 million was borrowed atraarest rate of 1.34% under the
Company's amended $750.0 million Credit Facilitychhmatures in September 2018. In addition, asept&nber 30, 2013 , the Company had $7.7 millidmimowings under short-term bank
credit lines. At September 30, 2013 , the Compatoy&s borrowings were comprised of approximatedyalfixed rate debt and approximately 84% variabte debt. The interest payments on
approximately $100.0 million of the variable ratéerest debt have been converted into paymenxed finterest plus the borrowing spread under tireg®f the respective interest rate swaps that
were executed in April 2012.

Debt Covenants

Borrowing capacity is limited by various debt cogats in the Company's debt agreements. As of SeeteBd, 2013 the most restrictive borrowing capacity coveriargny agreement requires
Company to maintain a maximum ratio of
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Consolidated Senior Debt, as defined, to Cons@i&BITDA, as defined, of not more than 3.25 tifeeshe four fiscal quarters then ending. The Conysdebt agreements also contain other
financial covenants that require the maintenancea#rtain other debt ratio, Consolidated TotaltPab defined, to Consolidated EBITDA of not mdrart 4.0@imes and a certain interest cover
ratio, Consolidated EBITDA to Consolidated Caslelest Expense, as defined, of at least 4.25 tiate3eptember 30, 2013 . The Amended Credit Agretaign provided that in connection with
certain permitted acquisitions with aggregate aersition in excess of $150.0 million, the ConsdédaSenior Debt to EBITDA ratio and the Consolidaietal Debt to EBITDA ratio are permitt
to increase to 3.50 times and 4.25 times, respagtifor a period of the four fiscal quarters empafter the closing of the acquisition. On OctoBgr2013, the Company completed the acquisitit
the Méanner Business, a permitted transaction potdoghe terms of the Amended Credit Agreemeniiolaing is a reconciliation of Consolidated EBITD& the Company's net income (in
millions):

Four fiscal quarters ended September 30,

2013

Net income $ 273.¢
Add back:

Interest expense 14.2

Income taxes 33.¢

Depreciation and amortization 62.1

Income from discontinued operations, net of medaxes (200.7%)

Adjustment for non-cash stock based compensation 18.C

Other adjustments 3.1
Consolidated EBITDA, as defined $ 197.¢
Consolidated Senior Debt, as defined, as of Sepes 2013 $ 293.¢
Ratio of Consolidated Senior Debt to ConsolidatBiTDA 1.4¢
Maximum 3.2t
Consolidated Total Debt, as defined, as of Septed®e2013 $ 349.k
Ratio of Consolidated Total Debt to Consolidated HBA 1.77
Maximum 4.0C
Consolidated Cash Interest Expense, as defineaaf, 3sptember 30, 2013 $ 11.¢
Ratio of Consolidated EBITDA to Consolidated Castelest Expense 16.71
Minimum 4.2t

The income from discontinued operations, net obine taxes, reflects income associated with BDNAI(iding gain on sale), partially offset by lossesaxiated with BDE. Other adjustments
represent depreciation and amortization associaitixthe discontinued operations, due diligence taadsaction expenses as permitted under the Gkgdiiement and net gains on the sale of
assets. Consolidated Total Debt excludes the detuht related to the 3.375% Convertible Notee Thmpany's financial covenants are measuredtag end of each fiscal quarter. At
September 30, 2013 , additional borrowings of $.44illion of Total Debt and $ 349.3 million of SenDebt would have been allowed under the coven@enior Debt includes primarily the
borrowings under the Credit Facility and the borirayg under lines of credit. The Company's unuseditfacilities at September 30, 2013 were $464ldom. The Company subsequently used $
202.3 million of additional borrowings to fund thequisition of the Manner Business on October 8132

OTHER MATTERS

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements requiresagament to make estimates and assumptions tleat &fe reported amounts of assets and liabiktiese date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses duenglorting period. Significant accounting policae disclosed in Note 1 of the Consolidated Firs@r8tatements in the Company's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRB12 . The most significant areas involving mamaget judgments and estimates are described in Mamegt's Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Conditions and Results of Operationhin@ompany's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yealed December 31, 2012 . There have been
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no material changes to such judgments and estirogtes than the following update related to busirejuisitions and goodwill. Actual results couilfled from those estimates.

Business Acquisitions, Indefinite-Lived IntangibleAssets and Goodwill:Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets aubject to impairment testing annually or earésting if an event or
change in circumstances indicates that the fairevaf a reporting unit or intangible asset, respelt, has been reduced below its carrying valuanbByement completes their annual goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible asset impairment assemsts during the second and third quarters of gaah respectively. The Company utilizes the optmfirst assess qualitative factors to determine
whether it is necessary to perform the two-steptjtzdive impairment tests in accordance with thpli@able accounting standards.

Under the qualitative goodwill assessment, manageransiders relevant events and circumstancesdimg but not limited to macroeconomic conditioinslustry and market considerations,
overall unit performance and events directly affeca unit. If the Company determines that the step quantitative impairment test is required, ngangent estimates the fair value of the repol
unit primarily using the income approach, whicHeefs management’s cash flow projections, and esduates the fair value using the market apprdatierent in management’s development of
cash flow projections are assumptions and estimatglsiding those related to future earnings armviln and the weighted average cost of capital. Basethis second quarter assessment, the
estimated fair value of the Synventive reporting,umhich was acquired in August 2012, exceededatsying value and the estimated fair value ofréreaining reporting units significantly
exceeded their carrying values. There was no gdbimypairment at any reporting units through the@®d quarter of 2013. Many of the factors usedsseasing fair value are outside the control of
management, and these assumptions and estimatebarage in future periods as a result of both Canyspecific and overall economic conditions. Mamaget's quantitative assessment during
the second quarter of 2013 included a review offtential impacts of current and projected maceeiditions from a market participant’s perspectimereporting units’ projected cash flows,
growth rates and cost of capital to assess théhdad of whether the fair value would be less th@acarrying value. While management expects éubperating improvements at certain reporting
units to result from improving end-market condispnew product introductions and further marketgpeion, there can be no assurance that such xipes will be met or that the fair value of
the reporting units will continue to exceed theirrging values. If the fair values were to falldelthe carrying values, a non-cash impairment aghéwgncome from operations could result.
Management also performed its annual impairmetintesf its trade name, an indefinite-lived intavlgi asset, during the third quarter of 2013. Basethis assessment, there was no trade name
impairment recognized.

Recent Accounting Changes

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting StandardamfiqFASB) issued guidance related to the finarstetement presentation of an unrecognized taxfib@rteen certain tax losses or tax credit
carryforwards exist. This guidance will require quamies to present an unrecognized tax benefitporton of an unrecognized tax benefit, as a rédndo a deferred tax asset for a net operating
loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a taxddrearryforward. The provisions of the amendediguace will be effective for the Company beginninghe first quarter of 2014. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact that this guidanilehave on its consolidated financial statements.

EBITDA

EBITDA for the first nine months of 2013 was $45@8lion compared to $132.2 million in the firstngi months of 2012. EBITDA is a measurement not@oadance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of AMgfiGAAP”). The Company defines EBITDA as net incoplas interest expense, income taxes and depratiatid amortization which the
Company incurs in the normal course of business.@bmpany does not intend EBITDA to represent fas¥s from operations as defined by GAAP, and #der should not consider it as an
alternative to net income, net cash provided byatpey activities or any other items calculatedatordance with GAAP, or as an indicator of the @any's operating performance. The Comps
definition of EBITDA may not be comparable with HE)A as defined by other companies. Accordingly, teasurement has limitations depending on itsTise.Company believes EBITDA is
commonly used by financial analysts and otherlénidustries in which the Company operates ans, fhrovides useful information to investors.

Following is a reconciliation of EBITDA to the Comupy's net income (in millions):
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Nine months ended September 30,

2013 2012
Net income $ 2435  $ 65.5
Add back:
Interest expense 10.C 8.C
Income taxes 152.2 18.t
Depreciation and amortization 45.C 40.2
EBITDA $ 450¢ % 132.2

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain of the statements in this quarterly repmay contain forward-looking statements as defimetthé Private Securities Litigation Reform Act @095b. Forward-looking statements often address
our expected future operating and financial perfomoe and financial condition, and often containdsmuch as "anticipate,” "believe," "expect," "pldstrategy,” "estimate," "project," and similar
terms. These forwarkboking statements do not constitute guaranteéstofe performance and are subject to a varietyskb and uncertainties that may cause actualtsssutiffer materially fron
those expressed in the forward-looking statemdititsse include, among others: difficulty maintainme@ationships with employees, customers, distatsjtsuppliers, business partners or
governmental entities; difficulties leveraging metrbpportunities; changes in market demand fopooducts and services; rapid technological and etakange; the ability to protect intellectual
property rights; introduction or development of ngreducts or transfer of work; higher risks in mi@tional operations and markets; the impact @nsé competition; and other risks and
uncertainties described in documents filed witlfuonished to the Securities and Exchange CommiqS&cC) by the Company, including, among otherssehio the Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gytiems and Risk Factors sections of the Compailiyigs. The risks and uncertainties described inpmriodic filings with the SEC include,
among others, uncertainties relating to conditiorfnancial markets; currency fluctuations andeign currency exposure; future financial perforneaatthe industries or customers that we serve;
our dependence upon revenues and earnings fronalarammber of significant customers; a major lossustomers; inability to realize expected saleprofits from existing backlog due to a range
of factors, including insourcing decisions, matectzanges, production schedules and volumes offsppmgrams;any potential adverse effects associated with a ghernment shutdown
changes in raw material or product prices and aludify; integration of acquired businesses; regtiting costs or savings; the continuing impagprdr acquisitions and divestitures and our
acquisition of the Méanner Business and any otheréustrategic actions, including acquisitionspjaientures, divestitures, restructurings, or sgtbusiness realignments, and our ability to
achieve the financial and operational targetsrsebnnection with any such actions; the impacthefU.S. Tax Court's April 16, 2013 decision any axlated appeal; the outcome of pending and
future legal, governmental, or regulatory procegsiand contingencies; uninsured claims; futurendmses of common stock; future levels of indeb#ednand numerous other matters of global,
regional or national scale, including those of ktjpal, economic, business, competitive, enviromtag regulatory and public health nature. The Canypassumes no obligation to update our
forward-looking statements.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Alout Market Risk
For discussion of the Company’s exposure to marklet refer to the Company’s Annual Report on FA@rK for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Management, including the Company's President dmelf Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offictias evaluated the effectiveness of the desigroparhtion of the Company's disclosure
controls and procedures as of the end of the peowdred by this report. Based upon, and as ofidte of, our evaluation, the President and Chiefchtive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
concluded that the disclosure controls and proedwere effective, in all material respects, argigihed to provide reasonable assurance that tbemation required to be disclosed in the reports
the Company files and submits under the Secuilibehange Act of 1934, as amended, is (i) recorgextessed, summarized and reported as and wheine@gnd (i) is accumulated and
communicated to the Company's management, inclugingresident and Chief Executive Officer and €Rirancial Officer, as appropriate to allow timelgcisions regarding required disclosure.
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in our internal contred fimancial reporting during the Company's thistél quarter of 2013 that has materially affectrds reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.
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PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

The Company was hamed in a lawsuit arising ouhadleeged breach of contract and implied warratya lsustomer of Toolcom Suppliers Limited (“Toolc)na business previously included

within the former Logistics and Manufacturing Sees segment, related to the sale of certain preguir to the Company’s 2005 acquisition of Toalcdn 2006, the plaintiff filed the lawsuit in
civil court in Scotland and asserted that certaodpcts sold were not fit for a particular use. T@npany settled the lawsuit during the first geradf 2013 with an outcome that did not have a
material effect on the consolidated financial stegats. The final settlement expense was includédimthe loss from operations of discontinued besses in the consolidated statements of income
for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2013.

In addition, we are subject to litigation from tittetime in the ordinary course of business anéuwuarother suits, proceedings and claims are pgratjainst us and our subsidiaries. While it is not
possible to determine the ultimate dispositionadteof these proceedings and whether they wileselved consistent with our beliefs, we expect thatutcome of these proceedings, individually
or in the aggregate, will not have a material aslweffect on our consolidated financial positiaasttflows or results of operations.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the other information set forth st Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, you should adhetonsider the risk factors disclosed in our AahReport on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2012. We are updating thoséaisirs to include the following risks associatdth the Ménner Acquisition (defined below). As oefed in our Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on Catt@h 2013 and as described elsewhere in this BOr@, we have entered into a Share Purchase angnfssnt Agreement (the "Share
Purchase Agreement") with Otto Manner Holding AGerman company based in Bahlingen, Germany (tBket® and the three shareholders of the Selerttfe acquisition ("Manner
Acquisition") of all the shares of the capital &t the subsidiaries through which the Seller oand operates its business (the "Manner Business").

The Manner Acquisition exposes the Company to abeurof risks and uncertainties, including risksatielg to the integration of the Manner Busines$ie Company, the financial performance
of the Ménner Business, and risks associated withriing additional indebtedness to finance thaigitipn. We run the risk of loss of key employe¢she Manner Business, and disruption in
normal business relationships. We have incurred veh continue to incur, significant expenses asated with the Manner Acquisition, including fesfgprofessional advisors.

We may not realize the anticipated benefits of\lé@mner Acquisition. Our ability to realize such béts will depend on our ability to successfullydeetficiently integrate the Manner Business,
which involves products, services, and marketsahanew to the Company, into our business, intamdio an increased scale of our internationarafens. Difficulties of integration could inclu
coordinating and consolidating separate systertegiiating management of the Manner Business, iatainarket acceptance of the acquired businesdupts and services, maintaining employee
morale and retaining key employees, and implemgraur enterprise resource planning systems anadtpeal procedures and disciplines. Any such diffies may make it more difficult to
maintain relationships with employees, customausirtess partners and suppliers. In addition, evieieigration is successful, the financial perfonoe of the acquired business may not be as
expected and there can be no assurance we wilteeaiticipated revenue and earnings enhancententsttie Ménner Acquisition.

In addition, our management has spent a signifiaargunt of its time and efforts directed towardstonmating the Manner Acquisition and will spendgaiéicant amount of its time and efforts
directed toward integrating the Manner Businessclwhime and efforts otherwise could have been spermur other businesses and other opportunhiiscould have been beneficial to us.

Finally, we plan to incur a substantial amountdditional indebtedness to finance the Manner Agtaiswhich could have an adverse effect on ouarficial health and make it more difficult for

to obtain additional financing in the future. Thidaional debt we incur to fund the acquisition ghase price may have an adverse effect on ourdialacondition and may limit our ability to obte
any necessary financing in the future for workiagital, capital expenditures, future acquisitiadeht service requirements or other purposes. Additly, we may not be able to generate sufficient
cash flow or otherwise obtain funds necessary tetrihese additional debt obligations. Any defaulier our Amended Credit Agreement could resulb@dcceleration of the repayment
obligations to our lenders, as well as the acceteraf all of our outstanding debt.
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The occurrence of any of the foregoing risks mayemially adversely affect our business, cash fldimgncial condition, results of operations as veslithe market price of our common stock.
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities andse of Proceeds

(c) Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

© G
Total Number of Shares ~ Maximum Number (or
(or Units) Purchased as Approximate Dollar Value)

(a) (b) Part of Publicly of Shares (or Units) that M:
Total Number of Shares Average Price Paid Per  Announced Plans or  Yet Be Purchased Under the
Period (or Units) Purchased Share (or Unit) Programs Plans or Progranf¥
July 1-31, 2013 — $ — — 2,874,50!
August 1-31, 2013 112,10° $ 32.1¢ 72,56¢ 2,801,93
September 1-30, 2013 152,63 $ 31.8¢ 152,63¢ 2,649,30:
Total 264,74. @ ¢ 29.31 225,20:

1) The Program was publicly announced on Oct@09e2011 (the "2011 Program"”) authorizing repurehzfsup to 5.0 million shares of common stock. AcBmber 31, 2012, 3.8 million
shares of common stock had not been purchased thel2011 Program. On February 21, 2013, the Boffirectors of the Company increased the numbehafes authorized for
repurchase under the 2011 Program by 1.2 milli@meshof common stock. The 2011 Program permits opeRet purchases, purchases under a Rule 10lalihgrplan and privately
negotiated transactions.

2 Other than 225,202 shares purchased in thet dgliarter of 2013, which were purchased as patteCompany's 2011 Program, all acquisitions aftgcecurities during the third quarter
of 2013 were the result of the operation of thengeof the Company's stockholder-approved equitypearsation plans and the terms of the equity rigraasted pursuant to those plans to
pay for the related income tax upon issuance akeshdhe purchase price of a share of stock usedxavithholding is the market price on the datéssuance.
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Item 6. Exhibits

(a) Exhibits
Exhibit 2.1
Exhibit 4.1
Exhibit 15
Exhibit 31.1
Exhibit 31.2
Exhibit 32
Exhibit 101.INS
Exhibit 101.SCH
Exhibit 101.CAL
Exhibit 101.DEF
Exhibit 101.LAB
Exhibit 101.PRE

Share Purchase and Assignment Agregrdated September 30, 2013.

Amendment No. 2 and Joinder to Créditeement, dated as of September 27, 2013.
Letter regarding unaudited interim ficéal information.

Certification pursuant to Section 3fizhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification pursuant to Section 3fiZzhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. @@t 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 oB#rbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
XBRL Instance Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema oent.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculatibinkbase Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definitiumkbase Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Libkse Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentatiinkbase Document.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant higscdused this report to be signed on its behathieyundersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Barnes Group Inc.
(Registrant)

Date: November 1, 2013 /s CHRISTOPHER J. STEPHENS, JR.

Christopher J. Stephens, Jr.
Senior Vice President, Finance
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: November 1, 2013 /sl MARIAN ACKER
Marian Acker
Vice President, Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 4.1

EXECUTION VERSION

AMENDMENT NO. 2 AND JOINDER TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

This AMENDMENT NO. 2 AND JOINDER TO CREDIT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), dated as of September 27, 2668y and amon@arnes
Group Inc. (“ BGI "), a Delaware corporation having its principal gdeof business at 123 Main Street, P.O. Box 48Btd&y Connecticut 0601Barnes Groug
Switzerland GmbH , a limited liability company organized under tlzavs of Switzerland and an indirect, whodyned Subsidiary of BGI, registered at ¢
Haslenstrasse 29, 9053 Teufen, Switzerland, attirmugh its Nevis Branch having its registeredaeffat Four Seasons Estates, Villa 1426, Palm GviiNes,
Nevis & Saint Kitts, West Indie¢ BarnesSwitzerland’), BLITZ 13-446 GMBH (to be renamedARNES GROUP ACQUISITION GMBH ), a limited liability
company incorporated under the laws of Germanyamuhdirect, wholly-owned Subsidiary of BGI, registd with the commercial registeH@ndelsregiste) of
the local court @mtsgerich) of Munich under HRB 206695 (“ Barn&@ermany’), and BARNES GROUP LUXEMBOURG (NO. 1) S.A R.L., a private limite
liability company organized under the laws of Luxemuarg and a wholly-owned Subsidiary of BGI, registeat 102, rue des Maraichers2124 Luxembour
Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg (* Barnésixembourg’ and, together with BGI, Barnes Switzerland andrga Germany, the * Borrowetsand each individually,
“ Borrower "), and Bank of America, N.A. (* Bank of America”), a national banking association, and the otkading institutions signatory hereto (th&énder:
"), and Bank of America, as administrative agemtifself and such other lending institutions (thAdministrativeAgent”), with Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner
Smith Incorporated, J.P. Morgan Securities LLC &RIS Citizens, N.A., as Co-Lead Arrangers, J.P. Mor&ecurities LLC and RBS Citizens, N.A., as Co-
Syndication Agents, and Wells Fargo Bank, Natigkedociation, as Documentation Agent. Capitalizethteused herein without definition shall have thepectiv
meanings provided therefor in the Credit Agreenneferred to below.

WHEREAS , BGI, Barnes Switzerland and Barnes Luxembourglgctively, the “_ExistingBorrowers”), the Lenders, the other lending institutions f
time to time party thereto and the Administrativgefit are parties to that certain Fifth Amended BRedtated $750,000,000 Senior Unsecured Revolviegi
Agreement, dated as of September 27, 2011 (as auddiydthat certain Amendment No. 1 and Consentideef February 22, 2013 and as further amendéhlis
Agreement as of the Agreement Effective Date, fBeetlit Agreement”)pursuant to which the Lenders, upon certain temts @nditions, have agreed to m
loans and otherwise extend credit to the Existiog®vers; and

WHEREAS , at the request of the Existing Borrowers, the Adstrative Agent and the Lenders have agreed terahtertain provisions of the Cre
Agreement and to join Barnes Germany as a Borromeer the Credit Agreement, upon the terms anditions herein contained,;

NOW THEREFORE , in consideration of the mutual agreements coathiin the Credit Agreement and herein and for otheod and valuab
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto hergtee as follows:




1. Amendmentgo Credit Agreement.

(@) The Credit Agreement (excluding any Schedules dniliits attached thereto) is hereby amended imitisety with the document attached heret
AnnexA

(b) Exhibit A to the Credit Agreement is hereby deleteds entirety and replaced with Exhibit(Rorm of Notegttached hereto as AnnBx

(c) Exhibit B-1 to the Credit Agreement is hereby dadetn its entirety and replaced with Exhibit BHorm of Loan Requesttached hereto
AnnexC

(d) Exhibit B-2 to the Credit Agreement is hereby dedein its entirety and replaced with Exhibit Bf2orm of Swing Line Loan Requeatjache
hereto as Annep .

(e) Exhibit C to the Credit Agreement is hereby deléteis entirety and replaced with Exhibit(Eorm of Compliance Certificatedttached hereto
AnnexE .

) Exhibit D to the Credit Agreement is hereby deleitedts entirety and replaced with Exhibit Bssignment and Assumpticaifached hereto
AnnexF .

@) Exhibit E to the Credit Agreement is hereby deleteitis entirety and replaced with Exhibit ESgaranty) attached hereto as Annéx.

(h) Exhibit F to the Credit Agreement is hereby deléteids entirety and replaced with Exhibit BGI Guaranty) attached hereto as Annkix.

(i) Exhibit G to the Credit Agreement is hereby deléteids entirety and replaced with Exhibit @érnes Luxembourg Guaranfattached hereto
Annex| .

@) Exhibit H to the Credit Agreement is hereby delateds entirety and replaced with Exhibit HBBarnes Switzerland Guaranjyattached hereto
AnnexJ.

(k) A new Exhibit | (Barnes Germany Guarantyd the Credit Agreement is hereby added to the i€Agteement in the form attached heret
AnnexK .

0} Schedule 1 to the Credit Agreement is hereby delietéts entirety and replaced with Schedul@_&nders and Commitmentajtached hereto
AnnexL .

(m) Schedule 1-A to the Credit Agreement is herebytddl@ its entirety.

(n) Schedule 7.16 to the Credit Agreement is herebgtéelin its entirety and replaced with Schedules TSubsidiaries, Etc.attached hereto
AnnexM .

(0) Schedule 16.6.1 to the Credit Agreement is heraldgteld in its entirety and replaced with Sched@és1 (Addresses for Noticesttache
hereto as AnneX .




2. Joinderto Credit Agreement. By its execution and delivery of this Agreemdddrnes Germany hereby agrees to become a Borrawder,uand doe
hereby join and become a party to, the Credit Agied as a “Borrowerthereunder, assuming all of the obligations anillises of a Borrower pursuant to anc
accordance with the provisions of the Credit Agreetnand agrees to become bound by all of the tarmdsconditions of the Credit Agreement in all exgp as ¢
original Borrower thereunder, as if Barnes Germarye an original signatory thereto.

3. _Representations and Warranties As of the Agreement Effective Date (as defined W¢leach of the Borrowers and the Guarantors, esaise me
be, represents and warrants to the Lenders aniidiministrative Agent as follows:

(@) RepresentationandWarrantiesn CreditAgreement The representations and warranties of the Bonewentained in the Credit Agreement v
true and correct in all material respects when m@adeer than any representation and warranty thaxpressly qualified by materiality, in which cemect
representation and warranty is true and correctlirrespects), and continue to be true and comecthe Agreement Effective Date, except for anyh
representations or warranties which by their terafsr to a specific date.

(b) Authority , Etc. The execution and delivery by each of the Bormswand the Guarantors of this Agreement and thiopeance by each of t
Borrowers and the Guarantors of all of its respectigreements and obligations of this Agreementthadother documents delivered in connection thigh
(collectively, the “Agreement Documentsthe Credit Agreement as modified hereby and therottban Documents (i) are within the corporate ompany
authority of such Borrower or such Guarantor, igve been duly authorized by all necessary corpavatcompany proceedings by such Borrower and
Guarantor, (i) do not conflict with or result eny breach or contravention of any provision of Iatatute, rule or regulation to which such Borrowe sucl
Guarantor is subject or any judgment, order, vnjynction, license or permit applicable to suchr®wer or such Guarantor, (iv) do not conflict withy provisiol
of the Governing Documents of, or any agreemeiotler instrument binding upon, such Borrower ohsGeiarantor, and (v) do not require the approvalomser
of, or filing with, any Person other than thosealty obtained.

(c) Enforceability of Obligations. This Agreement, the Agreement Documents, the iCrégreement as modified hereby, and the other
Documents constitute the legal, valid and bindifdigations of such Borrower or such Guarantor, #€able against such Borrower or such Guarani
accordance with their respective terms.

(d) No Default. Immediately before and after givingeeffto this Agreement, no Default or Event of Déifadists under the Credit Agreement or
other Loan Document.

4. Affirmation of Borrowers and Guarantors .

(a) Each Borrower hereby affirms its absolutd anconditional promise to pay to each Lender &iedAdministrative Agent the Revolving Credit Lot
the Swing Line Loans, the Reimbursement Obligatemmd all other amounts due under the Notes, thedsetf Credit, the




Credit Agreement as modified hereby and the otlwamLDocuments, at the times and in the amountdd®dvior therein. Each Borrower confirms and agrtée:
all references to the term “Credit Agreement” ia tither Loan Documents shall hereafter refer tcCiteelit Agreement as modified hereby.

(b) Each of the undersigned Guarantors herekyardedges that it has read and is aware of theigioms of this Agreement. Each such Guarantorby
reaffirms its absolute and unconditional guararftghe applicable Borrowes’ payment and performance of its obligations toltteders and the Administrati
Agent under the Credit Agreement as modified herBlagh Guarantor hereby confirms and agrees thedfatences to the term “Credit Agreemeintthe Guarani
to which it is a party shall hereafter refer to @redit Agreement as modified hereby.

5. _Conditionsto Effectiveness. This Agreement shall not become effective untilreatthe following conditions is satisfied (the elaif any, on whic
such conditions shall have first been satisfiethdpeeferred to herein as the “ AgreemEffective Date”):

(&) _Agreement Documents, EEach of this (i) Agreement, (ii) the Notes executgdhe Borrowers in favor of each of the Lenderguesting Notes, (i
the BGI Guaranty, (iv) the Barnes Luxembourg Gurafv) the Barnes Switzerland Guaranty, (vi) tharfes Germany Guaranty and the other Agree
Documents shall have been duly executed and detivey the respective parties thereto, shall beulhférce and effect and shall be in form and sabsi
satisfactory to each of the Lenders.

(b) _CertifiedCopiesof GoverningDocumentsGoodStanding. Each of the Lenders shall have received from e&t¢he Borrowers a copy, certified b
duly authorized officer of such Borrower to be tarel complete on the Agreement Effective Datej)afgdch such Borrowes’Governing Documents as in effec
such date of certification and (ii) the good stagdiexistence or its equivalent of such Borrowated as of a recent date of the Agreement EffeCiate.

(c) _Corporater OtherAction . All corporate (or other) action necessary fortaéd execution, delivery and performance by eaicthe Borrowers of th
Agreement, the other Agreement Documents and ther dtoan Documents to which it is or is to becomeagty shall have been duly and effectively takaam
evidence thereof satisfactory to the Lenders steale been provided to each of the Lenders.

(d) IncumbencyCertificate. Each of the Lenders shall have received from edidche Borrowers an incumbency certificate, daasdof the Agreeme
Effective Date, signed by a duly authorized officérsuch Borrower, and giving the name and beadngpecimen signature of each individual who she
authorized: (i) to sign this Agreement, each ofdteer Agreement Documents and the other Loan Deatsn (ii) to make Loan Requests and Conversioru&s
and to apply for Letters of Credit, and (iii) torginotices and to take other action under the Agee¢ Documents and the other Loan Documents.

(e) _Opinions f Counsel. Each of the Lenders and the Administrative Agall have received (i) favorable legal opiniondradsed to the Lenders :
the Administrative Agent, dated




as of the Agreement Effective Date, in form andssaihce satisfactory to the Lenders and the Admatige Agent, from Claudia S. Toussaint, Generali3el, an
McDermott, Will & Emery LLP, special counsel to tBerrowers, (ii) a favorable legal opinion, addezsso the Lenders and the Administrative Agentedats ¢
the Agreement Effective Date, in form and substasatesfactory to the Lenders and the Administrafgent, from Weidema van Tol, special Luxembourgrse
to the Borrowers, (iii) a favorable legal opinicagdressed to the Lenders and the AdministrativenfAgiated as of the Agreement Effective Date, imf@nc
substance satisfactory to the Lenders and the Adiritive Agent, from Vischer LLC, special Swissuosel to the Borrowers, and (iv) a favorable lemaihion
addressed to the Lenders and the Administrativenfg#ated as of the Agreement Effective Date, inmf@and substance satisfactory to the Lenders ae
Administrative Agent, from McDermott, Will & Emergechtsanwélte Steuerberater LLP, special Germamsebto the Borrowers.

(f) Paymentf Fees. The Borrowers shall have paid to the Administatgent (i) the upfront fee payable to the Admtiisve Agent for the account
the Lenders pursuant to the Fee Letter dated atei@bpr 10, 2013 and (i) all reasonable oupotket costs and expenses incurred or sustainethd
Administrative Agent in connection with the pregara of this Agreement (including reasonable Iefgals and disbursements of the Administrative AgeBpecie
Counsel) due and payable on or prior to the Agreeaffective Date.

6. _Satisfactionof Conditions. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing &en 5, for purposes of determining compliancehwitie condition
specified in Section 5, each Lender that has siginisdAgreement shall be deemed to have conseotegproved or accepted, or to be satisfied wabhalocumei
or other matter required thereunder to be conseoted approved by or acceptable or satisfactorg teender unless the Administrative Agent shalleheaceive
notice from such Lender prior to the date hereet#ping its objection thereto.

7. _Miscellaneou$rovisions.

(&) This Agreement shall constitute one of tlwarh Documents referred to in the Credit AgreemErtept as otherwise expressly provided by
Agreement, all of the terms, conditions and prawisiof the Credit Agreement shall remain the sdtis.declared and agreed by each of the partiestt¢hat th
Credit Agreement, as modified hereby, shall coriitufull force and effect, and that this Agreemand the Credit Agreement shall be read and coetbtas on
instrument. Nothing contained in this Agreementldim construed to imply a willingness on the parthe Lenders or the Administrative Agent to grany simila
or other future consents, amendments or waivers iggpect to any of the terms and conditions ofateslit Agreement or the other Loan Documents af & any
way prejudice, impair or effect any rights or remescdf the Lenders and the Administrative Agentarrttie Credit Agreement or the other Loan Documents

(b) THIS AGREEMENT IS A CONTRACT UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK AND SHALL, PURSUANT TO NEW
YORK GENERAL OBLIGATIONS LAW 85- 1401, BE CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH AND GOVERNED BY THE LAW OF THE STATE OF
NEW YORK. EACH BORROWER CONSENTS AND AGREES THAT AN Y SUIT FOR THE ENFORCEMENT OF THIS AGREEMENT MAY BE




BROUGHT IN THE COURTS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK OR A NY FEDERAL COURT SITTING THEREIN AND CONSENTS TO TH E
NONEXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF SUCH COURT AND SERVICE OF PROCESS IN ANY SUCH SUIT BEING MADE UPON SUCH BORROWER
IN ACCORDANCE WITH LAW AT THE ADDRESS SPECIFIED IN THE CREDIT AGREEMENT. EACH BORROWER HEREBY WAIVES A NY
OBJECTION THAT IT MAY NOW OR HEREAFTER HAVE TO THE VENUE OF ANY SUCH SUIT OR ANY SUCH COURT OR THAT SUCH SUIT
IS BROUGHT IN AN INCONVENIENT COURT.

(c) This Agreement may be executed in any nunoheounterparts, but all such counterparts slgether constitute but one instrument. Deliveryax
executed signature page of this Agreement by falesion electronic transmission shall be effectigedalivery of a manually executed counterpart thiede making
proof of this Agreement it shall not be necessargroduce or account for more than one countegignied by each party hereto by and against whitbresmen
hereof is sought. Headings or captions used inAbieement are for convenience of reference ontiysrall not define or limit the provisions hereof.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the parties hereto have executed this Agreenseah agreement as of the date first written above.

BARNES GROUP INC.

By: /sl Christopher J. Stephens, Jr.

Name: Christopher J. Stephens, Jr.
Title: Senior Vice President, Finance and Chief Finar@féiter




BARNES GROUP LUXEMBOURG (NO. 1) SAR.L.

By: /sl Christopher J. Stephens, Jr.
Name: Mr. Christopher J. Stephens, Jr.
Title: Its Class B Manager and attorney-in-fact, duly atited and empowered in this

respect by the Board of Managers of Barnes Groweinloourg (No. 1) S.a.r.l.




BARNES GROUP SWITZERLAND GmbH, Nevis Branch

By:

Name:

Title:

By:

Name:

Title:

Isl Gregory A. Marshall

Gregory A. Marshall
Managing Director

/sl Christopher J. Stephens, Jr.

Christopher J. Stephens, Jr.
Managing Director




BLITZ 13-446 GmbH
(to be rename®BARNES GROUP ACQUISITION GmbH )

By: /sl Gregory A. Marshall

Name: Gregory A. Marshall
Title: Managing Directors (Geschaftsfiihrer)




BANK OF AMERICA, N.A. , individually, as a Lender, Issuing Bank and asn@vine Lender

By: /sl Christopher T. Phelan
Name: Christopher T. Phelan
Title: Senior Vice President

BANK OF AMERICA, N.A. , as Administrative Agent

By: /sl Christopher T. Phelan

Name: Christopher T. Phelan
Title: Senior Vice President




JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., as a Lender

By: /sl Daglas Panchal

Name: Daglas Panchal
Title: Vice President




RBS CITIZENS, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as a Lender

By: /sl Stephen F. O'Sullivan

Name: Stephen F. O'Sullivan
Title: Senior Vice President




WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A., as a Lender

By: /s/ Karen F. Booth

Name: Karen F. Booth
Title: Senior Vice President




BRANCH BANKING AND TRUST COMPANY, as a Lender

By: Is/ Troy Weaver

Name: Troy Weaver
Title: Senior Vice President




SOVEREIGN BANK, N.A. , as alLender

By: /sl A. Neil Sweeny

Name: A. Neil Sweeny
Title: Senior Vice President




THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON, as a Lender

By: /s/ Donald G. Cassidy, Jr.

Name: Donald G. Cassidy, Jr.
Title: Managing Director




FIFTH THIRD BANK, as a Lender

By: /sl Valerie Schanzer

Name: Valerie Schanzer
Title: Vice President




HSBC BANK USA, N.A., as a Lender

By: /sl Chris Mendelsohn

Name: Chris Mendelsohn
Title: Senior Vice President




U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as a Lender

By: /sl Kenneth R. Fieler

Name: Kenneth R. Fieler
Title: Vice President




DBS BANK LTD., LOS ANGELES AGENCY as a Lender

By: /sl James McWalters

Name: James McWalters
Title: General Manager




THE GOVERNOR AND COMPANY OF THE BANK OF IRELAND,

By:
Name:
Title:

By:
Name:
Title:

/sl Wendy Hobsn

as a Lender

Wendy Hobson
Authorised Signatory

/sl Frank Schmitt

Frank Schmitt
Authorised Signatory




THE HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK, as a Lender

By: /sl Jared Shaner

Name: Jared Shaner
Title: Assistant Vice President




THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY, as a Lender

By: /sl Clifford Hoppe

Name: Clifford Hoppe
Title: Vice President




WEBSTER BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as a Lender

By: /sl Carol Carver

Name: Carol Carver
Title: Vice President




PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as a Lender

By: /s/ Robert M. Martin

Name: Robert M. Martin
Title: Senior Vice President




UNION BANK, N.A., as a Lender

By: /sl Christine Davis

Name: Christine Davis
Title: Vice President




ANNEX A
Credit Agreement

[See Attached]
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among
BANK OF AMERICA, N.A,,
as Administrative Agent
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and
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and
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and
WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
as Documentation Agent
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FIFTH AMENDED AND RESTATED
REVOLVING CREDIT
AGREEMENT

This FIFTH AMENDED AND RESTATED REVOLVING CREDIT AGREEME NT (this “ Credit Agreement) is made as of September 27, 2011
amended on February 22, 2013 and as further amemi@&@Eptember 27, 2013), by and among Barnes Graug“ BGI "), a Delaware corporation having
principal place of business at 123 Main Street,. BG 489, Bristol, Connecticut 06011, Barnes Gr&uytzerland GmbH, a limited liability company orgzec
under the laws of Switzerland and an indirect, Wholvned Subsidiary of BGI, registered at Alte Hasleasse 29, 9053 Teufen, Switzerland, acting thrats
Nevis Branch having its registered office at Foea$®ns Estates, Villa 1426, Palm Grove Villas, Bl&/Baint Kitts, West Indies* Barnes Switzerland), Blitz 13-
446 GmbH (to be renamed: Barnes Group Acquisitionb8), a limited liability company incorporated umdke laws of Germany and an indirect whadlec
Subsidiary of BGlI, registered with the commercedister (Handelsregiste) of the local court Amtsgerich) of Munich under HRB 206695 (* Barnes Germépy
and Barnes Group Luxembourg (No. 1) S.a r.l., egpei limited liability company organized under thers of Luxembourg and a whollywned Subsidiary of BG
registered at 102, rue des Maraichers, L-2124 Lincemy, Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg (* Barnes Luxemigduand, together with BGI, Barnes Switzerland
Barnes Germany, the_* Borrowetsand each individually, a “ Borrowé), and Bank of America, N.A. (* Bank of Americy a national banking association, .
the other lending institutions listed on Schedulgthe “ Lenders’) and Bank of America, as administrative agentifeelf and such other lending institutions (the
Administrative Agent) with Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Inqmorated, J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and RBS Ciz&hA., as Co-Lead Arrangers (the “
Lead Arrangers), J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and RBS CitizensANas Co-Syndication Agents (the “ Syndication Aige'), and Wells Fargo Bank, Natiot
Association, as Documentation Agent (the “ Docuratoh Agent’).

“

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Fourth Amended and RekfR&volving Credit Agreement, dated as of SepteriBe2007 (as amended and in el
from time to time, the “ Existing Credit Agreemét by and among BGI, Barnes Switzerland, certain efltenders, the Administrative Agent, and certatmet
parties thereto, such Lenders have made availabiaiic financing to the Borrowers upon the terns esnditions contained therein; and

WHEREAS, the Borrowers have requested, among other thingamend and restate the Existing Credit Agreemedttiae Lenders are willing to ame
and restate the Existing Credit Agreement on thageand conditions set forth herein;

NOW THEREFORE , in consideration of the foregoing premises ane thutual covenants contained herein, the Borrowtes,Lenders and t
Administrative Agent agree that as of the date dietae Existing Credit Agreement shall be amenaled restated in its entirety as set forth herein:




_2-

1. DEFINITIONS AND RULES OF INTERPRETATION

1.1. Definitions . The following terms shall have the meanings sehfor this §1 or elsewhere in the provisions o$ tBredit Agreement referred to belc

Accountants. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP or any other natiprn@ognized independent auditors selected by Bl r@asonably satisfactory to
Administrative Agent.

Acquired Business A company or business acquired by BGI or anyt®fSubsidiaries (through asset purchase or othepimscompliance with 89.
providedthat the company or business acquired will not tesitlered an Acquired Business until (a) BGI hasveieed to the Administrative Agent histori
financial statements of such company or businespgped in accordance with GAAP, an offisecertificate pursuant to §9.5.1(a) and such ofimamncia
information reasonably requested by the Administeathgent and (b) the Administrative Agent has @ared in writing to the designation of such acgl
company or business as an Acquired Business, sugent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

Additional Commitment LenderSee §3.4(d).

Adjustment Date The first day of the month immediately followitige month in which a Compliance Certificate is éodelivered by the Borrowers purst
to §8.4(c).

Administrative Agent Bank of America, N.A., acting as agent for thentlers and each other Person appointed as the sacdedministrative Agent |
accordance with §14.9.

Administrative Agerits Office. With respect to any currency, the Administrathgent’s address and, as appropriate, account derebnSchedule 16.6
with respect to such currency, or such other addeesaccount with respect to such currency as theiAistrative Agent may from time to time notify the
Borrowers and the Lenders.

Administrative Agerits Special CounselBingham McCutchen LLP, or such other counsel ag be approved by the Administrative Agent.

Administrative QuestionnaireAn Administrative Questionnaire in a form supgliey the Administrative Agent.

Affected Lender See §5.11.

Affiliate . (a) When used generally, with respect to anyd®egranother Person that directly, or indirectlyotigh one or more intermediaries, Controls
Controlled by or is under common Control with trerddn specified, and (b) when used with respetttedorrowers, any Person that would be considerée ai
affiliate of BGI under Rule 144(a) of the Rules @Regulations of the Securities and Exchange Conionisas in effect on the date hereof, if BGIl wessuing
securities.

Adgreement CurrencySee §16.16.

Alternative Currency Each of Euro, Sterling, Swiss Franc, and eachratbirrency (other than Dollars) that is approveddcordance with §1.5.

Alternative Currency EquivalentAt any time, with respect to any amount denon@dan Dollars, the equivalent amount thereof indpplicable Alternativ
Currency as determined by the Administrative
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Agent or the Issuing Bank, as the case may beicht me on the basis of the Spot Rate (determimeespect of the most recent Revaluation Date)Hermpurchas
of such Alternative Currency with Dollars.

Alternative Currency Sublimit An amount equal to $500,000,000. The Alternatierrency Sublimit is part of, and not in additiom, the Tote
Commitments.

Anti-Corruption/Terrorism Laws Any Laws relating to corruption, including the iténl States Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 19@vrorism, trad
sanctions programs and embargoes, import/exp@mndiog, money laundering or bribery, and any raguaorder, or directive promulgated, issued ofoerec
pursuant to such Laws, all as amended, supplementexgplaced from time to time.

Applicable Margin. For each period commencing on an Adjustment Brateugh the date immediately preceding the nexusient Date (each aRate
Adjustment Period’), the Applicable Margin shall be the applicable marget forth below with respect to the Leverage &rads determined for the four
consecutive fiscal quarters then ending of BGI @adSubsidiaries ending on the last day of theafiguarter ended immediately prior to the applieaRht
Adjustment Period.

Level Leverage Ratio Eurocurrency Rate Loans Letter of Credit Base Rate Loans Facility Fee
| Less than 2.00:1 1.10% 1.10% 0.10% 0.15%
. 0,
1] Iieosg-ihan 2.25:1 but greater than or equell to 1.175% 1.175% 0.175% 0.20%
. 0,
i Iiezs;tlhan 2.50:1 but greater than or equdl to 1.275% 1.275% 0.275% 0.225%
v Less than 2.75:1 but greater than or equgl to o o o
2501 1.375% 1.375% 0.375% 0.25%
\% I£e7sss'ihan 3.00:1 but greater than or equdl to 1.475% 1.475% 0.475% 0.275%
VI Iéeosg'tlhan 3.25:1 but greater than or equdl to 1.575% 1.575% 0.575% 0.30%
Vil Greater than or equal to 3.25:1 1.70% 1.70% 0.70% 0.30%

If the Borrowers fail to deliver any Compliance @fggate pursuant to §8.4(c) hereof, then for tleeigd commencing on the next Adjustment Date tait
subsequent to such failure through the date imrteglifollowing the date on which such Compliancetifieate is delivered, the Applicable Margin shb# the
highest Applicable Margin set forth above.

Applicable Pension LegislationAt any time, any pension or retirement benefigidlation (be it national, federal, provincialirigrial or otherwise) the
applicable to any Borrower or any of its Subsidiari

Applicable Time. With respect to any borrowings and payments in Alternative Currency, the local time in the plagfesettiement for such Alternati
Currency as may be determined by the Administrafigent or the Issuing Bank, as the case may bbetnecessary for timely settlement on the reledatg ir
accordance with normal banking procedures in thegbf payment.

Approved Fund Any Fund that is administered or managed by (&grder, (b) an Affiliate of a Lender or (c) anignbr an Affiliate of an entity thi
administers or manages a Lender.

Asset Sales A sale, sale and leaseback, assignment, conveyamaasfer or other disposition to, or any exclaofyjproperty with, any Person (other thi
Loan Party), in one transaction or a series of
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transactions, by any Loan Party or any of its Slibsies, of all or substantially all of the assefisall of the Capital Stock of, or a business laraunit or a divisio
of, such Loan Party or any such Subsidiary, inclgdivithout limitation, any transactions permittettler §89.5 and 9.6.

Assignee Group Two or more Eligible Assignees that are Affili@f one another or two or more Approved Funds ipethdy the same investment advi

Assignment and AssumptiorSee §15.1.

Assignment FeeSee 815.1.

Attributable Debt In respect of a sale and leaseback transactidghedime of determination, the present valuec@isited at the rate of interest implici
such transaction, determined in accordance with BA&f the obligation of the lessee for net rentments during the remaining term of the leaseuged in suc
sale and leaseback transaction (including any géaowhich such lease has been extended or méye atption of the lessor, be extended).

Auto-Extension Letter of CreditSee §84.2.

Balance Sheet DatedDecember 31, 2010.

Bank of America Bank of America, N.A., a national banking assticig in its individual capacity.

Barnes Germany Blitz 13446 GmbH (to be renamed: Barnes Group Acquisitionb8), a limited liability company incorporated umdée laws c
Germany and an indirect wholly-owned SubsidianB@fl, registered with the commercial registéddndelsregiste) of the local court @mtsgerichf) of Munick

under HRB 206695.

Barnes Germany Guarantyhe guaranty dated as of September 27, 2013 &ecpursuant to 86.2 in favor of the AdministratAgent and the Lenders,
the payment and performance of the Barnes Luxengb@bligations and the Barnes Switzerland Obligationthe form of Exhibit attached hereto.

Barnes Germany LoandRevolving Credit Loans made or to be made byL#eders to Barnes Germany pursuant to §2.

Barnes Germany Obligationg\ll Obligations of Barnes Germany with respecttte Barnes Germany Loans and the Barnes Germaasay.

Barnes LuxembourgBarnes Group Luxembourg (No. 1) S.a r.l., a pevanited liability company organized under thev$aof Luxembourg and an indire
wholly-owned Subsidiary of BGI, registered at 102 des Maraichers, L-2124 Luxembourg, Grand-Dwihyuxembourg.

Barnes Luxembourg Guarantyfhe amended and restated guaranty dated as tdnSiegr 27, 2013 executed pursuant to §6.2 in fa/tlhe Administrativ
Agent and the Lenders, of the payment and perfocmari the Barnes Germany Obligations and the Ba8witzerland Obligations in the form of Exhili
attached hereto.

Barnes Luxembourg LoansRevolving Credit Loans made or to be made by #heders to Barnes Luxembourg pursuant to §2.
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Barnes Luxembourg ObligationsAll Obligations of Barnes Luxembourg with respéotthe Barnes Luxembourg Loans and the Barnes rhbrer¢
Guaranty.

Barnes Switzerland Barnes Group Switzerland GmbH, a limited liabilitompany organized under the laws of Switzerlamdi @ indirect, whollyewnec
Subsidiary of BGlI, registered at Alte Haslenstr&23e9053 Teufen, Switzerland, acting through ievil Branch having its registered office at Fouas®as Estate
Villa 1426, Palm Grove Villas, Nevis & Saint Kitté/est Indies.

Barnes Switzerland Guarantyrhe amended and restated guaranty dated as te#niegr 27, 2013 executed pursuant to §6.2 in fat/thhe Administrativ
Agent and the Lenders, of the payment and perfocmanf the Barnes Germany Obligations and the Batwmeembourg Obligations in the form of Exhibhit
attached hereto.

Barnes Switzerland LoandRevolving Credit Loans made or to be made by #reders to Barnes Switzerland pursuant to §2.

Barnes Switzerland Obligation#\ll Obligations of Barnes Switzerland with respaxthe Barnes Switzerland Loans and the Barnetz&iand Guaranty.

Base Rate means for any day a fluctuating rate per annuuakeip the highest of (a) the Federal Funds Rate pl2 of 1%, (b) the rate of interest in ef
for such day as publicly announced from time tcetiny Bank of America as its “prime rate,” and (@ Eurocurrency Rate plus 1.00%. The “prime ratel rate st
by Bank of America based upon various factors iticlg Bank of Americas costs and desired return, general economic ¢onsliaind other factors, and is used
reference point for pricing some loans, which mayplkiced at, above, or below such announced ratg.change in such prime rate announced by Banknoéfc:
shall take effect at the opening of business om#yespecified in the public announcement of sunge.

Base Rate Loand oans bearing interest calculated by referentkadase Rate. All Base Rate Loans shall be deraied in Dollars.
BGI . Barnes Group Inc., a Delaware corporation.

BGI Guaranty. The amended and restated guaranty dated as t#niegr 27, 2013 executed pursuant to §6.2 in faithe Administrative Agent and t
Lenders, of the payment and performance of the éafbermany Obligations, the Barnes Luxembourg @titigs and the Barnes Switzerland Obligations @
form of ExhibitF attached hereto.

BGI Loans. Revolving Credit Loans other than the Barnes Gegrloans, the Barnes Luxembourg Loans and theeBaBwitzerland Loans.
Borrower(s). As defined in the preamble hereto.
Borrower Materials See §8.4.

Business Day. Any day on which banking institutions in New Yorkew York are open for the transaction of bankinginess and, in the case
Eurocurrency Rate Loans, also a day which is adurency Business Day.
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Capitalized LeaseslLeases under which BGI or any of its Subsidiaisethe lessee or obligor, the discounted futurgalepayment obligations under wh
are required to be capitalized on the balance gifdébe lessee or obligor in accordance with GAAP.

Capital Stock Any and all shares, interests, participationstber equivalents (however designated) of capitalksof a corporation, any and all equiva
ownership interests in a Person (other than a catipn) and any and all warrants, rights or optitmpurchase any of the foregoing.

Cash Collateralize To pledge and deposit with or deliver to the Adistrative Agent, for the benefit of the Adminidive Agent, Issuing Bank or Swi
Line Lender (as applicable) and the Lenders, dsateol for Letter of Credit Obligations, Obligat®in respect of Swing Line Loans, or obligatiohd.enders t
fund participations in respect of either theredf ttae context may require), cash or deposit acdoaiances or, if the Issuing Bank or Swing Line demnbenefittin
from such collateral shall agree in its sole diSore other credit support, in each case pursuardocumentation in form and substance satisfadiorfa) the
Administrative Agent and (b) the Issuing Bank c& 8wing Line Lender (as applicable). “Cash Colkteshall have a meaning correlative to the foregoimd) shal
include the proceeds of such cash collateral aner atredit support.

Change in Law The occurrence, after the date of this Creditegnent, of any of the following: (a) the adoptiartaking effect of any law, rule, regulat
or treaty, (b) any change in any law, rule, regafabr treaty or in the administration, interpregaf implementation or application thereof by angv@rnmente
Authority or (c) the making or issuance of any resjurule, guideline or directive (whether or nating the force of law) by any Governmental Authgrprovidec
that notwithstanding anything herein to the contréx) the DoddFrank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protectioh & all requests, rules, guideline:
directives thereunder or issued in connection thigheand (y) all requests, rules, guidelines oediives promulgated by the Bank for Internatioretiements, tr
Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (or any sssor or similar authority) or the United Stategutatory authorities, in each case pursuant to IBsshall in
each case be deemed to be a “Change in Law”, fegardf the date enacted, adopted or issued.

Change of Control If (a) any Person or group of Persons (as us&kations 13 and 14 of the Securities ExchangeoA&B834, as amended, and the r
and regulations thereunder) shall have becomeehefizial owner (as defined in Rules 13d-3 and &3memulgated by the Securities and Exchange Cosion
under said Act) of thirty percent (30%) or moreB@!’s outstanding Voting Stock; providediowever, that members of the Barnes family, Bafnkmerica and ar
of its Affiliates (to the extent that it owns stotkwhich a member of the Barnes family has arr@#}, the Barnes Group Inc. Retirement Savings Rtal Fidelit
Management Trust Company, in its capacity as teusteler such plan, and employees of BGI (exceptamapes of BGI who became beneficial owners of nibae
ten percent (10%) of BGI's Voting Stock prior tocbening employees of BGI) shall not be counted &eson for purposes hereof, or (b) a “change ofrotin
occurs under any Indebtedness of any Borrower @r&tor of at least $20,000,000, or (c) BGI faidlsotvn, directly or indirectly, 100% of the stock Barne:
Luxembourg or Barnes Switzerland except for any inairinterest (5% or less) required to be held biyial party.

Closing Date September 27, 2011.
Co-Lead Arrangers Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorpordtd.P. Morgan Securities LLC and RBS Citizens, .N.A

Code. The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
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Commitment With respect to each Lender, the amount set famt&chedule 1 hereto as the amount of such Lend@dmmitment to make Loans to, an
participate in the issuance, extension and reneWwaétters of Credit for the account of, the Boreyw or either of them, as the same may be reduoedtfme tc
time; or if such commitment is terminated pursuarthe provisions hereof, zero.

Commitment PercentageWith respect to each Lender, the percentage as#t bn_Schedule 1 hereto as such Lendserpercentage of the aggre¢
Commitments of all of the Lenders subject to adnesit as provided in §5.14.

Compliance Certificate See §8.4(c).

Consolidated or consolidatedWith reference to any term defined herein, shadlan that term as applied to the accounts of B@l iem Subsidiarie
consolidated in accordance with GAAP.

Consolidated Cash Interest Expenges of the last day of any fiscal quarter, the amaf interest expense, paid or payable in catheoBorrowers, the
Subsidiaries, and Acquired Businesses (to the ex#tahsuch Acquired Business is included in tHeuation of Consolidated EBITDA for such periot)r the fou
fiscal quarters ended on such date, determinedommsolidated basis in accordance with GAAP fohgueriod. Except to the extent approved by the Aistriative
Agent, all Indebtedness incurred in connection whi acquisition of any Acquired Business shaltibemed to have been incurred at the beginningeofotlr fisca
quarters ended on the last day of such fiscal guarid to have borne interest at a rate no lesstii®asum of (a) the arithmetic mean of (x) thedeurrency Rat
for Eurocurrency Rate Loans having an Interestdéleof one month in effect on the first day of tloeif (4) consecutive fiscal quarters then ending @)dhe
Eurocurrency Rate for Eurocurrency Rate Loans ftaaimInterest Period of one month in effect onlaéiseday of the four (4) consecutive fiscal quartéien endin
plus(b) the Applicable Margin for Loans then in efféafter giving effect to such acquisition on a poonfia basis).

Consolidated EBITDA For any period, Consolidated Net Income of ther@wers, their Subsidiaries and, without duplicatithe Acquired Business
(excluding, without duplication, (a) extraordinaygins and losses in accordance with GAAP, (b) gamslosses in connection with asset dispositidmstiaer or nc
constituting extraordinary gains and losses, afndyéins or losses on discontinued or divested ¢ipeis_providedthat for purposes of calculating the finan
covenants under §10 of this Agreement, the CoreialttiNet Income generated by any discontinuedwastéd operations of BGI and its Subsidiaries edldb
proposed disposition permitted by §9.5.2 or otheewionsented to by the Lenders and Administratigenfin accordance with the terms of the Credite&grer
shall continue to be included in the calculationGansolidated EBITDA until the date that the pragmbslisposition is actually consummated) for ther fiiscal
quarters ended on such date, fimghe extent deducted in computing Consolidatet INeome of the Borrowers, their Subsidiaries amithout duplication, th
Acquired Businesses, (i) the amount of intereseegp, accrued (including, for the avoidance of tomtputed interest on convertible notes) or pdiging suc
period, (ii) the sum of income taxes, depreciationl amortization for such period, (i) due diligenand transaction expenses in connection withisitigns ant
Asset Sales permitted hereunder (whether or natlsomated) in an amount not to exceed $1,500,0@dyrfour fiscal quarter period, (iv) broker feeslaucces
fees in connection with acquisitions and Asset Salermitted hereunder in an amount not to exce@08@,000 in the aggregate over the term of thisdil
Agreement, (v) restructuring charges not to exc$®8,000,000 in any four fiscal quarter period, (@i)onetime exit compensation expense not to ex
$10,500,000 accrued during the period ending M&8dcH013, (vii) non-cash stock-based compensatipereses, (viii) norgash expenses related to the impair
or write-off of goodwill and/or intangible assetsda(ix) non-cash expenses related to the expemsdipgrchase accounting writges of inventory in connection w
any acquisition permitted under §89.5.1 so longua$ sidd-back occurs during the six months followtimg acquisition date; providehdat for purposes of calculati
the financial covenants
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under 810 of this Agreement, the portion of anyuatiients contained in clause (i), (i), (iii), (\{yii) and (viii) hereof attributed to any discamtied or diveste
operations of BGI and its Subsidiaries related fwa@posed disposition permitted by §9.5.2 or otlimeveonsented to by the Lenders and Administraiigent ir
accordance with the terms of the Credit Agreeméatl scontinue to be included in the calculation@dnsolidated EBITDA until the date that the proml
disposition is actually consummated. The finanoéslults of any Acquired Businesses acquired attemg during the period tested shall be includedf asict
Acquired Business had been acquired as of thed@gtof the period tested.

Consolidated Net IncomeThe consolidated net income (or deficit) of B@idaits Subsidiaries, after deduction of all expsnsaxes, and other pro
charges, determined in accordance with GAAP (exwtudny losses attributable to the use of a faluezanethodology for recognition and measureme
impairment of goodwill identified in accordance iWEASB ASC 350); provided that for purposes of gkiting the financial covenants under §10 of thisg®emen
the consolidated net income (or deficit) generdgany discontinued operations of BGI and its Sdibsies related to a proposed disposition permitg89.5.2 ¢
otherwise consented to by the Lenders and Admatise Agent in accordance with the terms of thed@r&greement shall continue to be included inc¢hkulatior
of consolidated net income (or deficit) until thatel that the proposed disposition is actually comsated, notwithstanding any contrary treatment wépect t
such consolidated net income (or deficit) in acaomk with GAAP.

Consolidated Senior DebConsolidated Total Debt lefige outstanding amount of any Subordinated Debt.

Consolidated Total Assetdll assets of BGI and its Subsidiaries determinrd consolidated basis in accordance with GAAP.

Consolidated Total DebtWith respect to BGI and its Subsidiaries, the swithout duplication, of (a) the aggregate amanfnindebtedness of BGI and
Subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, outstarmtinguch date for borrowed money or the deferredimse price of property including, without limitatj in respe:
of any Synthetic Leases or any Capitalized Legseas,(b) Indebtedness of the type referred to in clday@f another Person (not including BGI or its Sidlaries
guaranteed by BGI or its Subsidiaries.

Control. The possession, directly or indirectly, of theveo to direct or cause the direction of the managemor policies of a Person, whether througt
ability to exercise voting power, by contract dnetwise. “ Controlling’ and “ Controlled” have meanings correlative thereto.

Conversion RequestA notice given by a Borrower to the Administratidgent of such Borrowes’election to convert or continue a Loan in accocdawitt

§2.7.
Credit Agreement This Fifth Amended and Restated Revolving CrAditeement, including the Schedules and Exhibitgtioer

Debtor Relief Laws The Bankruptcy Code of the United States, andtabr liquidation, conservatorship, bankruptcsigisment for the benefit of creditc
moratorium, rearrangement, receivership, insolvenegrganization, or similar debtor relief Lawstbé United States or other applicable jurisdictitnesn time tc
time in effect and affecting the rights of credétgenerally.

Default. See §13.1.

Defaulting Lender Subject to 85.14.2, any Lender that, as reasgragibrmined by the Administrative Agent, (a) haiefl to perform any of its fundil
obligations hereunder, including in respect oLiv&ns or participations in respect of Letters oédiror Swing Line Loans, within three Business ay
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of the date required to be funded by it hereundeless such Lender notifies the Administrative Agemd BGI in writing that such failure is the resaf suct
Lenders determination that one or more conditions pregede funding (each of which conditions precededngether with any applicable Default, shall
specifically identified in such writing) has notdresatisfied, (b) has notified BGI or the Admirdsive Agent that it does not intend to comply wiih funding
obligations or has made a public statement todffatt with respect to its funding obligations herder or generally under other agreements in witicbmmits tc
extend credit, unless such writing or public staetrelates to such Lendgrbbligation to fund a Loan hereunder and statasdhch position is based on s
Lenders determination that a condition precedent to fa@divhich condition precedent, together with angligable Default, shall be specifically identifigdsuct
writing or public statement) cannot be satisfiet), fas failed, within three Business Days afteuest by the Administrative Agent, to confirm in amne
satisfactory to the Administrative Agent that itivéiomply with its funding obligations (providedahsuch Lender shall cease to be a Defaulting Lrepdiesuant t
this clause (c) upon receipt of such written canéition by the Administrative Agent and BGI), or (@s, or has a direct or indirect parent compaay hlas, (i
become the subject of a proceeding under any D&sbef Law, (ii) had a receiver, conservator, tees administrator, assignee for the benefit ofiitves or simila
Person charged with reorganization or liquidatibitobusiness or a custodian appointed for iijiigrtaken any action in furtherance of, or indied its consent t
approval of or acquiescence in any such proceedlirepppointment; provided that a Lender shall noateefaulting Lender solely by virtue of the owrgpsor
acquisition of any equity interest in that Lenderny direct or indirect parent company thereoblgovernmental Authority.

Derivative Contract See the definition of “Indebtedness”.

Designated JurisdictionAny country or territory to the extent that swhuntry or territory is the subject of any Sanctioris subject to a sanctions prog
under any Anti-Corruption/Terrorism Laws.

Distribution. The declaration or payment of any dividend oinaespect of any shares of any class of CapitaSof a Person, other than dividends pay
solely in shares of common stock of such Persanpthichase, redemption, defeasance, retiremenher acquisition of any shares of any class of @afitock of .
Person, directly or indirectly through a Subsidiafysuch Person or otherwise (including the settipgrt of assets for a sinking or other analogaud to be use
for such purpose); the return of capital by a Retsdts shareholders as such; or any other digidb on or in respect of any shares of any cldsSapital Stock ¢
such Person.

Documentation AgentAs defined in the preamble hereto.

Dollarsor $. Dollars in lawful currency of the United Statdshanerica.

Dollar Equivalent At any time, (a) with respect to any amount deimated in Dollars, such amount, and (b) with respe@ny amount denominated in :
Alternative Currency, the equivalent amount theriedDollars as determined by the Administrative Ager the Issuing Bank, as the case may be, at thmehor
the basis of the Spot Rate (determined in resgaheanost recent Revaluation Date) for the purelaollars with such Alternative Currency.

Domestic Lending Office Initially, the office of each Lender designatedsaich in_Schedulel hereto; thereafter, such other office of such Lenidany.
located within the United States that will be maker maintaining Base Rate Loans.

Drawdown Date The date on which any Loan is made or is to béepand the date on which any Loan is convertemotinued in accordance with §2.7.
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Eligible Assignee Any of (a) a Lender; (b) an Affiliate of a Lendand (c) any other Person (other than a naturabpég approved by (i) the Administrat
Agent, the Issuing Bank and Swing Line Lender, @dinless an Event of Default has occurred ancbistinuing, BGI (each such approval not to be asoaabl
withheld or delayed); providetthat notwithstanding the foregoing, “Eligible Asseg” shall not include the Borrowers or any of Bugrowers’ Affiliates.

EMU . The economic and monetary union established aordance with the Treaty of Rome 1957, as amengethé Single European Act 1986,
Maastricht Treaty of 1992 and the Amsterdam Tre&ti998.

EMU Legislation. The legislative measures of the European Codacithe introduction of, changeover to or operataina single or unified Europe
currency.

Environmental Laws Any and all Federal, provincial, state, local doctign statutes, law, regulations, ordinancelgsrjudgments, orders, decrees, per
concessions, grants, franchises, licenses, agreégrnergovernmental restrictions relating to heasthfety or the environment, including but not leitto, th
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (‘RCRAMe Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensatid Liability Act of 1980 as amenc
(“CERCLA"), the Superfund Amendments and Reauttasian Act of 1986 (“SARA”),the Federal Clean Water Act, the Federal CleanA&ir and the Toxi
Substances Control Act.

ERISA. The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of4,%s amended.

ERISA Affiliate . Any trade or business (whether or not incorpafatender common control with a Borrower within timeaning of 8414(b) or (c) of t
Code (and 88414(m) and (o) of the Code for purpogesovisions relating to 8412 of the Code).

ERISA Event (a) A Reportable Event with respect to a PenBilam; (b) the withdrawal of a Borrower or any ERI8filiate from a Pension Plan subjec
84063 of ERISA during a plan year in which suchitgntas a “substantial employeds defined in §4001(a)(2) of ERISA or a cessatiooperations that is treat
as such a withdrawal under §4062(e) of ERISA; (cdmplete or partial withdrawal by a Borrower oy &RISA Affiliate from a Multiemployer Plan or nfitation
that a Multiemployer Plan is in reorganization; {dg filing of a notice of intent to terminate, ttreatment of a Pension Plan amendment as a tefomnande
884041 or 4041A of ERISA,; (e) the institution byetRBGC of proceedings to terminate a Pension Pfpany event or condition which constitutes grosinchde
84042 of ERISA for the termination of, or the apgoient of a trustee to administer, any Pension;Rgrthe determination that any Pension Plan isitered a
at+isk plan or a plan in endangered or critical satithin the meaning of §8430, 431 and 432 of thdeCor §§303, 304 and 305 of ERISA,; or (h) the isifan of
any liability under Title IV of ERISA, other thaoif PBGC premiums due but not delinquent under 840@&ERISA, upon a Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate.

Euroand EUR. The lawful currency of the Participating Membéat8s introduced in accordance with the EMU Legjista

Eurocurrency Base Raté&ee the definition of “Eurocurrency Rate”.

Eurocurrency Business Dayny day: (a) on which dealings in deposits inlBxd are conducted by and between banks in thedromderbank eurocurren
market, if such day relates to any interest raténgs as to a Eurocurrency Rate Loan denominateBadllars, any fundings, disbursements, settlement
payments in Dollars in respect of any such Eur@ngy Rate Loan, or any other dealings in Dollars to
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be carried out pursuant to this Credit Agreemeneapect of any such Eurocurrency Rate Loan; @) itha TARGET Day, if such day relates to anyrege rat
settings as to a Eurocurrency Rate Loan denominiatédiro, any fundings, disbursements, settlemantspayments in Euro in respect of any such Eurenay
Rate Loan, or any other dealings in Euro to bei@dwut pursuant to this Credit Agreement in respéany such Eurocurrency Rate Loan; (c) on whiehlings ii
deposits in the relevant currency are conductedrsy between banks in the London or other applicafffhore interbank market for such currency, i€tsulay
relates to any interest rate settings as to a Hareecy Rate Loan denominated in a currency otieen Dollars or Euro; and (d) on which banks arendpe foreigr
exchange business in the principal financial ceotehe country of such currency, if such day edab any fundings, disbursements, settlementpayahents in
currency other than Dollars or Euro in respect dusocurrency Rate Loan denominated in a currertbgrahan Dollars or Euro, or any other dealingsiiy
currency other than Dollars or Euro to be carriatipursuant to this Credit Agreement in respearmf such Eurocurrency Rate Loan (other than amgydst rat
settings).

Eurocurrency Lending Officelnitially, the office of each Lender designatesdsach in Schedulel hereto; thereafter, such other office or officesd®nde
may from time to time notify BGI and the Adminiditee Agent in writing.

Eurocurrency RateFor any Interest Period with respect to a Eun@nay Rate Loan, a rate per annum determined bdneinistrative Agent pursuant
the following formula:

Eurocurrency Base Rate
1.00 — Eurocurrency Reserve Percentage

Eurocurrency Rate

Where,

“ Eurocurrency Base Rataneans:

(a) for such Interest Period the rate per annum equtiie¢ London Interbank Offered Rate_(“ LIBOR or a comparable or successor rate w
rate is approved by the Administrative Agent, aslighed on the applicable Reuters screen pageudr ather commercially available source providingr
quotations as may be designated by the Adminige&atigent from time to time) at approximately 11@én. (London time) two Business Days prior to
commencement of such Interest Period, for depositise relevant currency (for delivery on the fidgty of such Interest Period) with a term equiviate
such Interest Period; providéidat to the extent a comparable or successorgapproved by the Administrative Agent in connettigth any rate set for
in this definition, the approved rate shall be &apto the applicable Interest Period in a manoesistent with market practice; providefurtherthat to th
extent such market practice is not administratiielgsible for the Administrative Agent, such apmdwate shall be applied in a manner as othe
reasonably determined by the Administrative Agenbvided, further, that, if such rate is below zero, it will be desito be zero.

(b) for any interest calculation with respect to a BRs¢e Loan on any date, the rate per annum equaB©OR, at approximately 11:00 a.
(London time) determined two Business Days priosuoh date for Dollar deposits being deliverechia tondon interbank market for a term of one m
commencing that day.

“ Eurocurrency Reserve Percentdgmeans, for any day during any Interest Periodrelerve percentage (expressed as a decimal, cautied five
decimal places) in effect on such day, whetherodrapplicable to any Lender, under regulationsadduom time to time by the Board of Governors
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of the Federal Reserve System of the United Sfatedetermining the maximum reserve requirementliting any emergency, supplemental or ¢
marginal reserve requirement) with respect to Eumenicy funding (currently referred to as “Euroemey Liabilities”). The Eurocurrency Rate for et
outstanding Eurocurrency Rate Loan shall be adjustéomatically as of the effective date of anyngin the Eurocurrency Reserve Percentage.

Eurocurrency Rate Loand oans bearing interest calculated by referendbed=urocurrency Rate. Eurocurrency Rate Loansimeagenominated in Dolle
or in an Alternative Currency. All Loans denomirthie an Alternative Currency must be EurocurreneyeR_oans.

Event of Default See §13.1.

Excluded Taxes With respect to the Administrative Agent, any tlen the Issuing Bank or any other recipient of payment to be made by or on acct
of any obligation of the Borrowers hereunder, éets imposed on or measured by its overall nenirc(however denominated), and franchise taxes ietpos i
(in lieu of net income taxes), by the jurisdicti@r any political subdivision thereof) under thewsaof which such recipient is organized or in whitshprincipa
office is located or, in the case of any Lenderwlmich its applicable Eurocurrency Lending Officelacated, (b) any branch profits taxes imposedhiyUnitec
States or any similar tax imposed by any othesgliction in which any Borrower is located, (c) dmgckup withholding tax that is required by the Cdolde
withheld from amounts payable to a Lender that faded to comply with clause (A) of 85.12.5(b), () the case of a Foreign Lender (other than aigaes¢
pursuant to a request by a Borrower under 85.11),United States withholding tax that (i) is requairto be imposed on amounts payable to such Fotsigde
pursuant to the Laws in force at the time such igareender becomes a party hereto (or designatesvaEurocurrency Lending Office) or (i) is attrible to suc
Foreign Lendes failure or inability (other than as a result d@laange in Law) to comply with clause (B) of §55(B), except to the extent that such Foreign Le
(or its assignor, if any) was entitled, at the tiofielesignation of a new Eurocurrency Lending @fffor assignment), to receive additional amourisifa Borrowe
with respect to such withholding tax pursuant tol85L(b) or §5.12.3, and (e) in the case of a garéender, taxes imposed on any “withholdable paynas ¢
result of the failure of such recipient of such @yt to satisfy the applicable requirements afostt in FATCA.

Existing Credit AgreementAs defined in the preamble hereto.

Existing Maturity Date See §3.4(a).

Existing Senior DebtIndebtedness of BGI and its Subsidiaries in eris¢ as of the Closing Date and listed on Schedilileereof.

Existing Subordinated Debindebtedness of BGI incurred pursuant to thetiexgsSubordinated Debt Transactions.

Existing Subordinated Debt Transactiorihe convertible senior subordinated debt offexing BGI of the Existing Subordinated Notes.

Existing Subordinated NoteS'he 3.375% Convertible Senior Subordinated Ndtes2027 issued by BGI on March 12, 2007.

Extending Lender See 83.4(e).
Facility Fee. See §2.2.
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FASB ASC. The Accounting Standards Codification of the Ritial Accounting Standards Board.

FATCA . Means Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Codeamydregulation or official interpretations therggicluding any revenue ruling, rever
procedure, notice or similar guidance issued byuthiged States Internal Revenue Service thereunder)

Federal Funds Rate~or any day, the rate per annum equal to theieigaverage of the rates on overnight Federalsfirashsactions with members of
Federal Reserve System arranged by Federal fuoliedsron such day, as published by the FederalMReBank of New York on the Business Day next sado&
such day; providethat (a) if such day is not a Business Day, theeR#d~unds Rate for such day shall be such ratsuch transactions on the next prece
Business Day as so published on the next succe&disigess Day, and (b) if no such rate is so phaetison such next succeeding Business Day, the &ldelend:
Rate for such day shall be the average rate chaogBdnk of America on such day on such transastamdetermined by the Administrative Agent.

Fee Letter The fee letter dated August 22, 2011 among B@hkBof America, N.A. and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Frem & Smith Incorporated.

Fees. Collectively, the Facility Fee, the Letter of @ieFees, the Administrative AgestFee and the Upfront Fees paid to the Lenderdbtairothei
commitments hereunder.

Financial Affiliate. A Subsidiary of the bank holding company coningilany Lender, which Subsidiary is engaging in ahthe activities permitted by §4
(e) of the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 (12 L£:S§1843).

Foreign Lender Any Lender that is organized under the Laws pfresdiction other than that in which any Borrowerresident for tax purposes (includ
such a Lender when acting in the capacity of thaiig Bank). For purposes of this definition, theited States, each State thereof and the DistriCotumbia sha
be deemed to constitute a single jurisdiction.

Fronting Exposure At any time there is a Defaulting Lender, (a)hwiespect to the Issuing Bank, such Defaulting leg'sdCommitment Percentage of
outstanding Letter of Credit Obligations other thaatter of Credit Obligations as to which such D#tiag Lenders participation obligation has been reallocate
other Lenders or Cash Collateralized in accordanmitie the terms hereof, and (b) with respect to $iwéng Line Lender, such Defaulting LendeCommitmer
Percentage of Swing Line Loans other than Swing lLinans as to which such Defaulting Lendgrarticipation obligation has been reallocatedtt®r Lenders «
Cash Collateralized in accordance with the termedfe

GAAP or generally accepted accounting principlés) When used herein, whether directly or indlyethrough reference to a capitalized term useueim
means (i) principles that are consistent with thiegiples promulgated or adopted by the Financied@unting Standards Board and its predecessoe$fect on th
Balance Sheet Date, subject to Section 1.3, antb(the extent consistent with such principles, glccounting practice of BGI, and (b) when usedeneral, othe
than as provided above, means principles thatiposistent with the principles promulgated opptgd by the Financial Accounting Standards Boand! it
predecessors, as in effect from time to time, @hddnsistently applied with past financial statmts of BGI applying the same principles.

Governing Documents With respect to any Person, its certificate dickss of incorporation, its blaws and all shareholder agreements, voting trast
similar arrangements applicable to any of its GdyBtock.
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Governmental Authority Any foreign, federal, state, regional, local, ntipal or other government, or any department, cission, board, bureau, ager
public authority or instrumentality thereof, or argyurt or arbitrator.

Guaranteed Pension Pladny employee pension benefit plan within the niegrof §3(2) of ERISA maintained or contributedkip any Borrower or ar
ERISA Affiliate the benefits of which are guarardesn termination in full or in part by the PBGC puant to Title IV of ERISA, other than a Multiempéy Plan.

Guarantor. Collectively, all of, and individually, any of as set forth in the BGI Guaranty, BGI, (b) asfeeh in the Barnes Luxembourg Guaranty, Ba
Luxembourg, (c) as set forth the Barnes Switzerland Guaranty, Barnes Swanek| (d) as set forth in the Barnes Germany Guar8arnes Germany, and (e) e
Subsidiary or Acquired Business that enters inBuaranty in favor of the Lenders and the AdmintsteaAgent.

Guaranty. The amended and restated guaranty dated as ofatherequired by 86.1 from each Person requirdsetmme a Guarantor pursuant to §6
favor of the Administrative Agent and the Lendénsgach case of the payment and performance dltigations in the form of ExhibE attached hereto.

Hazardous SubstanceSee 87.15(b).

Honor Date See §4.3.

Indebtedness As to any Person and whether recourse is setwrext is otherwise available against all or onlpation of the assets of such Person
whether or not contingent, but without duplication:

(a) all indebtedness arising from borrowed money amdlai monetary obligations, whether direct or iedir,

(b) all indebtedness of others secured by angigage, pledge, security interest, lien, chargegtber encumbrance existing on property owne
such Person or any of its Subsidiaries or acquiseduch Person or any of its Subsidiaries subfeareto, whether or not the Indebtedness secureelty
shall have been assumed;

(c) all indebtedness for the deferred purchase priceraperty or services (other than current tradeilliées incurred in the ordinary course
business and payable in accordance with custontagfipes and accrued expenses incurred in theadgourse of business);

(d) all Attributable Debt of such Person with respecsale and leaseback transactions of such Person;

(e) all guarantees, endorsements and other contindpigations, in respect of Indebtedness of otherduding (i) any obligation to supply fur
to or in any manner to invest in, directly or ireditly, the debtor, to purchase Indebtedness, orsiore the owner of Indebtedness against lossudftrau
agreement to purchase goods, supplies or servicethé purpose of enabling the debtor to make payroé the Indebtedness held by such owne
otherwise, (ii) any obligation of any partnershipwhich such Person or any of its Subsidiaries geaeral partner and (iii) any obligation to maiin
working capital, equity capital or other financ&htement condition or liquidity of the primary igar so as to enable the primary obligor to payhguémary
obligation;
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(f) the obligations of such Person to reimburse theeis respect of any letters of credit issuedtiieraccount of such Person or whereupon
Person is responsible for payment thereof;

(g) every obligation of such Person under any Capédlizease;
(h) every obligation of such Person under any Synthedase;

(i) all sales by such Person, other than the salesopditing of receivables in the ordinary courséudiness in connection with the collec
thereof, of (i) accounts for money due or to becatue, (ii) chattel paper, instruments or documengsiting or evidencing a right to payment of mone
(iii) other receivables (collectively “ receivabl§sand;

()  every obligation of such Person under any forwawdtract, futures contract, swap, option or othearficing agreement or arrangen
(including, without limitation, caps, floors, calfaand similar agreements), the settlement valwehich is dependent upon interest rates, currerciiang
rates, commodities or other indices (a “ DerivatBantract’).

The “ amount or “ principal amount’ of any Indebtedness at any time of determinatipnesented by (t) any Indebtedness, issued at @ {brét is less th:
the principal amount at maturity thereof, shallthe amount of the liability in respect thereof detmed in accordance with GAAP, (u) any Capitalitedse she
be the principal component of the aggregate ofénéal obligations under such Capitalized Leasebplgyover the term thereof that is not subjecetmination b
the lessee, (v) any sale of receivables shall beathount of unrecovered capital or principal inwesit of the purchaser (other than BGI or any of 'B@iholly-
owned Subsidiaries) thereof, excluding amountsesprtative of yield or interest earned on suchstment, (w) any Synthetic Lease shall be the siipdl los
value, termination value or other equivalent amp(jtany Derivative Contract shall be the net maxin amount of any termination or loss payment meghio b
paid by such Person if such derivative contractewat the time of determination, to be terminatgddason of any event of default or early termomatéeven
thereunder, whether or not such event of defautiaoly termination event has in fact occurred afyy equity related purchase obligation shall benthgimum fixe«
redemption or purchase price thereof inclusiverof accrued and unpaid dividends to be compriseshialh redemption or purchase price and (z) any gtiara
other contingent liability referred to in clausg ghall be an amount equal to the stated or detedsie amount of the primary obligation in respdcivhich sucl
guaranty or other contingent obligation is madeifonot stated or determinable, the maximum realynanticipated liability in respect thereof (assngnsucl
Person is required to perform thereunder) as détedrby such Person in good faith.

Indemnified Party See §14.7.

Indemnified Taxes Taxes other than Excluded Taxes.
Indemnitee See §16.3.

Interest Payment Date(a) As to any Base Rate Loan, the last Business @ the calendar quarter with respect to inteagsrued during such calen
quarter, including, without limitation, the calemdpuarter which includes the Drawdown Date of sBelse Rate Loan; and (b) as to any Eurocurrency IR&a ir
respect of which the Interest Period is (i) 3 merdhless, the last day of such Interest Period(@nehore than 3 months, the date that is 3 moffribim the first da
of such Interest Period and, in addition, the dast of such Interest Period.

Interest Period With respect to each Loan, (a) initially, theipdrcommencing on the Drawdown Date of such Loaheding on the last day of one of
periods set forth below, as selected by a Borrower




-16 -

in a Loan Request or as otherwise required byeimd of this Credit Agreement (i) for any Base Ratan, the last Business Day of the calendar guatel (ii) foi
any Eurocurrency Rate Loan, 1, 2, 3, or 6 monthd; (&) thereafter, each period commencing on tsieday of the next preceding Interest Period appleto suc
Loan and ending on the last day of one of the dsrget forth above, as selected by a BorrowerGoraversion Request; providéaht all of the foregoing provisio
relating to Interest Periods are subject to thiefahg:

(A) if any Interest Period with respect to a EurocuryeRate Loan would otherwise end on a day thabisanEurocurrency Business Day,
Interest Period shall be extended to the next sding Eurocurrency Business Day unless the refsltich extension would be to carry such InteresioH
into another calendar month, in which event sutérést Period shall end on the immediately preceBurocurrency Business Day;

(B) if a Borrower shall fail to give notice as provided82.7, such Borrower shall be deemed to haveesigd a conversion of the affec
Eurocurrency Rate Loan to a Base Rate Loan andatignuance of all Base Rate Loans as Base Rateslarathe last day of the then current InterespB
with respect thereto;

(C) any Interest Period relating to any EurocurrencieRaan that begins on the last Eurocurrency Bussifzay of a calendar month (or on a
for which there is no numerically corresponding @fajhe calendar month at the end of such Intd?esibd) shall end on the last Eurocurrency Busiibes;
of a calendar month; and

(D) any Interest Period that would otherwise extendbhédythe Loan Maturity Date shall end on the Loartuvity Date.

Investments All expenditures made and all liabilities incudrécontingently or otherwise) for the acquisitiohstock or Indebtedness of, or for lo¢
advances, capital contributions or transfers operty to, or in respect of any guaranties (or ottenmitments as described under Indebtednesshligations of
any Person (other than the Person making such ditpes or incurring such liability). In determinintpe aggregate amount of Investments outstandirany
particular time: (a) the amount of any Investmemprresented by a guaranty shall be taken at notHassthe principal amount of the obligations gntead and sti
outstanding; (b) there shall be deducted in respleeich such Investment any amount received asienrof capital (but only by repurchase, redemmptietiremen
repayment, liquidating dividend or liquidating dikution); (c) there shall not be deducted in resé any Investment any amounts received as egsrom suc
Investment, whether as dividends, interest or etlser; and (d) there shall not be deducted fromaifpgregate amount of Investments any decrease inatlie
thereof.

ISP . With respect to any Letter of Credit, the “Intational Standby Practices 1998iblished by the Institute of International Bankiraw & Practice (c
such later version thereof as may be in effedtatitme of issuance).

Issuer DocumentsWith respect to a Letter of Credit, the LetteiQgdit Application, and any other document, agreinand instrument entered into by
Issuing Bank and any of the Borrowers (or any efrtBubsidiaries) or in favor of the Issuing Bamkl aelating to such Letter of Credit.

Issuing Bank Bank of America or any other Lender that agreesct as an Issuing Bank, in each case in its @gmaissuer of Letters of Credit hereun
or any successor issuer of Letters of Credit hateuriThe Issuing Bank may arrange, with the coneétihe Borrowers, for one or more Letters of Credibe
issued by the Issuing Bank’s Affiliates, in whichkse the term “Issuing Bank” shall include any
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such Affiliate with respect to Letters of Credisuiged by such Affiliate. Nothing herein shall be med to restrict the right of the Issuing Bank tsuis letters ¢
credit outside of this Credit Agreement.

Judgment CurrencySee 816.16.

Laws. Collectively, all international, foreign, Federatate and local statutes, treaties, rules, guielel regulations, ordinances, codes and admitiisrar
judicial precedents or authorities, including theefpretation or administration thereof by any Gaweental Authority charged with the enforcementeipretatiol
or administration thereof, and all applicable adstmtive orders, directed duties, requests, liesnguthorizations and permits of, and agreemeiits an)
Governmental Authority, in each case whether ohaweing the force of law.

Lender Affiliate . (a) With respect to any Lender, (i) an Affiliabé such Lender or (ii) any entity (whether a cogimn, partnership, limited liabili
company, trust or legal entity) that is engagednaking, purchasing, holding or otherwise investimdpank loans and similar extensions of credithia ordinar
course of its business and is administered or mehby such Lender or an Affiliate of such Lended ém) with respect to any Lender that is a fundaitinvests i
bank loans and similar extensions of credit, afmeoentity (whether a corporation, partnershipjtkah liability company, trust or other legal enjityat is a fun
that invests in bank loans and similar extensioneredit and is managed by the same investmentsadws such Lender or by an Affiliate of such irmresn
advisor.

Lender Election Notice DateSee §3.4(b).

Lenders. Bank of America and the other lending institusidisted on Schedulel hereto and any other Person (a) who becomes agnassbf any rights ai
obligations of a Lender pursuant to 815 or (b) Iee® a Lender pursuant to the provisions of §2.3.1.

Lending Office. As to any Lender, the office or offices of suatnter described as such in such LerslAdministrative Questionnaire, or such other e
or offices as a Lender may from time to time notifg Borrowers and the Administrative Agent.

Letter of Credit Standby and documentary letters of credit ishiedunder. Letters of Credit may be issued in P®ka in an Alternative Currency.

Letter of Credit Advance With respect to each Lender, such Lersléunding of its participation in any Letter of @ieBorrowing in accordance with
Commitment Percentage. All Letter of Credit Advaseball be denominated in Dollars.

Letter of Credit Application An application and agreement for the issuancaneendment of a Letter of Credit in the form fromeito time in use by tl
Issuing Bank.

Letter of Credit Borrowing An extension of credit resulting from a drawingder any Letter of Credit which has not been reirad on the date when mi
or refinanced as a Revolving Credit Loan. All Letté Credit Borrowings shall be denominated in ol

Letter of Credit Expiration DateWith respect to Letters of Credit, an expiry datelater than the date which is the earlier ob(igyear after the issuan
thereof (provided that such Letter of Credit maptein customary “evergreergrovisions) and (ii) fourteen (14) days (or, if thetter of Credit is confirmed by
confirmer or otherwise provides for one or more iv@ated persons, forty-five (45) days) prior to ttean Maturity Date.
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Letter of Credit Fee See §4.10.

Letter of Credit Obligations As at any date of determination, the aggregattawn amount of all outstanding Letters of Creditspthe aggregate of
Unpaid Reimbursement Obligations, including allteetof Credit Borrowings. For purposes of computihg amount available to be drawn under any Lett
Credit, the amount of such Letter of Credit shalldetermined in accordance with 81.3. For all psegoof this Credit Agreement, if on any date otduaination .
Letter of Credit has expired by its terms but amoant may still be drawn thereunder by reason efdperation of Rule 3.14 of the ISP, such LetteCw&dit sha
be deemed to be “outstanding” in the amount so inavailable to be drawn.

Letter of Credit ParticipationSee §4.1.5.

Letter of Credit Sublimit An amount equal to $50,000,000. The Letter ofd@r®ublimit is part of, and not in addition togtfiotal Commitments.

Leverage Ratio See §10.2.

Lien . Any mortgage, deed of trust, security intere$¢dge, hypothecation, assignment, attachment, depoangement, encumbrance, lien (statu
judgment or otherwise), or other security agreenmenpreferential arrangement of any kind or natwteatsoever (including any conditional sale or ottige
retention agreement, any Capitalized Lease, anyh8iio Lease, any financing lease involving sulisa#iy the same economic effect as any of the foieg and th
filing of any financing statement under the UCQGzomparable law of any jurisdiction).

Loan(s). The Revolving Credit Loan(s) made by the Lenderthe Borrowers pursuant to §2, including the $mlime Loans advanced by the Swing L
Lender under §2.6.2.

Loan Documents This Credit Agreement, the Notes, the GuarantiesBG| Guaranty, the Barnes Luxembourg Guaraght/Barnes Switzerland Guaral
the Barnes Germany Guaranty, any agreement creatipgrfecting rights in Cash Collateral pursuanthie provisions of 85.13 of this Credit Agreeméhné, Lette
of Credit Applications, and the Letters of Credit.

Loan Parties Collectively, the Borrowers and each other Pef@ther than the Administrative Agent, the IssuB&nk, or any Lender) executing a Lt
Document.

Loan RequestSee §2.6.

Loan Maturity Date The later of (i) September 27, 2018 and (i) Htarity is extended pursuant to 83.4, with respedxtending Lenders, such exten
maturity date as determined pursuant to such Sectio

Luxembourg SubsidiariesBarnes Luxembourg and Barnes Group Luxembourg 2N8.a r.l., each a private limited liability cpamy organized under t
Laws of Luxembourg, and wholly-owned SubsidiarieB@61.

Mandatory Cost Any amount incurred periodically by any Lenderidg the term of the Facility which constitutes$geosts or charges imposed on ler
generally in the jurisdiction in which such Lendgedomiciled, subject to regulation, or has itsikigdOffice by any Governmental Authority.

Material Adverse Effect With respect to any event or occurrence of whateature (including any adverse determinationnn litigation, arbitration ¢
governmental investigation or proceeding):
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(@) a material adverse effect on the business, pregsertiondition (financial or otherwise), assets,rafens or income of any of BGI and
Subsidiaries, taken as a whole;

(b) an adverse effect on the ability of any of BGI oy ather obligor, individually and taken as a whdle perform any of their respect
Obligations under any of the Loan Documents to Wiitiés a party; or

(c) any material impairment of the validity, bindingeft or enforceability of this Credit Agreementany of the other Loan Documents, or
material impairment of the rights, remedies or fighavailable to the Administrative Agent or angrider under any Loan Document.

Maximum Drawing Amount The maximum Dollar Equivalent amount of the aggte amount that the beneficiaries may at any tirme/ under outstandil
Letters of Credit, as such aggregate amount magdweed from time to time pursuant to the termshefLetters of Credit.

Moody's. Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. and any succetsreto.

Multiemployer Plan Any employee benefit plan of the type describe84001(a)(3) of ERISA, to which BGI or any ERISAfilate makes or is obligate
to make contributions, or during the preceding filen years, has made or been obligated to makeimations.

Multiple Employer Plan A Plan which has two or more contributing spoeg@ncluding a Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate) kgast two of whom are n
under common control, as such a plan is describ@d064 of ERISA.

Non-Extending Lender See §3.4(b).

Non-Extension Notice DateSee §4.2.

Non-U.S.Lender. See §5.2.3.
Notes. See §2.4.
Note Record A Record with respect to a Note.

Obligations. All indebtedness, obligations and liabilities afly of BGI, Barnes Germany, Barnes Luxembourg, 8ar8witzerland, and any of tr
Subsidiaries, as the case may be, including, witlimitation, the Barnes Germany Obligations, therigs Luxembourg Obligations and the Barnes Swaize
Obligations, to any of the Lenders and the Admiaiste Agent, individually or collectively, existinon the date of this Credit Agreement or arishreyeafter, dire
or indirect, joint or several, absolute or contingenatured or unmatured, liquidated or unliquidasecured or unsecured, arising by contract, tiperaf law o
otherwise, arising or incurred under this Creditéd@ment or any of the other Loan Documents orspeet of any of the Loans made or Reimbursemerig&ifuin:
incurred or any of the Notes, Letter of Credit Apation, Letter of Credit or other instruments ay ime evidencing any thereof.

OFAC. The Office of Foreign Assets Control of the Udittates Department of the Treasury.

Operating AccountsSee §2.6.2.
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Optional Subordinated Paymen#ny repayment, prepayment, redemption, repurchzesh payment or any other payment that may besrsaktly at th
option of the Borrowers, in connection with the eersion of Subordinated Debt.

Other Taxes All present or future stamp or documentary taxeany other excise or property taxes, chargegsiles levies arising from any payment mi

hereunder or under any other Loan Document or fiteenexecution, delivery or enforcement of, or otlise with respect to, this Credit Agreement or aftiye
Loan Document.

Overnight Rate For any day, (a) with respect to any amount dénated in Dollars, the greater of (i) the Federahd@s Rate and (ii) an overnight r
determined by the Administrative Agent, the IssuBank, or the Swing Line Lender, as the case mayrbaccordance with banking industry rules on risgalk
compensation, and (b) with respect to any amounbménated in an Alternative Currency, the rate riEiiest per annum at which overnight deposits @
applicable Alternative Currency, in an amount agpnately equal to the amount with respect to wtsabh rate is being determined, would be offeredsimh da
by a branch or Affiliate of Bank of America in theplicable offshore interbank market for such auryeto major banks in such interbank market.

Participant See §15.4.

Participating Member StateEach state so described in any EMU Legislation.

PBGC. The Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation.
Pension Act The Pension Protection Act of 2006.
Pension Funding RulesThe rules of the Code and ERISA regarding minimraguired contributions (including any installm@atyment thereof) to Pens

Plans and set forth in, with respect to plan yearding prior to the effective date of the Pensiat, 8412 of the Code and 8302 of ERISA, each adfect prior tc
the Pension Act and, thereafter, 88412, 430, 432 ,ahd 436 of the Code and §8302, 303, 304 an®BHERISA.

Pension Plan Any employee pension benefit plan (including altisle Employer Plan or a Multiemployer Plan) thatmaintained or is contributed to
BGI and any ERISA Affiliate and is either coveredTitle IV of ERISA or is subject to the minimumrfding standards under 8412 of the Code.

Performance Letter of CreditAny Letter of Credit issued to support contrattfaligations for supply, service or constructiamtracts, including, but n
limited to, bid, performance, advance payment, argy, retention, availability and defects liabildpligations.

Permitted Liens Liens permitted by §9.2.

Person. Any individual, corporation, limited liability capany partnership, limited liability partnershipydt, other unincorporated association, busine:
other legal entity, and any Governmental Authority.

Platform. See §8.4.

Public Lender. See §8.4.
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Real Estate All real property at any time owned or leasedléssee or sublessee) by BGI or any of its Subriédia

Record. The grid attached to a Note, or the continuatibsuch grid, or any other similar record, incluglitomputer records, maintained by any Lender
respect to any Loan referred to in such Note.

Regqister. See §15.3.

Reimbursement Obligation BGI's, Barnes Germany's, Barnes Luxembourg’s andBarnes Switzerland’ obligation, as applicable, to reimburse
Administrative Agent and the Lenders on accourdrof drawing under any Letter of Credit as provige§4.2.

Related PartiesWith respect to any specified Person, such Péssafiiliates and the respective directors, officegmployees, agents and advisors of
Person and such Person’s Affiliates.

Reportable EventAny of the events set forth in Section 4043(cEBISA, other than events for which the 30 dayagefieriod has been waived.

Requested Extension DatS8ee §3.4(a).

Requested Extension Notice Datgee 83.4(a).

Required LendersAs of any date, the Lenders holding more thag fiercent (50%) of the outstanding principal antafrthe Notes on such date; and i
such principal is outstanding, the Lenders whosgreggate Commitments constitute more than fifty petq50%) of the Total Commitment; providéuht the
Commitment of, and the portion of the Total Comneitits held or deemed held by, any Defaulting Lestetl be excluded for purposes of making a deteatiur
of Required Lenders.

Responsible Officer The president, chief executive officer, chiefaficial officer, vice president-controller, vice gidenttreasurer, treasurer or assis
treasurer of a Loan Party. Any document deliverecetinder that is signed by a Responsible Officex bban Party shall be conclusively presumed teeHzee
authorized by all necessary corporate, partnemshédor other action on the part of such Loan Pamnty such Responsible Officer shall be conclusipesumed t
have acted on behalf of such Loan Party.

Restricted Payment In relation to the Borrowers and their Subsidigsiany (a) Distribution, (b) payment or prepaymeytthe Borrowers or the
Subsidiaries to any of the Borrowers’ or any Suiasjds shareholders (or other equity holders), in easle cother than to the Borrowers, or to any Afiliaf any o
the Borrowers or any Subsidiary of any Affiliate afiy of the Borrowers or such Subsidiarghareholders (or other equity holders), or (cjvdéves or othe
transactions with any financial institution, comrit@$ or stock exchange or clearinghouse (a “ DetiesCounterparty’) obligating any of the Borrowers or &
Subsidiary to make payments to such Derivativesn@owparty as a result of any change in market vafuany Capital Stock of any of the Borrowers och
Subsidiary.

Revaluation Date With respect to any Loan, each of the followi(ij:each Drawdown Date of a Eurocurrency Rate Ldanominated in an Alternati
Currency, (ii) each date of a continuation of adeurrency Rate Loan denominated in an Alternativer€cy pursuant to §82.7, and (iii) such additictezties as tt
Administrative Agent shall determine or the Reqgditenders shall require. With respect to any LetfeCredit, each of the following: (i) each dateisguance of
Letter of Credit denominated in an Alternative @mey, (ii) each date of an amendment of any sudtetef Credit having the effect of increasing #maoun
thereof (solely with respect to the increased amo(ii) each date of any payment by the Issuir@nB under any Letter of Credit denominated in ateriative
Currency, and (iv) such
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additional dates as the Administrative Agent orlgseiing Bank shall determine or the Required Lendball require.

Revolving Credit Loans Revolving credit loans (including, without limitan, the BGI Loans, the Barnes Germany LoansBéames Luxembourg Loa
and the Barnes Switzerland Loans) made or to beerbpdhe Lenders to BGI, Barnes Germany, Barneginiourg and Barnes Switzerland pursuant to 82.

S&P . Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, a divisioitted McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. and any succedsereto.

Sale Leaseback TransactioAny arrangement, directly or indirectly, whereB@| or any domestic Subsidiary of BGI sells or sfems any property own
by it in order then or thereafter to lease suclperty or lease other property that BGI or such dsimeéSubsidiary of BGI intends to use for substlhtithe sam
purpose as the property being sold or transferred.

Same Day FundsWith respect to disbursements and payments (Bplfars, immediately available funds, and (b) mAdternative Currency, same day
other funds as may be determined by the Adminis&gaigent or the Issuing Bank, as the case maydoee customary in the place of disbursement omeay fol
the settlement of international banking transatiorthe relevant Alternative Currency.

Sanction(s). Any international economic sanction administecedenforced by the United States Government (inntydwithout limitation, OFAC), th
United Nations Security Council, the European Unidar Majesty’s Treasury or other relevant sanctianthority.

Senior Leverage RatioSee §10.3.

Significant Subsidiary Each Subsidiary of BGI which in the most recdstdl year of the Borrowers accounted for more tteanpercent (10%) of t
Consolidated Total Assets for each of the mostnetteee fiscal years of the Borrowers; provideowaver, that with respect to Subsidiaries createdcquiret
after the date hereof, if thereafter such entityg fiscal year, accounts for more than ten per@) of the Consolidated Total Assets in suctefiyear, it shall k
deemed to be a Significant Subsidiary for suchafigear.

Special Notice Currency At any time, an Alternative Currency, other thithe currency of a country that is a member of thga@ization for Econom
Cooperation and Development at such time locatédbimh America or Europe.

Spot Rate For a currency, the rate determined by the Adstiafive Agent or the Issuing Bank, as applicatdeye the rate quoted by the Person actii
such capacity as the spot rate for the purchassubli Person of such currency with another currehoyugh its principal foreign exchange trading fia
approximately 11:00 a.m. on the date two BusinesgsDprior to the date as of which the foreign ergeacomputation is made; provid#tht the Administrativ
Agent or the Issuing Bank may obtain such spot frae another financial institution designated by tAdministrative Agent or the Issuing Bank if tRersol
acting in such capacity does not have as of the dfatletermination a spot buying rate for any suastrency; and providefurther that the Issuing Bank may t
such spot rate quoted on the date as of whichottegégihh exchange computation is made in the caseyf etter of Credit denominated in an Alternaierency.

Sterlingand_£. The lawful currency of the United Kingdom.

Subordinated DehtIndebtedness of BGI or any of its Subsidiaried th expressly subordinated and made junior tg#yenent and performance in full
the Obligations, and evidenced as such by a
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written instrument containing subordination proeis in form and substance approved by the Admatiser Agent after consultation with the Requiredhdlers
including without limitation the Existing Subordileal Debt.

Subsidiary. Any corporation, association, trust, or otheribess entity of which the designated parent shiaing time own directly or indirectly througl
Subsidiary or Subsidiaries at least a majorityrfbynber of votes) of the outstanding Voting Stock.

Swing Line Borrowing A borrowing of a Swing Line Loan pursuant to §2.9

Swing Line Lender Bank of America in its capacity as lender of Syvirine Loans hereunder.

Swing Line Loan(s) See §2.9.

Swing Line Loan RequestA request for a Swing Line Borrowing pursuang§®9.2, which, if in writing, shall be substantailh the form of ExhibiB-2 .

Swing Line Sublimit. An amount equal to the lesser of (a) $20,0008080 (b) the Total Commitments. The Swing Line Sutilis part of, and not
addition to, the Total Commitments.

Swiss Franor SwF. The lawful currency of Switzerland.
Syndication AgentsAs defined in the preamble hereto.

Synthetic Lease Any lease of goods or other property, whetherae@ersonal, which is treated as an operatingdemder GAAP and as a loan or finan
for U.S. income tax purposes.

TARGET Day. Any day on which the Trans-European AutomatedlHieee Gross Settlement Express Transfer (TARGET)rgayt system (or, if su
payment system ceases to be operative, such odlyeregmt system (if any) determined by the AdmintateaAgent to be a suitable replacement) is operttfe
settlement of payments in Euro.

Taxes. All present or future taxes, levies, imposts,ieljtdeductions, withholdings (including backuphhitlding), assessments, fees or other ch
imposed by any Governmental Authority, includiny @merest, additions to tax or penalties applieabkreto.

Total Commitment The sum of the Commitments of the Lenders, asffiect from time to time, which amount, as of thiesihg Date shall not exce
$500,000,000, which amount may be increased oedsed from time to time in accordance with thisdEégreement.

Type. As to any Loan, its nature as a Base Rate Loankarrocurrency Rate Loan.

Unpaid Reimbursement Obligationy Reimbursement Obligation for which the applite= Borrower does not reimburse the Administrafigent and th
Lenders on the date specified in, and in accorduiitte §4.2.

Voting Stock. Stock or similar interests, of any class or @aghiowever designated), the holders of which atleeatime entitled, as such holders, to vot
the election of a majority of the directors (orgmrs performing similar functions) of the corparatiassociation, trust or other business entitplired, whether ¢
not the right so to vote exists by reason of thgpleaing of a contingency.

1.2. Rules of Interpretation .




-24-

(&) A reference to any document or agreement shallidecbkuch document or agreement as amended, modifigplemented from time to til
in accordance with its terms and the terms of@idit Agreement.

(b) The singular includes the plural and the pluraliides the singular.

(c) Areference to any law includes any amendment datification to such law.

(d) A reference to any Person includes its permitte¢essors and permitted assigns.
(e) The words “include”, “includes” and “including” aret limiting.

(f)  All terms not specifically defined herein or by GRAwhich terms are defined in the Uniform CommeérCiade as in effect in the State of N
York, have the meanings assigned to them theréih,the term “_instrumeritbeing that defined under Article 9 of the Unifo@@mmercial Code.

(g) Reference to a particular “8” refers to that settd this Credit Agreement unless otherwise in@idat

(h) The words “herein”, “hereof”, “hereundednd words of like import shall refer to this Credigreement as a whole and not to any parti
section or subdivision of this Credit Agreement.

(i) Unless otherwise expressly indicated, in the coatfr of periods of time from a specified date tatar specified date, the word “fromiean
“from and including,” the words “to” and “until” & mean “to but excluding,” and the word “through&ans “to and including.”

()) This Credit Agreement and the other Loan Documenatg use several different limitations, tests or sae@aments to regulate the same or sir
matters. All such limitations, tests and measuremare, however, cumulative and are to be perfoimedcordance with the terms thereof.

(k)  This Credit Agreement and the other Loan Documargshe result of negotiation among, and have bedawed by counsel to, among oth
the Administrative Agent and the Borrowers andtheeproduct of discussions and negotiations amémungies. Accordingly, this Credit Agreement ahéd
other Loan Documents are not intended to be coedtagainst the Administrative Agent or any of trendlers merely on account of the Administre
Agent’s or any Lender’s involvement in the preparabf such documents.

1.3. Accounting Terms. (1) All accounting terms not specifically or comiglly defined herein shall be construed in confoymiith, and all financial da
(including financial ratios and other financial @alations) required to be submitted pursuant te @riedit Agreement shall be prepared in conformity,
GAAP applied on a consistent basis, as in effeatnftime to time, applied in a manner consistenhwitat used in preparing the Audited Finar
Statements, excepis otherwise specifically prescribed herein. Ndtstinding the foregoing, for purposes of deterngiriompliance with any coven:
(including the computation of any financial covet)aontained herein, Indebtedness of the BGI am&itbsidiaries shall be deemed to be carried &6dl
the outstanding principal amount thereof, and ffects of FASB ASC 825 on financial liabilities $hiae disregarded.

(@) Changes in GAAP If at any time any change in GAAP would affea tomputation of any financial ratio or requiremsett forth in any Loe
Document, and either BGI or the Required




-25-

Lenders shall so request, the Administrative Ag#re, Lenders and BGI shall negotiate in good fetamend such ratio or requirement to preserv
original intent thereof in light of such changeGAAP (subject to the approval of the Required Lesggrovidedthat, until so amended, (i) such ratic
requirement shall continue to be computed in aawrd with GAAP prior to such change therein andB@! shall provide to the Administrative Agent :
the Lenders financial statements and other docsmenuired under this Credit Agreement or as restsgrrequested hereunder setting forth a recotioiti
between calculations of such ratio or requiremeaderbefore and after giving effect to such chand@AAP. Notwithstanding any other provision con&
herein, all terms of an accounting or financialunatused herein shall be construed, and all cortipngaof amounts and ratios referred to hereinl 4i&
made without giving effect to any change to leasmanting rules from those in effect on the Closiage pursuant to Accounting Standards Codifici
840 and other lease accounting guidance as inteffethe Closing Date unless the parties heretlh shier into a mutually acceptable amendment axiine
such changes, as provided for above.

1.4. Letter of Credit Amounts .

Unless otherwise specified herein, the amountladteer of Credit at any time shall be deemed tohieeDollar Equivalent of the stated amount of suetter
of Credit in effect at such time;_providedhowever, that with respect to any Letter of Credit that,its terms or the terms of any Issuer Documersiteel theret
provides for one or more automatic increases instaged amount thereof, the amount of such Left€redit shall be deemed to be the Dollar Equiviatfithe
maximum stated amount of such Letter of Creditrafteing effect to all such increases, whetheratrsuch maximum stated amount is in effect at $inch.

1.5. Exchange Rates; Currency Equivalents

(@ The Administrative Agent or the Issuing Bank, aplaable, shall determine the Spot Rates as of &&Valuation Date to be used
calculating Dollar Equivalent amounts of the Loathe Maximum Drawing Amount of any outstanding keettof Credit and the Unpaid Reimburser
Obligations denominated in Alternative Currencisch Spot Rates shall become effective as of seellRation Date and shall be the Spot Rates emg
in converting any amounts between the applicableengies until the next Revaluation Date to ocExcept for purposes of financial statements dedigdn
Loan Parties hereunder or calculating financialecmnts hereunder or except as otherwise providesinhéhe applicable amount of any currency (othar
Dollars) for purposes of the Loan Documents shalsbch Dollar Equivalent amount as so determinetheyAdministrative Agent or the Issuing Bank
applicable.

(b)  Wherever in this Credit Agreement in connectionhwat Loan, conversion, continuation or prepaymera @&urocurrency Rate Loan or
issuance, amendment or extension of a Letter afliCt@n amount, such as a required minimum or ipleltamount, is expressed in Dollars, but such L
Eurocurrency Rate Loan or Letter of Credit is deimated in an Alternative Currency, such amountidbalthe relevant Alternative Currency Equivalef
such Dollar amount, as determined by the AdmirtisaAgent or the Issuing Bank, as the case may be.

(c) The Administrative Agent does not warrant, nor @teesponsibility, nor shall the Administrative Agenave any liability with respect to 1
administration, submission or any other matterteeldo the quotation of rates in the definition‘Bfirocurrency Ratedr with respect to any comparable
successor rate thereto published by Reuters ootlngy commercially available source providing sgabtations relied on in good faith by the Admirasitre
Agent.
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1.6. Additional Alternative Currencies .

(@) A Borrower may from time to time request that Eunoency Rate Loans be made and/or Letters of Chedissued in a currency other t
those specifically listed in the definition of “A&lnative Currency;” providethat such requested currency is a lawful curremtiief than Dollars) that
readily available and freely transferable and catilvle into Dollars. In the case of any such requésh respect to the making of Eurocurrency Ratarts
such request shall be subject to the approvalefitiministrative Agent and the Lenders; and indgase of any such request with respect to the issua

Letters of Credit, such request shall be subjetitécapproval of the Administrative Agent and thguing Bank.

(b) Any such request shall be made to the Administeafigent not later than 11:00 a.m., twenty (20) Bess Days prior to the date of the des
Drawdown Date (or such other time or date as maggveed by the Administrative Agent and, in theeoafsany such request pertaining to Letters of T
the Issuing Bank, in its or their sole discretiolm).the case of any such request pertaining to ¢&urency Rate Loans, the Administrative Agent ¢
promptly notify each Lender thereof; and in theecaany such request pertaining to Letters of réue Administrative Agent shall promptly notifire
Issuing Bank thereof. Each Lender (in the casengfsuch request pertaining to Eurocurrency Raten&par the Issuing Bank (in the case of a rec
pertaining to Letters of Credit) shall notify theliinistrative Agent, not later than 11:00 a.m., (@) Business Days after receipt of such requésther i
consents, in its sole discretion, to the makinguwfocurrency Rate Loans or the issuance of Lette@redit, as the case may be, in such requestednmy.

(c) Any failure by a Lender or the Issuing Bank, as ¢hee may be, to respond to such request withitirtiee period specified in the preced
sentence shall be deemed to be a refusal by suddeker the Issuing Bank, as the case may be,rtoipEurocurrency Rate Loans to be made or Letté
Credit to be issued in such requested currendhelfAdministrative Agent and all the Lenders coms$emmaking Eurocurrency Rate Loans in such reqa
currency, the Administrative Agent shall so no#¢! and such currency shall thereupon be deemedllifpurposes to be an Alternative Currency heret
for purposes of the making of any Eurocurrency Ratns; and if the Administrative Agent and theulsg Bank consent to the issuance of Letters otlit
in such requested currency, the Administrative Agdall so notify BGI and such currency shall tlhiaen be deemed for all purposes to be an Altere
Currency hereunder for purposes of any Letter @d@rissuances. If the Administrative Agent shall fo obtain consent to any request for an acat
currency under this 81.6 the Administrative Agdmdlspromptly so notify BGI.

1.7. Change of Currency.

(a) Each obligation of any Borrower to make a paymemtaininated in the national currency unit of any renstate of the European Union
adopts the Euro as its lawful currency after thee deereof shall be redenominated into Euro at iflne bf such adoption (in accordance with the E
Legislation). If, in relation to the currency ofyasuch member state, the basis of accrual of isterepressed in this Credit Agreement in respec¢ha
currency shall be inconsistent with any conventiopractice in the London interbank market for faesis of accrual of interest in respect of the Esust
expressed basis shall be replaced by such conuemtipractice with effect from the date on whicklsmember state adopts the Euro as its lawful nayr,
providedthat if any Loan made in the currency of such manskegte is outstanding immediately prior to suctedauch replacement shall take effect,
respect to such Loan, at the end of the then culmégrest Period.
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(b) Each provision of this Credit Agreement shall bbejsct to such reasonable changes of constructitilea&dministrative Agent may from tir
to time specify to be appropriate to reflect the@in of the Euro by any member state of the EeaopUnion and any relevant market conventiol
practices relating to the Euro.

(c) Each provision of this Credit Agreement also sl subject to such reasonable changes of constnuat the Administrative Agent,
consultation with the Borrowers, may from time itne specify to be appropriate to reflect a chamgeuirrency of any other country and any relevantkel
conventions or practices relating to the changaimency.

2. THE REVOLVING CREDIT FACILITY

2.1. Commitment to Lend . Subject to the terms and conditions set forth ia @redit Agreement, each of the Lenders seveeghges to lend to BC
Barnes Germany, Barnes Luxembourg and/or Barnetz&veind, and BGI, Barnes Germany, Barnes Luxentbauad/or Barnes Switzerland may borrow, re
and reborrow from time to time from the Closing ®ap to but not including the Loan Maturity Dateonmotice by BGI, Barnes Germany, Barnes Luxemt
and/or Barnes Switzerland, as the case may bdet@dAdministrative Agent given in accordance with6Zuch sums, in Dollars or in one or more Alt&um
Currencies, as are requested by such Borrower apriaximum aggregate amount outstanding (aftengieffect to all amounts requested) at any one &mel t
such Lender's Commitment minssch Lendes Commitment Percentage of the sum of the Maximuawihg Amount and all Unpaid Reimbursement Obligas
providedthat the sum of the outstanding amount of the Ldafter giving effect to all amounts requested)sghe Maximum Drawing Amount and all Unp
Reimbursement Obligations shall not at any timeeericthe Total Commitment at such time; and providedither, that (in the case of any such requested
denominated in Alternative Currencies) the outstamgbrincipal amount of the Loans denominated iteAdative Currencies (after giving effect to all amts
requested) shall not exceed the Alternative Cugreédublimit. The Loans shall be made petain accordance with each LendgiCommitment Percentage. E
request for a Loan hereunder shall constitute eesgmtation and warranty by BGI, Barnes Germanyn&alLuxembourg or Barnes Switzerland, as the wesebe
that the conditions set forth in §11 and 8§12, mdhse of the initial Loans to be made on the @¢pBiate, and 812, in the case of all other Loaagebeen satisfit
on the date of such request. Each Base Rate Laah®hdenominated in Dollars and shall only bevjgted to BGIl. Each Eurocurrency Rate Loan ma
denominated in Dollars or in an Alternative Curngnc

2.2. Facility Fee. BGI agrees to pay to the Administrative Agent foe eiccounts of the Lenders in accordance with #relers’respective Commitme
Percentages a facility fee (the “ Facility F¢en Dollars calculated at the rate per annum relétettie then current Applicable Margin, as settfant the definitiol
“Applicable Margin” in §1.1 hereof, on the Total @mitment in effect from time to time from ti&osing Date to the Loan Maturity Date, subjecg%14. Th
Facility Fee shall be payable quarterly in arrearshe last Business Day of each calendar quartehé immediately preceding calendar quarter conuing on th
first such date following the date hereof, withireaf payment on the Loan Maturity Date or any eariate on which the Commitments shall terminate.

2.3. Reduction of Total Commitment. BGI shall have the right at any time and from tirm¢ime upon three (3) Business Days prior writtetice to th
Administrative Agent to reduce by $5,000,000 or lzole multiple of $1,000,000 in excess thereof otetwninate entirely the Total Commitment, whereupiog
Commitments of the Lenders shall be reducedrat@in accordance with their respective Commitment &esages of the amount specified in such noticaoth:
case may be, terminated. Promptly after receivmgreotice of BGI delivered pursuant to this 82t& Administrative Agent will notify the Lenders thife substanc
thereof. The amount of any such Total Commitmedticion shall not be applied to the Alternative
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Currency Sublimit or the Letter of Credit Sublimifless the Total Commitment is reduced to a Ibetw the Alternative Currency Sublimit or the legtof Credi
Sublimit, as applicable, unless otherwise specifigdBGl. Upon the effective date of any such reuncor termination, BGI shall pay to the Adminidgiva Agen
for the respective accounts of the Lenders thedmibunt of any Facility Fee then accrued on thewnof the reduction. No reduction or terminaticnttoe
Commitments may be reinstated.

2.3.1. Increase of Total Commitment. Unless a Default or Event of Default has occurned ia continuing, BGI may request, with prior wef
notice to the Administrative Agent, and subjecttte approval of the Administrative Agent if withspect to a new lender, that the Total Commitme
increased, provided thtte Total Commitment shall not, except with thesmmt of the Required Lenders, in any event excégaD$,000,000 hereunder, :
provided, further, that (i) any Lender which is a party to this Rieirmy Credit Agreement prior to such increase shalle the first option to increase
Commitment hereunder, but no Lender shall havedigation to do so, (ii) in the event that it bates necessary to include a new Lender to pr
additional funding under this §2.3.1, such new leznthust be reasonably acceptable to the Administradgent and BGI, and (iii) the Lenders’
Commitment Percentages shall be correspondinglystel], as necessary, to reflect any increase ifidked Commitment and Scheduleshall be amend:
to reflect such adjustments. Each increase in thieal TCommitment shall be in a minimum aggregate wmof $10,000,000 or a whole multiple
$1,000,000 in excess thereof.

2.4. The Revolving Credit Notes. The Loans (other than those Swing Line Loans adaaihy the Swing Line Lender under §2.6.2) shakwidenced b
separate promissory notes of BGI, Barnes Germaaynds Luxembourg and/or Barnes Switzerland, agdlse may be, in substantially the form_of Exhibk
hereto (each a* Not, dated as of the Closing Date (or such other datgtoch a Lender may become a party hereto in aecmel with 815 hereof) and comple
with appropriate insertions. One Note shall be pbydo the order of each Lender in a principal amoegual to such Lendesr'Commitment or, if less, t
outstanding amount of all Loans made by such Lenulas interest accrued thereon, as set forth heB®i, Barnes Germany, Barnes Luxembourg and/on&
Switzerland, as the case may be, irrevocably aizé®each Lender to make or cause to be made,adtonrt the time of the Drawdown Date of any Loamtothe
time of receipt of any payment of principal on slender’'s Note, an appropriate notation on suchdees Note Record reflecting the making of such Loaifes
the case may be) the receipt of such payment. Tkeamding amount of the Loans set forth on suaidegs Note Record shall he prinfecie evidence of th
principal amount thereof owing and unpaid to sueimder, but the failure to record, or any erroranrecording, any such amount on such Lersididte Recor
shall not limit or otherwise affect the obligatioosBGI, Barnes Germany, Barnes Luxembourg andamBs Switzerland, as the case may be, hereunderde
any Note to make payments of principal of or insé@ any Note when due.

2.5. Interest on Loans. Except as otherwise provided in 85.10,

(@) Each Loan which is a Base Rate Loan shall bearasitéor the period commencing with the DrawdowrieDthereof and ending on the last
of the Interest Period with respect thereto atrétte per annum equal to the Base Rate thiesApplicable Margin with respect to Base Raterisas in effe:
from time to time.

(b) Each Loan which is a Eurocurrency Rate Loan stegll interest for the period commencing with theviziawn Date thereof and ending on
last day of the Interest Period with respect tleeatthe rate per annum equal to the Eurocurreraty Betermined for such Interest Period phesApplicabli
Margin with respect to Eurocurrency Rate Loansaffiect from time
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to time plus(in the case of a Eurocurrency Rate Loan of anydeerwhich is lent from a Eurocurrency Lending Cdfim the United Kingdom or
Participating Member State) the Mandatory Cost.

(c) Barnes Germany, Barnes Luxembourg and Barnes Siaitzeshall only be permitted to borrow Loans whitgtar interest at the Eurocurre
Rate.

BGI promises to pay or, solely in the case of tleen®s Germany Loans, Barnes Germany promises torpaplely in the case of the Barnes Luxemb
Loans, Barnes Luxembourg promises to pay or, sdfethe case of the Barnes Switzerland Loans, BaBwitzerland promises to pay, interest on the kpal
applicable, on each Interest Payment Date witheeighereto.

2.6. Requests for Loans

2.6.2. General.BGI, Barnes Germany, Barnes Luxembourg and/or BaSwitzerland, as the case may be, shall givegdtministrative Ager
written notice in the form of Exhibit B-1 hereto (or telephonic notice confirmed in a writingthe form of_Exhibit B-1 hereto) of each Loan reques
hereunder (a * Loan Requé$tno later than (a) 11:00 a.m. (Eastern time) onptteposed Drawdown Date of any Base Rate Loan, {)0la.m. (Easte
time) three (3) Eurocurrency Business Days pridh&oproposed Drawdown Date of any Eurocurrency Raan denominated in Dollars, and (c) 11:00
(Eastern time) four (4) Eurocurrency Business D@ydive Business Days in the case of Special MdoGurrency) prior to the proposed Drawdown Da
any Eurocurrency Rate Loan denominated in Altemea@urrencies. Each such notice shall specifyh@) grincipal amount of the Loan requested, (ii,
proposed Drawdown Date of such Loan, (iii) the les¢ Period for such Loan, (iv) the Type of suclahcand (v) the currency of such Loan to be borth
If such Borrower fails to specify a currency in @aln Request, then the Loan so requested shall 8e m@ollars. Promptly upon receipt of any suckiae
the Administrative Agent shall notify each of theriders thereof. Each Loan Request shall be irré®and binding on BGI, Barnes Germany, Ba
Luxembourg and/or Barnes Switzerland, as the caselm, and shall obligate such Borrower to acdeplban requested from the Lenders on the pro|
Drawdown Date. Each Loan Request shall be in amim aggregate amount of $500,000 or a whole maltpi$100,000 in excess thereof, and after g
effect to all Loans, all conversions of Loans frome Type to another as provided in 82.7.1, andaitinuations of Loans as the same Type as provit
§2.7.2, there shall not be more than ten (10) éstePeriods in effect with respect to the Loans.

2.7. Conversion Options.

2.7.1. Conversion to Different Type of Loan. The applicable Borrower may elect from time to titneconvert any outstanding Loan to a Loa
another Type, providetthat (a) with respect to any such conversion ofieoEurrency Rate Loan denominated in Dollars tcaaeBRate Loan, the applica
Borrower shall give the Administrative Agent writtaotice no later than 11:00 a.m. (Eastern timégaadt three (3) Eurocurrency Business Days poicutt
election; (b) with respect to any such conversiba Base Rate Loan to a Eurocurrency Rate Loanrderated in Dollars, the applicable Borrower shalke
the Administrative Agent written notice no lateath11:00 a.m. (Eastern time) at least three (3p&urency Business Days prior to such electionwth
respect to any such conversion of a Eurocurrendg Raan denominated in Alternative Currencies, dpplicable Borrower shall give the Administra
Agent written notice no later than 11:00 a.m. (Eastime) at least four (4) Eurocurrency Busineag€)or five Eurocurrency Business Days in the cds
Special Notice Currency) prior to such election);With respect to any such conversion of a Euraswy Rate Loan into a Base Rate Loan, such comon
shall only be made on the last day of the IntdPestod with respect thereto and (e) no Loan magoowerted into a Eurocurrency
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Rate Loan when any Default or Event of Default besurred and is continuing. On the date on whiathstonversion is being made each Lender shal
such action as is necessary to transfer its ComenitrRercentage of such Loans to its Domestic Len@iffice or its Eurocurrency Lending Office, as
case may be. All or any part of outstanding Loanany Type may be converted into a Loan of anoffgre as provided herein, providéht any parti
conversion shall be in an aggregate principal armoti500,000 or a whole multiple of $100,000 ircess thereof. Each Conversion Request relatinige
conversion of a Loan to a Eurocurrency Rate Loal §te irrevocable by the Borrowers. No Loan maycbeverted into a Loan denominated in a diffe
currency, but instead must be prepaid in the caiginrrency of such Loan and reborrowed in theratherency.

2.7.2. Continuation of Type of Loan . Any Loan of any Type may be continued as a Loathefsame Type upon the expiration of an Int
Period with respect thereto by compliance by theliegble Borrower with the notice provisions congd in §2.7.1; providethat no Eurocurrency R
Loan may be continued as such when any DefaultvenEof Default has occurred and is continuing, $hall be automatically converted to a Base
Loan on the last day of the first Interest Periethting thereto ending during the continuance of Befault or Event of Default of which officers tfe
Administrative Agent active upon the Borroweegcount have actual knowledge. In the event tregplicable Borrower fails to provide any suchice
with respect to the continuation of any EurocurgeRate Loan as such, then such Eurocurrency Rade kball be automatically converted to a Base
Loan on the last day of the first Interest Periethting thereto. The Administrative Agent shall ifyothe Lenders promptly when any such auton
conversion contemplated by this §2.7 is schedweactur. No Loan may be continued as a Loan deratednin a different currency, but instead mus
prepaid in the original currency of such Loan aslgorrowed in the other currency.

2.7.3. Eurocurrency Rate Loans. Any conversion to or from Eurocurrency Rate Loahallsbe in such amounts and be made pursuant tu
elections so that, after giving effect thereto, dggregate principal amount of all EurocurrencyeRatans having the same Interest Period shall edés
than $5,000,000 or a whole multiple of $1,000,00&jcess thereof.

2.8. Funds for Loan.

2.8.1. Funding Procedures. Not later than 11:00 a.m. (Eastern time) on th@ppsed Drawdown Date of any Loans denominated ifiaBohan
not later than the Applicable Time specified by Administrative Agent in the case of any Loans mnAdternative Currency, each of the Lenders willke
available to the Administrative Agent, at the Adisirative Agent's Office, in Same Day Funds, theoant of such Lendes’ Commitment Percentage of
amount of the requested Loans for the applicableenay. Upon receipt from each Lender of such armhcamd upon receipt of the documents require
8811 and 12 and the satisfaction of the other ¢immdi set forth therein, to the extent applicatiie, Administrative Agent will make available to B@arne
Germany, Barnes Luxembourg and/or Barnes Switzerlas the case may be, the aggregate amount oflL.sizcts made available to the Administra
Agent by the Lenders. The failure or refusal of &eynder to make available to the Administrative Agat the aforesaid time and place on any Drawc
Date the amount of its Commitment Percentage ofr¢lgeiested Loans shall not relieve any other Lefiden its several obligation hereunder to
available to the Administrative Agent the amounsoth other Lender’'s Commitment Percentage of agyested Loans.

2.8.2. Advances by Administrative Agent. The Administrative Agent may, unless notified te ttontrary by any Lender prior to a Drawdc
Date or the Applicable Time, as the case may I=imas that such Lender has made available to thamstnative Agent on such Drawdown Date
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or Applicable Time, as the case may be, the amofusiich Lendegs Commitment Percentage of the Loans to be madeicnDrawdown Date or Applical
Time, as the case may be, and the Administrativenfgay (but it shall not be required to), in netia upon such assumption, make available to BGhd3
Germany, Barnes Luxembourg and/or Barnes Switzerlas the case may be, a corresponding amounty IE@ander makes available to the Administre
Agent such amount on a date after such Drawdowr DatApplicable Time, as the case may be, such éresblall pay to the Administrative Agent
Commitment Percentage thereof on demand of the Aidtrative Agent, plus interest thereon from theedsf such demand to the date such amount is
by such Lender, such amount with interest thereoritfe period from the date such payment is reduioethe date on which such payment is immedi
available to the Swing Line Lender at a rate pemamequal to the greater of the Federal Funds &adea rate determined by the Administrative Age
accordance with banking industry rules on interbaoknpensation, plus any administrative, processingsimilar fees customarily charged by
Administrative Agent in connection with the foreggi A statement of the Administrative Agent subedtto such Lender with respect to any amounts ¢
under this paragraph shall be prifagie evidence of the amount due and owing to the Adriratize Agent by such Lender. If the amount of suehders
Commitment Percentage of such Loans is not madidéableato the Administrative Agent by such Lendethim three (3) Business Days following s
Drawdown Date or Applicable Time, as the case n®ytle Administrative Agent shall be entitled toaeer such amount from the applicable Borrowe
demand, with interest thereon at the rate per anappticable to the Loans made on such Drawdown Dat&pplicable Time, as the case may be.
obligations of any Lender under this clause shalise the payment in full of the Obligations ate termination of this Credit Agreement.

2.9. Swing Line Loans.

2.9.1. The Swing Line. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth nerthie Swing Line Lender, in reliance upon the agrents of the oth
Lenders set forth in this §2.9, will make loanscteauch loan, a * Swing Line Lodh) to BGI, Barnes Germany, Barnes Luxembourg and/on&
Switzerland from time to time on any Business Dayam aggregate amount not to exceed at any tingamaling the amount of the Swing Line Subli
notwithstanding the fact that such Swing Line LgamBen aggregated with the Commitment Percentadkeeobutstanding amount of Loans and Letts
Credit Obligations of the Lender acting as Swingd_Lender, may exceed the amount of such Lendensn@itment;_provided however, that after givin
effect to any Swing Line Loan, (i) the total amowofht.oans outstanding shall not exceed the Totah@dments, and (ii) the aggregate outstanding ar
of the Loans of any Lender (other than the Swirggliender), plusuch Lendes Commitment Percentage of the outstanding amduait better of Credi
Obligations, plusuch Lender's Commitment Percentage of the outstgraimount of all Swing Line Loans shall not exceadh Lendes Commitment, ar
provided, further, that the Borrowers shall not use the procee@spfSwing Line Loan to refinance any outstandingn§v.ine Loan. Within the foregoir
limits, and subject to the other terms and cond#ibereof, the Borrowers may borrow under this §&x@&pay under §3.3, and reborrow under this §2a@t
Swing Line Loan borrowed by BGI shall be a BaseeRatan. Each Swing Line Loan borrowed by Barnesn@ey, Barnes Luxembourg or Bar
Switzerland shall by an Overnight Rate Loan. Imratdy upon the making of a Swing Line Loan, eachdex shall be deemed to, and hereby irrevor
and unconditionally agrees to, purchase from then@Wwine Lender a risk participation in such Swinge Loan in an amount equal to the product of
Lender's Commitment Percentage tintlies amount of such Swing Line Loan.

2.9.2. Borrowing Procedures. Each Swing Line Borrowing shall be made upon Bdttevocable notice to the Swing Line Lender alne
Administrative Agent, which may be given by
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telephone. Each such notice must be received bgwirg Line Lender and the Administrative Agent tager than 1:00 p.m. on the requested borro
date, and shall specify (i) the amount to be boedywhich shall be a minimum of $100,000, andti® requested borrowing date, which shall be arigs:
Day. Each such telephonic notice must be confirpreanptly by delivery to the Swing Line Lender ame tAdministrative Agent of a written Swing L
Loan Request, appropriately completed and signeal Rgsponsible Officer of BGI, Barnes Germany, Barhuxembourg and/or Barnes Switzerland, a
case may be. Promptly after receipt by the Swingelliender of any telephonic Swing Line Loan Requis&t Swing Line Lender will confirm with t
Administrative Agent (by telephone or in writindjat the Administrative Agent has also received sswing Line Loan Request and, if not, the Swinge
Lender will notify the Administrative Agent (by tghone or in writing) of the contents thereof. Usléhe Swing Line Lender has received notice
telephone or in writing) from the Administrative &gt (including at the request of any Lender) pt@2:00 p.m. on the date of the proposed Swing
Borrowing (A) directing the Swing Line Lender nat mmake such Swing Line Loan as a result of thetdititins set forth in the first proviso to the 1
sentence of §2.9.1, or (B) that one or more ofagiglicable conditions specified in §11 or §12 i$ then satisfied, then, subject to the terms amilitions
hereof, the Swing Line Lender will, not later thai@0 p.m. on the borrowing date specified in sualing Line Loan Notice, make the amount of its Sv
Line Loan available to the applicable Borrowertatdffice by crediting the account of such Borrowarthe books of the Swing Line Lender in immedie
available funds.

2.9.3. Refinancing of Swing Line Loans.

(@) The Swing Line Lender at any time in its sole dision may request, on behalf of each Borrower (Whiereby irrevocably authorizes
Swing Line Lender to so request on its behalf)t dach Lender make a Base Rate Loan or Overniglet Rean, as applicable, in an amount equal to
Lenders Commitment Percentage of the amount of Swing Limens then outstanding. Such request shall be madgting (which written request shall
deemed to be a Loan Request for purposes heredfinaaccordance with the requirements of §2.6, euttregard to the minimum and multiples spec
therein for the principal amount of Base Rate Loan®vernight Rate Loans, but subject to the uizetdl portion of the Total Commitments and
conditions set forth in §12. The Swing Line Lendbkall furnish BGI with a copy of the applicable InoBequest promptly after delivering such noticéht
Administrative Agent. Each Lender shall make an am@qual to its Commitment Percentage of the amspecified in such Loan Request available tc
Administrative Agent in immediately available fun@sd the Administrative Agent may apply Cash Gelial available with respect to the applicable §
Line Loan) for the account of the Swing Line Lendéethe Administrative Agerd’Office not later than 1:00 p.m. on the day spetiin such Loan Reque
whereupon, subject to 82.9.3(b), each Lender thahakes funds available shall be deemed to haves maBase Rate Loan or Overnight Rate Loa
applicable, to the applicable Borrower in such antolihe Administrative Agent shall remit the fursisreceived to the Swing Line Lender.

(b) If for any reason any Swing Line Loan cannot béneefced by such a Borrowing in accordance with 8229, the request for Base Rate Lc
or Overnight Rate Loans, as the case may be, sigdohbiy the Swing Line Lender as set forth hereialldte deemed to be a request by the Swing
Lender that each of the Lenders fund its risk pgudtion in the relevant Swing Line Loan and eaeimders payment to the Administrative Agent for
account of the Swing Line Lender pursuant to §2Z29.8hall be deemed payment in respect of suckcipation.

(c) If any Lender fails to make available to the Adretrative Agent for the account of the Swing Linentler any amount required to be paic
such Lender pursuant to the foregoing provisionthisf§2.9 by the time specified in §2.9.3(a), $véing Line Lender shall be entitled to
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recover from such Lender (acting through the Adstmtive Agent), on demand, such amount with irstetteereon for the period from the date such pay
is required to the date on which such payment iaédiately available to the Swing Line Lender aate per annum equal to the greater of the Federal:
Rate and a rate determined by the Swing Line Leimlexccordance with banking industry rules on ipé&k compensation, plus any administra
processing or similar fees customarily chargedhigySwing Line Lender in connection with the foregpilf such Lender pays such amount (with inteaes
fees as aforesaid), the amount so paid shall ¢otessuch Lendes’ Loan included in the relevant Borrowing or fungedticipation in the relevant Swi
Line Loan, as the case may be. A certificate of $ing Line Lender submitted to any Lender (throtlgh Administrative Agent) with respect to i
amounts owing under this clause (c) shall be caiatuabsent manifest error.

(d) Each Lendes obligation to make Loans or to purchase and figkdparticipations in Swing Line Loans pursuanthis §2.9.3 shall be absol
and unconditional and shall not be affected by eingumstance, including (A) any setoff, countenmtiairecoupment, defense or other right which
Lender may have against the Swing Line Lender, Bogrower or any other Person for any reason whatsp&B) the occurrence or continuance
Default, or (C) any other occurrence, event or d@wr whether or not similar to any of the foreggi provided, however, that each Lendes’obligation t
make Loans pursuant to this §2.9.3 is subject éoctinditions set forth in §12. No such funding isk mparticipations shall relieve or otherwise inrpiie
obligation of each Borrower to repay Swing Line heatogether with interest as provided herein.

2.9.4. Repayment of Participations.

(&) At any time after any Lender has purchased andefdral risk participation in a Swing Line Loan, ietl$wing Line Lender receives ¢
payment on account of such Swing Line Loan, thengviine Lender will distribute to such Lender itsf@mitment Percentage thereof in the same fun
those received by the Swing Line Lender.

(b) If any payment received by the Swing Line Lendereaspect of principal or interest on any Swing Liran is required to be returned by
Swing Line Lender under any of the circumstancexideed in 816.1 (including pursuant to any setdetrentered into by the Swing Line Lender ir
discretion), each Lender shall pay to the Swingelliender its Commitment Percentage thereof on ddrahthe Administrative Agent, plus interest then
from the date of such demand to the date such an®ueturned, at a rate per annum equal to thefat&unds Rate. The Administrative Agent will m
such demand upon the request of the Swing Line érerithe obligations of the Lenders under this @daslsall survive the payment in full of the Obligaat
and the termination of this Credit Agreement.

2.9.5. Interest for Account of Swing Line Lender. The Swing Line Lender shall be responsible for iovy the Borrowers for interest on
Swing Line Loans. Until each Lender funds its BRsge Loan, Overnight Rate Loan or risk participatpursuant to this 82.9 to refinance such Lersder’
Commitment Percentage of any Swing Line Loan, @gein respect of such Commitment Percentage bleatiolely for the account of the Swing L
Lender.

2.9.6. Payments Directly to Swing Line Lender. The Borrowers shall make all payments of princignadl interest in respect of the Swing L
Loans directly to the Swing Line Lender.
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3. REPAYMENT OF THE LOANS .

3.1. Maturity . BGI promises to pay and, solely in the case ofBames Germany Loans, Barnes Germany promisesytangh solely in the case of
Barnes Luxembourg Loans, Barnes Luxembourg pronéspay and, solely in the case of the Barnes ®witnd Loans, Barnes Switzerland promises to payhe
Loan Maturity Date, and there shall become abslylutee and payable on the Loan Maturity Date, &the Loans outstanding on such date, together aithan:
all accrued and unpaid interest thereon; provithed BGI, Barnes Germany, Barnes Luxembourg arBiéwsnes Switzerland, as the case may be, shall repel
Swing Line Loan on the earlier to occur of (i) thete ten (10) Business Days after such Loan is raadéii) the Loan Maturity Date.

3.2. Mandatory Repayments of Loans If at any time (a) the sum of the outstanding amadinhe Loans, the Maximum Drawing Amount andUtipaic
Reimbursement Obligations exceeds the Total Comemitrat such time or (b) the sum of the outstandimgunt of all Loans denominated in Alternative @nnie:
exceeds the Alternative Currency Sublimit at suofet then BGI shall immediately pay or (solely iretcase of the Barnes Germany Loans) shall causess
Germany to pay or (solely in the case of the Batneembourg Loans) shall cause Barnes Luxembounggtoor (solely in the case of the Barnes Switne
Loans) shall cause Barnes Switzerland to pay theuatrof such excess to the Administrative Agenttfier respective accounts of the Lenders for appicafirst ,
to any Unpaid Reimbursement Obligatioss¢ond to the Loans; anthird , to Cash Collateralize the Reimbursement Obligati®ubject to §5.14, each paymel
any Unpaid Reimbursement Obligations or prepaynuéntoans shall be applied to the Unpaid Reimburseni@bligations or the Loans of the Lender:
accordance with their respective Commitment Peeggs. For the avoidance of doubt, (i) any paymeyntBarnes Germany shall be applied solely to then&
Germany Loans or Unpaid Reimbursement ObligatiorReimbursement Obligations in respect of Lettdr€mredit issued for the account of Barnes Germéii)
any payments by Barnes Luxembourg shall be appliely to the Barnes Luxembourg Loans or Unpaideirsement Obligations or Reimbursement Obliga
in respect of Letters of Credit issued for the aetoof Barnes Luxembourg, and (iii) any paymentsBaynes Switzerland shall be applied solely to Baene:
Switzerland Loans or Unpaid Reimbursement Obligestior Reimbursement Obligations in respect of keté Credit issued for the account of Barnes Saiéind.

3.3. Optional Repayments of Loans BGI shall have the right, at its election, to replag outstanding amount of the Loans, as a whole part, Barne
Germany shall have the right, at its election ejpay the outstanding amount of the Barnes Germaayg, as a whole or in part, Barnes Luxembourd bhak th
right, at its election, to repay the outstandingoant of the Barnes Luxembourg Loans, as a wholi @art, and Barnes Switzerland shall have thetrighits
election, to repay the outstanding amount of then8a Switzerland Loans, as a whole or in partachecase at any time without penalty or premiuravidedthat
subject to compliance with 85.9, any full or pdrfgepayment of the outstanding amount of any Eumrenicy Rate Loans pursuant to this §3.3 may beenoad:
day other than the last day of the Interest Paetating thereto. The applicable Borrower shalkegilite Administrative Agent, no later than 11:00.gBastern time
(i) at least one (1) Business Day prior writtenie®tof any proposed prepayment pursuant to thi8 §8.Base Rate Loans, (ii) at least three (3) Eum@ncy
Business Dayshotice of any proposed prepayment pursuant to§Bi8 of Eurocurrency Rate Loans denominated indbslland (iii) at least four (4) Eurocurre
Business Days (or five, in the case of prepayméhians denominated in Special Notice Currenciesjtem notice of any proposed prepayment pursuaitiit
§3.3 of Eurocurrency Rate Loans denominated inrAdtive Currencies, in each case specifying thegsed date of prepayment of Loans and the prineipalun
to be prepaid. Each such partial prepayment of.dans shall be in an integral multiple of $1,00@,08hall be accompanied by the payment of accmiedest o
the principal prepaid to the date of prepaymentsirall be applied, in the absence of instructiothigyapplicable Borrower,
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first to the principal of Base Rate Loans and tteethe principal of Eurocurrency Rate Loans. Subje&5.14, each such prepayment shall be apphi¢det Loan
of the Lenders in accordance with their respedfisenmitment Percentages.

3.4. Extension of Loan Maturity Date .

(a) Reguests for ExtensiarBGI may by notice to the Administrative Agent @vshall promptly notify the Lenders) given on a Bass Day (the *
Requested Extension Notice D&fehat is not earlier than 60 Business Days andatet than 50 Business Days prior to the first azwbsd anniversaries
the Closing Date (such anniversary date, beindReduested Extension Ddle request that each Lender extend such Lesdevan Maturity Date for ¢
additional year from the Loan Maturity Date thereffect hereunder (the_* Existing Maturity Dé&je

(b) Lenders Election to ExtendEach Lender, acting in its sole and individuakcdétion, shall, by notice to the Administrativeefgj given not late
than 30 Business Days following the Requested EiterNotice Date (the “ Lender Election Notice Dgteadvise the Administrative Agent whether or
such Lender agrees to such extension (and eacletémat determines not to so extend its Loan Mgtirate (a “_NorExtending Lendeft) shall notify the
Administrative Agent of such fact promptly aftecchudetermination (but in any event no later thanltender Election Notice Date) and any Lender doat
not so advise the Administrative Agent on or befthre Lender Election Notice Date shall be deemeblet@ NonExtending Lender. The election of ¢
Lender to agree to such extension shall not olgigay other Lender to so agree.

(c) Notification by Administrative Agent The Administrative Agent shall notify BGI of eatlenders determination whether or not to ext
under this Section no later than the date thabi8dsiness Days prior to the Requested Extensida, Dar, if such date is not a Business Day, onnie
preceding Business Day).

(d) Additional Commitment LenderBGlI shall have the right to replace each Non-Bdieg Lender with, and add as “Lenderider this Cred
Agreement in place thereof, one or more Eligiblsigsees (each, an_* Additional Commitment Lenteas provided in §15; providethat each of suc
Additional Commitment Lender shall enter into arsi§@ment and Assumption, in the form_of Exhibit, pursuant to which such Additional Commitnr
Lender shall, effective as of the Requested ExtenBiate, assume a Commitment (and, if any such tibddil Commitment Lender is already a Len
increase its Commitment in a corresponding amoeargunder on such date).

(e) Minimum Extension Requirementf (and only if) the total of the Commitmentstbe Lenders who have agreed so to extend the Laeoriy
Date (each, an “ Extending Lend®&rand the additional Commitments of the Additionaln@oitment Lenders shall be more than 50% of the exg
amount of the Commitments in effect immediatelyoptio the Requested Extension Date, then, effeadw®f the Requested Extension Date, the
Maturity Date of each Extending Lender and of eAdHditional Commitment Lender shall be extendedh® date falling one year after the Existing Mayt
Date (except that, if such date is not a Businesg Buch Loan Maturity Date as so extended shatéaext preceding Business Day) and effectivenuje
Requested Extension Date, each Additional Commitrbender shall thereupon become a “Lender” fopaliposes of this Credit Agreement.

() Conditions to Effectiveness of Extensian&s a condition precedent to such extension, thedvers shall deliver to the Administrative Age
certificate of the Borrowers dated as of the
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Requested Extension Date signed by the Borrowetgyieg that, before and after giving effect tockuextension, (A) the representations and warrs
contained in Article 7 and the other Loan Documentstrue and correct in all material respects rah @ of the Requested Extension Date, excepte
extent that such representations and warrantiesfgpdly refer to an earlier date, in which cabeyt are true and correct in all material respestsfasucl
earlier date, and except that for purposes of §3igl, the representations and warranties contame&¥.4 shall be deemed to refer to the most r
statements furnished pursuant to such Section,(Bhdho Default exists. In addition, on the Loan Mdy Date of each Noixtending Lender, t
Borrowers shall prepay any Loans outstanding or glate (and pay any additional amounts requiredyaunt to 85.6) to the extent necessary to
outstanding Loans ratable with any revised CommitnRercentages of the respective Lenders effeatw& such date.

(g) Conflicting Provisions This Section shall supersede any provisions B152to the contrary.

4. LETTERS OF CREDIT .

4.1. Letter of Credit Commitments .

(&) Subject to the terms and conditions hereof andettezution and delivery by the applicable Borrowkradetter of credit application on t
Administrative Agent’s customary form (a_“ Lettefr @redit Application”), the Issuing Bank on behalf of the Lenders and liamee upon the agreemen
the Lenders set forth in this §4.1 and upon theessmtations and warranties of the applicable Begraontained herein, agrees, in its individualacaty, tc
issue, extend and renew for the account of theicgipé Borrower one or more standby or documerl&dtgrs of credit denominated in Dollars or in an
more Alternative Currencies (individually, a * Lettof Credit”), in such form as may be requested from time to tiyjméhe applicable Borrower and agr
to by the Issuing Bank and the Administrative Aggmbvided, however, that, after giving effect to such request, (& slum of the aggregate Maxim
Drawing Amount and all Unpaid Reimbursement Oblga shall not exceed the Letter of Credit Subliatitany one time and (b) the sum of (l)
Maximum Drawing Amount on all Letters of Credit])(hll Unpaid Reimbursement Obligations, and (the amount of all Loans outstanding shall
exceed the Total Commitment at such time.

(b) The Issuing Bank shall not issue any Letter of @réfd

(i) Subject to 84.1(c), the expiry date of such reqeeetter of Credit would occur more than twelvenths after the date of issuance
last extension; or

(ii) the expiry date of such requested Letter of Cnediild occur after the Letter of Credit ExpiratioatB.
(c) The Issuing Bank shall not be under any obligatiissue any Letter of Credit if:

(i) any order, judgment or decree of any Governmenuthdrity or arbitrator shall by its terms purpartenjoin or restrain the Issuing Be
from issuing such Letter of Credit, or any Lapplicable to the Issuing Bank or any request mctive (whether or not having the force of lawgnf
any Governmental Authority with jurisdiction ovéetIssuing Bank shall prohibit, or request thatlfseiing Bank refrain from, the issuance of le
of credit generally or such Letter of Credit in fi@arar or shall impose upon the Issuing Bank wikpect to such Letter of Credit any restric!
reserve or capital requirement (for which
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the Issuing Bank is not otherwise compensated heex)i not in effect on the Closing Date, or shalpose upon the Issuing Bank any unreimbt
loss, cost or expense which was not applicabldemiate hereof and which the Issuing Bank in gaditi fleems material to it;

(i)  the issuance of such Letter of Credit would violga¢ any Laws or (B) one or more policies of theumg Bank, providethat suc
policies have been disclosed to the Borrowers poithe request for the issuance of such Lett&retlit;

(iii)  except as otherwise agreed by the AdministrativerA@nd the Issuing Bank, such Letter of Credit ian initial face amount less tr
$100,000;

(iv) except as otherwise agreed by the AdministrativerA@nd the Issuing Bank, such Letter of Credibibe denominated in a currel
other than Dollars or an Alternative Currency;

(v) the Issuing Bank does not as of the issuance diatgch requested Letter of Credit issue LetterSrefdit in the requested currency;
(vi) such Letter of Credit contains any provisions fatoaatic reinstatement of the stated amount aftgrdaawing thereunder; or

(vii)  any Lender is at that time a Defaulting Lendereaslthe Issuing Bank has entered into arrangenieoksding the delivery of Ca:
Collateral, satisfactory to the Issuing Bank (:1gble discretion) with the applicable Borrowesoch Lender to eliminate the Issuing Banéittual ¢
potential Fronting Exposure (after giving effect86.14.1(d)) with respect to the Defaulting Lendeising from either the Letter of Credit tt
proposed to be issued or that Letter of Creditahdther Letter of Credit Obligations as to whitte Issuing Bank has actual or potential Fror
Exposure, as it may elect in its sole discretion.

Procedures for Issuance and Amendment of Letters dfredit; Auto -Extension Letters of Credit.

(a) Each Letter of Credit shall be issued or amendedh@ case may be, upon the request of the aplgiBarower delivered to the Issuing B:

(with a copy to the Administrative Agent) in therfo of a Letter of Credit Application, appropriatelgmpleted and signed by a Responsible Officehe
applicable Borrower. Such Letter of Credit Applicatmust be received by the Issuing Bank and thmmiAttrative Agent not later than 11:00 a.m. (Ea
time) at least two Business Days (or such lates dat time as the Administrative Agent and theitgsBank may agree in a particular instance inrteeie
discretion) prior to the proposed issuance datate of amendment, as the case may be. In theotaseequest for an initial issuance of a LetteCoédit
such Letter of Credit Application shall specifyform and detail satisfactory to the Issuing Barikii{e proposed issuance date of the requestedrlLal
Credit (which shall be a Business Day); (ii) theoammt and currency thereof and in the absence dfifsgion of currency shall be deemed a requese
Letter of Credit denominated in Dollars; (iii) te®piry date thereof; (iv) the name and addresh®beneficiary thereof; (v) the documents to begmeed b
such beneficiary in case of any drawing thereun@éythe full text of any certificate to be presed by such beneficiary in case of any drawingeheder
and (vii) such other matters as the Issuing Bank reguire. In the case of a request for an amendwieany outstanding Letter of Credit, such Leté
Credit Application shall specify in form and detsdtisfactory to the Issuing Bank (w) the LetteCoédit to be amended; (x) the proposed date ohdmen
thereof (which shall be a Business Day); (y) thiireaof the




-38-

proposed amendment; and (z) such other matteteedssuing Bank may require. Additionally, the apgdble Borrower shall furnish to the Issuing Bamii
the Administrative Agent such other documents arfidrination pertaining to such requested Letter @fd@ issuance or amendment, including any Is
Documents, as the Issuing Bank or the Administeafigent may require.

(b) Promptly after receipt of any Letter of Credit Ajgpltion at the address set forth in §16.6 for néngiLetter of Credit Applications and rela
correspondence, the Issuing Bank will confirm witib Administrative Agent (by telephone or in wri)rthat the Administrative Agent has received ay
of such Letter of Credit Application from the amgalble Borrower and, if not, the Issuing Bank wilbyide the Administrative Agent with a copy ther
Unless the Issuing Bank has received written ndtice any Lender, the Administrative Agent or anyah Party, at least one Business Day prior t
requested date of issuance or amendment of thécablgl Letter of Credit, that one or more applieabbnditions in §12 shall not then be satisfieén
subject to the terms and conditions hereof, theingsBank shall, on the requested date, issueter et Credit for the account of the applicable Barer (ol
the applicable Subsidiary) or enter into the apgilie amendment, as the case may be, in each casedrdance with the Issuing Baskisual and custome
business practices. Immediately upon the issuaheaah Letter of Credit, each Lender shall be dektoegand hereby irrevocably and unconditionallyeae
to, purchase from the Issuing Bank a risk partidgmain such Letter of Credit in an amount equalthe product of such LenderRevolving Cred
Commitment Percentage timésge amount of such Letter of Credit.

(c) Promptly after its delivery of any Letter of Credit any amendment to a Letter of Credit to an adgi®ank with respect thereto or to
beneficiary thereof, the Issuing Bank will alsoidet to the applicable Borrower and the AdministratAgent a true and complete copy of such Lett
Credit or amendment.

(d) If any Borrower so requests in any applicable lretfeCredit Application, the Issuing Bank may, ts sole and absolute discretion, agre
issue a Letter of Credit that has automatic extenprovisions (each, an “ Autbxtension Letter of Credf); provided that any such AutBxtension Lette
of Credit must permit the Issuing Bank to prevemy auch extension at least once in each tweleeth period (commencing with the date of issuaof
such Letter of Credit) by giving prior notice toetbeneficiary thereof not later than a day (theorHExtension Notice Dat®) in each such twelveaontl
period to be agreed upon at the time such Lett@reflit is issued. Unless otherwise directed byissaing Bank, no Borrower shall be required to enz
specific request to the Issuing Bank for any suderesion. Once an AutBxtension Letter of Credit has been issued, theleenshall be deemed to h
authorized (but may not require) the Issuing Bampermit the extension of such Letter of Creditiay time to an expiry date not later than the Iredf
Credit Expiration Date; provided, however, that tguing Bank shall not permit any such extensi@A) the Issuing Bank has determined that it woudd
be permitted, or would have no obligation, at stiecte to issue such Letter of Credit in its revi$edn (as extended) under the terms hereof (by reabthe
provisions of clause (b) or (c) of 84.1 or otheeyjsor (B) it has received notice (which may betdgphone or in writing) on or before the day tisafive
Business Days before the N&mxtension Notice Date (1) from the Administrativgeht that the Required Lenders have elected nmertmit such extensic
or (2) from the Administrative Agent, any Lenderthe applicable Borrower that one or more of thpligpble conditions specified in 8§12 is not t
satisfied, and in each such case directing therigdank not to permit such extension.

(e) The Administrative Agent will notify the Lendersy @ quarterly basis, of all Letters of Credit cantsting.
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4.3. Drawings and Reimbursements; Funding of Participaibns.

(&) Upon receipt from the beneficiary of any LetteiGoedit of any notice of a drawing under such Lettfe€redit, the Issuing Bank shall notify
applicable Borrower and the Administrative Agerergof. In the case of a Letter of Credit denomithdean Alternative Currency, the applicable Borea
shall reimburse the Issuing Bank in such AlterratBurrency, unless (i) the Issuing Bank (at itsaptshall have specified in such notice that it véquire
reimbursement in Dollars, or (i) in the absenceauy such requirement for reimbursement in Dolltirs,applicable Borrower shall have notified the&ulac
Bank promptly following receipt of the notice ofadving that the applicable Borrower will reimburge issuing Bank in Dollars. In the case of any
reimbursement in Dollars of a drawing under a lretfeCredit denominated in an Alternative Currenty Issuing Bank shall notify the applicable Barea
of the Dollar Equivalent of the amount of the dragvpromptly following the determination thereof. tNater than 11:00 a.m. on the date of any payrbg
the Issuing Bank under a Letter of Credit to benkrirsed in Dollars, or the Applicable Time on tlaedof any payment by the Issuing Bank under aLet
Credit to be reimbursed in an Alternative Curre(egch such date, an “ Honor Dé}fethe applicable Borrower shall reimburse the Issiagk through th
Administrative Agent in an amount equal to the amaaf such drawing and in the applicable currernythe event that (A) a drawing denominated il
Alternative Currency is to be reimbursed in Dollatgsuant to the second sentence in this Sect(a)}and (B) the Dollar amount paid by the applie
Borrower, whether on after the Honor Date, shall not be adequate oml#te of that payment to purchase in accordancemnwitmal banking procedure
sum denominated in the Alternative Currency equiahé drawing, the applicable Borrower agrees, separate and independent obligation, to indenthd
Issuing Bank for the loss resulting from its inébilon that date to purchase the Alternative Cuwyeim the full amount of the drawing. If the apjplixde
Borrower fails to so reimburse the Issuing Banksbgh time, the Administrative Agent shall prompiiytify each Lender of the Honor Date, the amou
the Unpaid Reimbursement Obligation (expressedaltals in the amount of the Dollar Equivalent thadrim the case of a Letter of Credit denominatedr
Alternative Currency), and the amount of such Lerel€ommitment Percentage thereof. In such eventapipdicable Borrower shall be deemed to |
requested a Revolving Credit Loan which is a BasteR.oan to be disbursed on the Honor Date in aouamequal to the Unpaid Reimbursen
Obligation, without regard to the minimum and nplés specified in 82.6 for the principal amountBafse Rate Loans, but subject to the amount ¢
unutilized portion of the Total Commitment and tenditions set forth in §12 (other than the deljvef a Loan Request). Any notice given by the Isg
Bank or the Administrative Agent pursuant to trds3a) may be given by telephone if imnmediatelyficored in writing; providedhat the lack of such .
immediate confirmation shall not affect the conlaness or binding effect of such notice.

(b) Each Lender shall upon any notice pursuant to 8%®@ake funds available (and the Administrative Wtgaay apply Cash Collateral provic
for this purpose) to the Administrative Agent foetaccount of the Issuing Bank, in Dollars, at Aigninistrative Agent’s Office for Dolladenominate
payments in an amount equal to its Commitment Péage of the Unpaid Reimbursement Obligation nigr [than 1:00 p.m. on the Business Day spec
in such notice by the Administrative Agent, wherempsubject to the provisions of 4.3(c), each Lenat so makes funds available shall be deemédie
made a Revolving Credit Loan which is a Base RatenLto the applicable Borrower in such amount. Abeninistrative Agent shall remit the funds
received to the Issuing Bank in Dollars.
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(c) With respect to any Unpaid Reimbursement Obligattmat is not fully refinanced by a Revolving Cretldan which is a Base Rate Lc
because the conditions set forth in §12 cannotbisfied or for any other reason, the applicabler®wer shall be deemed to have incurred from thaithg
Bank a Letter of Credit Borrowing in the amountled Unpaid Reimbursement Obligation that is natedimanced, which Letter of Credit Borrowing shiad
due and payable on demand (together with inteegf)shall bear interest at the rate set forth fageBRate Loans in 86.11. In such event, each Lender
payment to the Administrative Agent for the accoofithe Issuing Bank pursuant to §4.3(b) shall berded payment in respect of its participation ich
Letter of Credit Borrowing and shall constitute ettier of Credit Advance from such Lender in sati§en of its participation obligation under this.§4

(d) Until each Lender funds its Revolving Credit Loahieh is a Base Rate Loan or Letter of Credit Adeaparsuant to this 84.3 to reimburse
Issuing Bank for any amount drawn under any LeiteCredit, interest in respect of such LendeCommitment Percentage of such amount shall ledysol
the account of the Issuing Bank.

(e) Each Lendes obligation to make a Revolving Credit Loan whista Base Rate Loan or Letter of Credit Advanceseimburse the Issuil
Bank for amounts drawn under Letters of Credit,cantemplated by this §4.3, shall be absolute antbnuditional and shall not be affected by
circumstance, including (i) any setoff, countentiarecoupment, defense or other right which suaidee may have against the Issuing Bank, the apgé
Borrower or any other Person for any reason whatsogii) the occurrence or continuance of a Defand (iii) any other occurrence, event or condii
whether or not similar to any of the foregoing; yded, however, that each Lendes’obligation to make a Revolving Credit Loan whiela Base Rate Lo
pursuant to this 84.3 is subject to the conditisesforth in 8§12 (other than delivery by the apgihle Borrower of a Loan Request). No such making
Letter of Credit Advance shall relieve or otherwisgair the obligation of the applicable Borrowerreimburse the Issuing Bank for the amount of
payment made by the Issuing Bank under any Left€redit, together with interest as provided herein

(f) If any Lender fails to make available to the Adretrative Agent for the account of the Issuing Bank amount required to be paid by <
Lender pursuant to the foregoing provisions of §#s3 by the time specified in 84.3(b), the Issuamk shall be entitled to recover from such Ler{detinc
through the Administrative Agent), on demand, saofount with interest thereon for the period from tlate such payment is required to the date onh
such payment is immediately available to the IsgBank at a rate per annum equal to the applic@bkrnight Rate from time to time in effect, plasy
administrative, processing or similar fees custdgnatharged by the Issuing Bank in connection witie foregoing. A certificate of the Issuing B:
submitted to any Lender (through the Administrathgent) with respect to any amounts owing undes thause (vi) shall be conclusive absent mar
error.

4.4. Repayment of Participations.

(&) Atany time after the Issuing Bank has made a paymeder any Letter of Credit and has received femy Lender such LenderLetter o
Credit Advance in respect of such payment in acoord with 84.3, if the Administrative Agent receiVfer the account of the Issuing Bank any payma
respect of the related Unpaid Reimbursement Olidigadr interest thereon (whether directly from #pplicable Borrower or otherwise, including procs
of Cash Collateral applied thereto by the Admimitte Agent), the Administrative Agent will disttite to such Lender its Commitment Percentage tF
(appropriately adjusted, in the case of interegtqnts, to reflect
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the period of time during which such Lendetetter of Credit Advance was outstanding) in Bdland in the same funds as those received
Administrative Agent.

(b) If any payment received by the Administrative Agémt the account of the Issuing Bank pursuant t83@®9 is required to be returnec
connection with any proceeding under any DebtoidRéhaw (including pursuant to any settlement esdieinto by the Issuing Bank in its discretion), lt
Lender shall pay to the Administrative Agent foe diccount of the Issuing Bank its Commitment Peeggnthereof on demand of the Administrative Ac
plus interest thereon from the date of such dentarnde date such amount is returned by such Lemader rate per annum equal to the applicable Ogiet
Rate from time to time in effect. The obligatiorfsLenders under this clause shall survive the payrivefull of the Obligations and the terminatiohtbis
Credit Agreement.

4.5. Obligations Absolute.

The obligation of the applicable Borrower to reirrd®ithe Issuing Bank for each drawing under eadtetef Credit and to repay each Letter of Ci
Borrowing shall be absolute, unconditional andvio@ble, and shall be paid strictly in accordanié e terms of this Credit Agreement under aitemstance
including the following:

(a) any lack of validity or enforceability of such Lettof Credit, this Credit Agreement, or any otheah Document;

(b) the existence of any claim, counterclaim, setoffedse or other right that any Borrower or any ®liésyy may have at any time against
beneficiary or any transferee of such Letter ofd@réor any Person for whom any such beneficiarpmy such transferee may be acting), the Issuimk Bt
any other Person, whether in connection with thisd@ Agreement, the transactions contemplatedhlyeoe by such Letter of Credit or any agreemei
instrument relating thereto, or any unrelated tatien;

(c) any draft, demand, certificate or other documease@nted under such Letter of Credit proving todvged, fraudulent, invalid or insufficient
any respect or any statement therein being untrigaccurate in any respect; or any loss or delapé transmission or otherwise of any documentirec
in order to make a drawing under such Letter ofiGre

(d) any payment by the Issuing Bank under such Left@redit against presentation of a draft or cexdife that does not strictly comply with
terms of such Letter of Credit; or any payment mig¢he Issuing Bank under such Letter of Crediatiy Person purporting to be a trustee in banky,
debtor-inpossession, assignee for the benefit of creditiopgidator, receiver or other representative oboccessor to any beneficiary or any transfer:
such Letter of Credit, including any arising in oegtion with any proceeding under any Debtor Rélaf;

(e) any adverse change in the relevant exchange rateghe availability of the relevant Alternativei€ency to any Borrower or any Subsidiar
in the relevant currency markets generally;

()  any other circumstance or happening whatsoeverthgher not similar to any of the foregoing, indhgl any other circumstance that mi
otherwise constitute a defense available to, asehdrge of, any Borrower or any Subsidiary; or

(g) any adverse change in the relevant exchange rategite availability of the relevant Alternativau€ency to the Borrowers or any Subsid
or in the relevant currency markets generally.
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The applicable Borrower shall promptly examine pycof each Letter of Credit and each amendmenetbehat is delivered to it and, in the event of
claim of noncompliance with the applicable Borro\geinstructions or other irregularity, the appli@t®@orrower will immediately notify the Issuing Bankhe
applicable Borrower shall be conclusively deemedhdge waived any such claim against the IssuingkBard its correspondents unless such notice isnghs
aforesaid.

4.6. Role of Issuing Bank.

Each Lender and each of the Borrowers agree thagying any drawing under a Letter of Credit, ilgsiing Bank shall not have any responsibility hbadr
any document (other than any sight draft, certiisaand documents expressly required by the Lett€redit) or to ascertain or inquire as to thedig or accurac
of any such document or the authority of the Persacuting or delivering any such document. Nonéheflssuing Bank, the Administrative Agent, anytfodir
respective Related Parties nor any correspondenticipant or assignee of the Issuing Bank shalliddgle to any Lender for (i) any action taken onitied ir
connection herewith at the request or with the ayedrof Lenders or the Required Lenders, as apgpkcdii) any action taken or omitted in the absen€ gros
negligence or willful misconduct; or (i) the dexecution, effectiveness, validity or enforceapitf any document or instrument related to anydrettf Credit o
Issuer Document. Each Borrower hereby assumesskdl of the acts or omissions of any beneficiaryransferee with respect to its use of any LetfeCredit;
provided, however, that this assumption is not intended to, andl stw) preclude such Borrower from pursuing sugits and remedies as it may have again:
beneficiary or transferee at law or under any odgreement. None of the Issuing Bank, the Admitiste Agent, any of their respective Related Partier an
correspondent, participant or assignee of therngsBank, shall be liable or responsible for anyhef matters described in clauses (a) through (84 d;_provided
however, that anything in such clauses to the contrarwitbstanding, the applicable Borrower may haveantlagainst the Issuing Bank, and the Issuing
may be liable to the applicable Borrower, to théerk but only to the extent, of any direct, asaggua to consequential or exemplary, damages sdffgresucl
Borrower which such Borrower proves were causethbylssuing Bank’s willful misconduct or gross rigghce or the Issuing BarkWwillful failure to pay unde
any Letter of Credit after the presentation toyitthe beneficiary of a sight draft and certificajegtrictly complying with the terms and conditiooisa Letter o
Credit.In furtherance and not in limitation of the foregoi the Issuing Bank may accept documents thateegpetheir face to be in order, without respottisybior
further investigation, regardless of any noticeirdormation to the contrary, and the Issuing Bahklsnot be responsible for the validity or suffioty of an
instrument transferring or assigning or purportiodransfer or assign a Letter of Credit or thésgor benefits thereunder or proceeds thereafhiole or in par
which may prove to be invalid or ineffective foryarason.

4.7. Cash Collateral.

Upon the request of the Administrative Agent, {ijhe Issuing Bank has honored any full or partiedwing request under any Letter of Credit and
drawing has resulted in a Letter of Credit Borrogviand an Event of Default exists, the applicabler®eer shall immediately Cash Collateralize then
outstanding amount of all Letter of Credit Obligais, or (ii) if, as of the Letter of Credit Expi@t Date with respect to any Letter of Credit, amjter of Credi
Obligation for any reason remains outstanding,apglicable Borrower shall immediately Cash Collaliee the then outstanding amount of any Lette€#dil
Obligations in respect of all Letters of Credit &k on such Letter of Credit Expiration Date.

4.8. Applicability of ISP .
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Unless otherwise expressly agreed by the Issuimk Band the applicable Borrower when a Letter ofd@rés issued (including any such agreer
applicable to an Existing Letter of Credit), théesuof the ISP shall apply to each standby Lett&redit.

4.9. Letter of Credit Amounts .

Unless otherwise specified herein the amount oéttek of Credit at any time shall be deemed toheeMaximum Drawing Amount of such Letter of Cr
in effect at such time; providechowever, that with respect to any Letter of Credit that,iis terms or the terms of any Issuer Documetaiteel thereto, provides 1
one or more automatic increases in the Maximum DrgwAmount thereof, the Maximum Drawing Amount efch Letter of Credit shall be deemed to be
maximum drawing amount of such Letter of Credieafjiving effect to all such increases, whethemarsuch maximum drawing amount is in effect ahstime.

4.10. Letter of Credit Fee . The applicable Borrower shall pay (a) a fee (tHeetter of Credit Feé€) equal to the Applicable Margin on the Maxim
Drawing Amount of the Letters of Credit (other thaarformance Letters of Credit), in Dollars, to th@ministrative Agent for the account of the Lergjeo b
shared_pro ratdy the Lenders in accordance with their respec@eenmitment Percentages and (b) a fee equal tohalfesf the Applicable Margin on tl
Maximum Drawing Amount of the Performance Lettef€oedit (the “_Performance Letter of Credit Feeollectively with the Letter of Credit Fee, thdetter o
Credit Fees) to the Administrative Agent for the account dietLenders, to be shared pro rbtathe Lenders in accordance with their respedfieenmitmen
Percentages; providechowever, any Letter of Credit Fees otherwise pkeyéor the account of a Defaulting Lender withpest to any Letter of Credit as to wh
such Defaulting Lender has not provided Cash Ga#disatisfactory to the Issuing Bank pursuanhi® §4.10 shall be payable, to the maximum extenmnfited b
applicable Law, to the other Lenders in accordanith the upward adjustments in their respective @itment Percentages allocable to such Letter ofli€
pursuant to 85.14.1(d), with the balance of sueh ifeany, payable to the Issuing Bank for its caatount. The Letter of Credit Fees shall be paygb#eterly ir
arrears on the first day following the end of eaalendar quarter for the quarter just ended, vhighfirst such payment commencing on the first siatie following
the date hereof, and on the Loan Maturity Dateaddition, an issuing fee (the_“ Issuance Feequal to one eighth percent (1/8%) of the Maximuraviing
Amount with respect to each Letter of Credit shellpayable by the applicable Borrower to the Igglank for its account and the applicable Borrostell pay ti
the Issuing Bank any amendment, negotiation or ehect examination and other administrative feesggthby the Issuing Bank in connection with Lettef
Credit as in effect from time to time.

5. CERTAIN GENERAL PROVISIONS .

5.1. Administrative Agent’s Fee. BGI shall pay to the Administrative Agent an Adnsimative Agent’'s fee (the * Administrative AgéntFee”) as se
forth in the Fee Letter.

5.2. Funds for Payments. Except with respect to principal of and interestlaans denominated in an Alternative Currencypalfments of principe
interest, Reimbursement Obligations, Fees and #mr amounts due hereunder or under any of the bthen Documents shall be made on the due datedah&
the Administrative Agent in Dollars, for the respree accounts of the Lenders and the Administrafigent, at the Administrative Agest'Office or at such oth
place that the Administrative Agent may from tinoetime designate, in each case at or about 110 (&astern time or other local time at the platpayment
and in Same Day Funds. Except as otherwise exprpesVided herein, all payments by the Borrowersshieder with respect to principal and interest oan:
denominated in an Alternative Currency shall be entadthe Administrative Agent, for the accounttod tespective Lenders to which such payment is pafethe
applicable Administrative Agent’s Office in suchtédnative Currency and in Same Day Funds
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not later than the Applicable Time specified by #héministrative Agent on the dates specified her&\fithout limiting the generality of the foregointhe
Administrative Agent may require that any paymetis under this Credit Agreement be made in theedrfitates. If, for any reason, any Borrower is jitéd by
any Law from making any required payment hereuirdan Alternative Currency, such Borrower shall makich payment in Dollars in the Dollar Equivalehthe
Alternative Currency payment amount. All paymerisbe made by the Borrowers shall be made free &at of and without condition or deduction for
counterclaim, defense, recoupment or setoff.

5.3. Computations; Retroactive Adjustments of ApplicableMargin .

(a) Except as otherwise expressly provided hereircafiputations of interest, and, the Facility Fee, ltbtter of Credit Fees or other fees sha
based on a 36@ay year and paid for the actual number of daysseld, except that computations based on the Base(&aept to the extent derived fr
the Federal Funds Rate) shall be based on a 38660mas applicable, day year and paid for the hawaber of days elapsed, and computations oféster
respect of Loans denominated in Alternative Curiesas to which market practices differ from theefming, shall be made in accordance with such et
practice. Whenever a payment hereunder or undepofithe other Loan Documents becomes due on alddyig not a Business Day, the due date for
payment shall be extended to the next succeedisgnBss Day, and interest shall accrue during sutgmsion;_providedhat for any Interest Period for &
Eurocurrency Rate Loan if such next succeedingrigssi Day falls in the next succeeding calendar Imonafter the Loan Maturity Date, it shall be dee
to end on the next preceding Business Day.

(b) If, as a result of any restatement of or other stdjient to the financial statements of BGI or itbSdiaries resulting from the error of BGI or
Subsidiaries, including any of their agents or adis, BGI or the Lenders determine that (i) thedrage Ratio as calculated by BGI as of any apdkcdéte
was inaccurate and (ii) a proper calculation ofltbeerage Ratio would have resulted in higher pgdor such period, the Borrowers shall immediately
retroactively be obligated to pay to the Administra Agent for the account of the applicable Lesd@romptly on demand by the Administrative Agea
after the occurrence of an actual or deemed effitay» @rder for relief with respect to the Borrowersler any Debtor Relief Law, automatically andhwiti
further action by the Administrative Agent, any den or the Issuing Bank), an amount equal to tleegxof the amount of interest and fees that shwaule
been paid for the applicable period of such inamcyirover the amount of interest and fees actuallg for such period. This paragraph shall not lithe
rights of the Administrative Agent, any Lender betlssuing Bank, as the case may be, under §8448(c) or 5.10 or under Article 13. The Borrowers’
obligations under this paragraph shall survivetémmination of the Commitments and the repaymeiatlaither Obligations hereunder.

5.4. Inability to Determine Eurocurrency Rate . If in connection with any request for a Eurocurieiitate Loan or a conversion to or continug
thereof, (a) the Administrative Agent or the RegqdilLenders determines that (i) deposits (wheth&dlars or an Alternative Currency) are not beaffered tc
banks in the applicable offshore interbank marketsiich currency for the applicable amount andréstePeriod of such Eurocurrency Rate Loan, orai@quat
and reasonable means do not exist for determiriagEurocurrency Rate for any requested InteresbdPevith respect to a proposed Eurocurrency Ratar
(whether denominated in Dollars or an Alternativ@r@ncy) or in connection with an existing or prepd Base Rate Loan, or (b) the Administrative Agerthe
Required Lenders determine that for any reasoikthiecurrency Rate for any requested Interest Pevittrespect to a proposed Eurocurrency Rate ldmas nc
adequately and fairly reflect the cost to such lezadf funding such Eurocurrency Rate Loan, the izgstrative Agent will promptly so notify the Bomers an
each Lender. Thereafter, (x) the obligation
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of the Lenders to make or maintain EurocurrencyeRatans in the affected currency or currenciesl dfeabuspended, (to the extent of the affected &urenc
Rate Loans or Interest Periods), and (y) in thenewéa determination described in the precedingesee with respect to the Eurocurrency Rate cowpioof the
Base Rate, the utilization of the Eurocurrency Raiaponent in determining the Base Rate shall bpesuded, in each case until the Administrative Agepon thi
instruction of the Required Lenders) revokes sumticae. Upon receipt of such notice, any applicabderower may revoke any pending request for a Bairg of,
conversion to or continuation of Eurocurrency Radans in the affected currency or currencies (@dktent of the affected Eurocurrency Rate Loanisiteres
Periods) or, failing that, will be deemed to havewerted such request into a request for a BorrgpwirBase Rate Loans in the amount specified therei

5.5. lllegality . (1) If any Lender determines that any Law has niadelawful, or that any Governmental Authority resserted that it is unlawful, for &
Lender or its applicable Eurocurrency Lending Gffio make, maintain or fund Loans whose interesteiermined by reference to the Eurocurrency Ratég
determine or charge interest rates based upon uhec&&rency Rate, or any Governmental Authority magosed material restrictions on the authorityso€t
Lender to purchase or sell, or to take depositDollars in the London interbank market, then, atice thereof by such Lender to the Borrowers thtothe
Administrative Agent, (i) any obligation of suchnder to make or continue Eurocurrency Rate Loar® @onvert Base Rate Loans to Eurocurrency Rased
shall be suspended, and (i) if such notice asseetsllegality of such Lender making or maintaimiBase Rate Loans the interest rate on which sriodied b
reference to the Eurocurrency Rate component oB#se Rate, the interest rate on which Base Radad of such Lender shall, if necessary to avoith diegality,
be determined by the Administrative Agent withoeterence to the Eurocurrency Rate component oBtise Rate, in each case until such Lender notifie
Administrative Agent and the Borrowers that thewinstances giving rise to such determination ngdorxist. Upon receipt of such notice, (x) BGllspeepay
or, solely in the case of the Barnes Germany LoBasmes Germany shall prepay or, solely in the cdke Barnes Luxembourg Loans, Barnes Luxembshag
prepay or, solely in the case of the Barnes SwitndrLoans, Barnes Switzerland shall prepay, imemse, upon demand from such Lender (with a copiie
Administrative Agent), or, if applicable, convett Burocurrency Rate Loans of such Lender to Bagt Roans (the interest rate on which Base Rated oasuc
Lender shall, if necessary to avoid such illegaliig determined by the Administrative Agent withoefierence to the Eurocurrency Rate component B
Rate), either on the last day of the Interest Retferefor, if such Lender may lawfully continue rtmaintain such Eurocurrency Rate Loans to such de
immediately, if such Lender may not lawfully contento maintain such Eurocurrency Rate Loans andf(glich notice asserts the illegality of such Lex
determining or charging interest rates based uperturocurrency Rate, the Administrative Agentisthafing the period of such suspension computeBise Rat
applicable to such Lender without reference toEbeocurrency Rate component thereof until the Adstiative is advised in writing by such Lender thids nc
longer illegal for such Lender to determine or geeainterest rates based upon the Eurocurrency Bpt any such prepayment or conversion, the Barswha
also pay accrued interest on the amount so prepaidnverted.

(b) Each Lender may at its option make any Loan toBmyower by causing any domestic or foreign braoclffiliate of such Lender to ma
such Loan; providethat any exercise of such option shall not affeetdbligation of the relevant Borrower to repayhslioan in accordance with the tel
of this Agreement; providedfurther, that notwithstanding which domestic or foreigarmh or Affiliate of such Lender makes such Loaang Borrowel
BGI shall only be required to repay such Loan ® Administrative Agent in the United States of Aioaror the United Kingdom, Barnes Germany ¢
only be required to repay such Loans to the Adrziive Agent in the United States of America, Gany or the United Kingdom, Barnes Luxembc
shall only be required to repay
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such Loans to the Administrative Agent in the Udiif&tates of America, Luxembourg or the United Kioiggl and Barnes Switzerland shall only be reqi
to repay such Loans to the Administrative Agenthia United States of America, Switzerland or theététhKingdom, in each case, otherwise in accorc
with §5.2.

5.6. Additional Costs, Etc. If any Change in Law shall:

(@) impose, modify or deem applicable any reserve,iapdeposit, compulsory loan, insurance chargeimila requirement against assets
deposits with or for the account of, or credit exted or participated in by, any Lender (exceptr@sgrve requirement) or the Issuing Bank;

(b) subject any Lender or the Issuing Bank to any taany kind whatsoever with respect to this Credijrédement, any Letter of Credit, ¢
participation in a Letter of Credit or any Euro@rrcy Rate Loan made by it, or change the basigxattibn of payments to such Lender or the Issuiagk
in respect thereof (except for Indemnified TaxeOther Taxes covered by §5.12 and the impositigroofiny change in the rate of, any Excluded
payable by such Lender or the Issuing Bank); or

(c) impose on any Lender or the Issuing Bank or thedboninterbank market any other condition, costxgrease affecting this Credit Agreem
or Eurocurrency Rate Loans made by such Lendenyt atter of Credit or participation therein;

and the result of any of the foregoing shall béntwease the cost to such Lender of making or ramimg any Loan the interest on which is determihg
reference to the Eurocurrency Rate (or of maintainis obligation to make any such Loan), or ta@ase the cost to such Lender or the Issuing Bé
participating in, issuing or maintaining any LettérCredit (or of maintaining its obligation to piaipate in or to issue any Letter of Credit), orréduce th
amount of any sum received or receivable by suaidée or the Issuing Bank hereunder (whether ofcipal, interest or any other amount) then, t
request of such Lender or the Issuing Bank, thedeers will pay to such Lender or the Issuing Baaskthe case may be, such additional amount or rats
as will compensate such Lender or the Issuing Baslkhe case may be, for such additional costsredwr reduction suffered.

5.7. Capital Adequacy . If any Lender or the Issuing Bank determines that €hange in Law affecting such Lender or the hguBank or an
Eurocurrency Lending Office of such Lender or suemder’s or the Issuing Bardcholding company, if any, regarding capital owldity requirements has
would have the effect of reducing the rate of neton such Lender’s or the Issuing Bank’s capitaborithe capital of such Lender’s or the Issuing Barholding
company, if any, as a consequence of this Credieégent, the Commitments of such Lender or the $@aade by, or participations in Letters of Creditdhby
such Lender, or the Letters of Credit issued byl$baing Bank, to a level below that which suchdemor the Issuing Bank or such Lender’s or thaifgs Banks
holding company could have achieved but for sucar@k in Law (taking into consideration such Lersler the Issuing Ban&’policies and the policies of st
Lender’s or the Issuing Bardcholding company with respect to capital adequamy liquidity) then such Lender or the AdministvatiAgent may notify tr
Borrowers of such fact in writing. To the extenattthe amount of such reduction in the return quitahis not reflected in the Base Rate, BG| agreepay or
solely in the case of the Barnes Germany Loan:id&3aGermany agrees to pay or, solely in the cadeedBarnes Luxembourg Loans, Barnes Luxemboureesgh
pay or, solely in the case of the Barnes Switzerlamans, Barnes Switzerland agrees to pay, suctdrenr (as the case may be) the Administrative Afmmnthe
amount of such reduction in the return on capisadiad when such reduction is determined within @@ df presentation by such Lender or (as the mesebe) th
Administrative Agent
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of a certificate in accordance with §5.8 hereottEbender shall allocate such cost increases ant®rgstomers in good faith and on an equitablésbas

5.8. Certificate . A certificate setting forth any additional amoupgs/able pursuant to 885.6 or 5.7 showing the caficul in reasonable detail, submit
by any Lender or the Administrative Agent to therf8avers, shall be conclusive, absent manifest ethat such amounts are due and owing. The Lend#re
Administrative Agent shall notify the applicable lBower within 180 days after it becomes aware efithposition of such additional amount or amouptsyidec
that if such Lender or the Administrative Agentidaio so notify such Borrower within such 180 daripd, such Lender or the Administrative Agent khat be
entitled to claim any additional amount or amouysissuant to this subsection for any period endin@aate which is prior to 180 days before suclification
(except that, if the Change in Law giving rise tels increased costs or reductions is retroacthven the 180 day period referred to above shallxtended t
include the period of retroactive effect thereof).

5.9. Compensation for Losses Upon demand of any Lender (with a copy to the e&gént) from time to time, the Borrowers shall pratpgompensat
such Lender for and hold such Lender harmless &oynloss, cost or expense incurred by it as atresul

(&) any continuation, conversion, payment or prepayroéminy Loan other than a Base Rate Loan on a tasr than the last day of the Inte
Period for such Loan (whether voluntary, mandatagtpmatic, by reason of acceleration, or otherwise

(b) any failure by the Borrowers (for a reason othantthe failure of such Lender to make a Loan) &pay, borrow, continue or convert any L
other than a Base Rate Loan on the date or inrtteesat notified by the Borrowers;

(c) any assignment of a Eurocurrency Rate Loan on athey than the last day of the Interest Periodefloe as a result of a request by a Borrc
pursuant to §5.11; or

(d) any failure by any Borrower to make payment of angn or drawing under any Letter of Credit (or et due thereon) denominated ir
Alternative Currency on its scheduled due datengrayment thereof in a different currency;

including any loss of anticipated profits, any fgreexchange losses and any loss or expense afisimgthe liquidation or reemployment of funds obéal by it tc
maintain such Loan or from fees payable to termaitaé deposits from which such funds were obtaoreflom the performance of any foreign exchangereat
The Borrowers shall also pay any customary admatise fees charged by such Lender in connectith thie foregoing.

For purposes of calculating amounts payable byBitreowers to the Lenders under this 85.9, each &erball be deemed to have funded each EurocuriRat:
Loan made by it at the Eurocurrency Rate for susanLby a matching deposit or other borrowing inltbadon interbank Eurocurrency market for a comppia
amount and for a comparable period, whether osnoh Eurocurrency Rate Loan was in fact so funded.

5.10. Interest After Default .

5.10.1. Overdue Amounts. Overdue principal and (to the extent permitted pplizable law) interest on the Loans and all othvgrdue amoun
payable hereunder or under any of the other Loacubents shall bear interest compounded monthlypaiydble on demand at a rate per annum eq
two percent (2%) above the rate of interest thepliegble thereto (or, if no rate of interest isrthapplicable thereto, the Base Rate, plus the Agplé
Margin), including any Applicable
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Margin and any Mandatory Cost, until such amouatldse paid in full (after as well as before judagrje

5.10.2. Amounts Not Overdue. During the continuance of a Default or an EvenbDefault the principal of the Loans not overdue khattil suct
Default or Event of Default has been cured or régtedr such Default or Event of Default has beeivegby the Required Lenders pursuant to §16.12
interest compounded monthly and payable on dembaadade per annum equal to two percent (2%) abfoveate of interest then applicable thereto €arp
rate of interest is then applicable thereto, theeBRate, plus the Applicable Margin), including @&pplicable Margin and any Mandatory Cost.

5.11. Mitigation Obligations; Replacement of Lenders.

5.11.1. Designation of a Different Lending Office. If any Lender requests compensation under §85%4ror a Borrower is required to pay
additional amount to any Lender, the Issuing Bamlkany Governmental Authority for the account of &ender or the Issuing Bank pursuant to §5.12f
any Lender gives a notice pursuant to 85.5, theh &ender or the Issuing Bank shall, as applicalde, reasonable efforts to designate a differentling
Office for funding or booking its Loans hereunderto assign its rights and obligations hereundeartother of its offices, branches or affiliates,irif the
judgment of such Lender or the Issuing Bank, swuegigihation or assignment (i) would eliminate orueglamounts payable pursuant to §85.6, 5.7 or &¢
the case may be, in the future, or eliminate thelrfer the notice pursuant to §85.5, as applicatid, (ii) in each case, would not subject such ked the
Issuing Bank, as the case may be, to any unreirabumsst or expense and would not otherwise be whisaageous to such Lender or the Issuing Banke
case may be. The Borrowers hereby agree to pagasdbnable costs and expenses incurred by any iLendlee Issuing Bank in connection with any ¢
designation or assignment.

5.11.2. Replacement of Lenders. If any Lender (an “ Affected Lendé) (a) makes demand upon the Borrowers for (or if ter@®vers ar
otherwise required to pay) amounts pursuant to&8865.7, (b) is unable to make or maintain Eurceney Rate Loans as a result of a condition desdrit
85.5 or (c) is a Defaulting Lender, or if any otleicumstance exists that gives the Borrowers esgright to replace a Lender hereunder, the Boms
may, so long as no Default or Event of Default basurred and is then continuing, within ninety (@@ys of (i) receipt of such demand, notice (oI
occurrence of such other event causing the Bormwebe required to pay such compensation or caugbis to be applicable), or (i) such defaul
circumstance giving the Borrowers such expresd tm@heplace a Lender hereunder, as the case méy Iootice (a “ Replacement Notitein writing to the
Administrative Agent and such Affected Lender @quest the Affected Lender to cooperate with therdeers in obtaining a replacement Ler
satisfactory to the Administrative Agent and the®wers (the “ Replacement Lend®ry (ii) request the noriffected Lenders to acquire and assume ¢
the Affected Lendes Loans and Commitment as provided herein, but mdnguch Lenders shall be under an obligation tosdpor (iii) designate
Replacement Lender approved by the Administratigeert, such approval not to be unreasonably withibeldelayed. If any satisfactory Replacen
Lender shall be obtained, and/or if any one or nurthe non-Affected Lenders shall agree to acqaird assume all of the Affected Lendetoans an
Commitment, then such Affected Lender shall asdsigraccordance with §15, all of its Commitment, heal etter of Credit Participations, Notes and «
rights and obligations under this Credit Agreersmd all other Loan Documents to such Replacememddreor norAffected Lenders, as the case may
in exchange for payment of the principal amounassigned and all interest and fees accrued onntloairst so assigned, plus all other Obligations e
and payable to the Affected Lender; providéwwever, that (A) such assignment shall be without reaaurs
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representation or warranty and shall be on terndscamditions reasonably satisfactory to such A#ddtender and such Replacement Lender and/or non
Affected Lenders, as the case may be, and (B) poi@ny such assignment, the applicable Borrowel stave paid to such Affected Lender all amo
properly demanded and unreimbursed under §85.@ahdJpon the effective date of such assignmeetBrrowers shall issue replacement Notes to
Replacement Lender and/or non-Affected Lendershascase may be, and such institution shall becartieender” for all purposes under this Cre
Agreement and the other Loan Documents.

5.12. Taxes.

5.12.1. Payments Free of Taxes; Obligation to Withhold; Paments on Account of Taxes (1) Any and all payments by or on account of
obligation of any Borrower hereunder or under atlyep Loan Document shall to the extent permittedapplicable Laws be made free and clear ol
without reduction or withholding for any Taxes. fipwever, applicable Laws require any Borrowerhar Administrative Agent to withhold or deduct .
Tax, such Tax shall be withheld or deducted in ed@moce with such Laws as determined by such Bomrowthe Administrative Agent, as the case ma
upon the basis of the information and documentétidre delivered pursuant to subsection (e) below.

(b) If any Borrower or the Administrative Agent shak bequired by the Code to withhold deduct any Taxes, including both United St
Federal backup withholding and withholding taxesnf any payment, then (A) the Administrative Agshall withhold or make such deductions as
determined by the Administrative Agent to be regdibased upon the information and documentatibastreceived pursuant to subsection (e) belowthd
Administrative Agent shall timely pay the full amdwvithheld or deducted to the relevant Governmiehtghority in accordance with the Code, and (C
the extent that the withholding or deduction is mad account of Indemnified Taxes or Other Tax®ssum payable by such Borrower shall be increas
necessary so that after any required withholdinthermaking of all required deductions (includiregddctions applicable to additional sums payableet
this Section) the Administrative Agent, Lender ssuing Bank, as the case may be, receives an arequal to the sum it would have received had nt
withholding or deduction been made.

5.12.2. Payment of Other Taxes by the Borrowers Without limiting the provisions of subsection (djoxe, each Borrower shall timely pay .
Other Taxes to the relevant Governmental Authanitgccordance with applicable Laws.

5.12.3. Tax Indemnifications . (1) Without limiting the provisions of §85.12.1 abd 2.2 above, the Borrowers shall, and do herigiogmnify the
Administrative Agent, each Lender and the IssuilagiB and shall make payment in respect thereofinwit@ days after demand therefor, for the full ant
of any Indemnified Taxes or Other Taxes (includindemnified Taxes or Other Taxes imposed or assenteor attributable to amounts payable undel
Section) withheld or deducted by any Borrower @ Auministrative Agent or paid by the Administratigent, such Lender or the Issuing Bank, as tke
may be, and any penalties, interest and reasoeapknses arising therefrom or with respect thereb@ther or not such Indemnified Taxes or Otheret
were correctly or legally imposed or asserted by thlevant Governmental Authority. Each Borrowenlkkalso, and does hereby, indemnify
Administrative Agent, and shall make payment irpees thereof within 10 days after demand therdémrany amount which a Lender or the Issuing Bam
any reason fails to pay indefeasibly to the Adntiative Agent as required by clause (b) of thissaaion incurred by the Administrative Agent. Atderate
as to the amount of any such payment or liabiléjvetred to the Borrowers by a Lender or the IsgiBank (with a copy to the Administrative Agent),
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or by the Administrative Agent on its own behalfoor behalf of a Lender or the Issuing Bank, shaltbnclusive absent manifest error.

(b)  Without limiting the provisions of §85.12.1 and 3.2 above, each Lender and the Issuing Bank shadl, does hereby, indemnify e.
Borrower and the Administrative Agent, and shalkem@ayment in respect thereof within 10 days afenand therefor, against any and all Taxes an
and all related losses, claims, liabilities, peraltinterest and expenses (including the feesgelaand disbursements of any counsel for the Bem®orthe
Administrative Agent) incurred by or asserted agaguch Borrower or the Administrative Agent by &gvernmental Authority as a result of the failbg
such Lender or the Issuing Bank, as the case may loeliver, or as a result of the inaccuracydeguacy or deficiency of, any documentation reqicebe
delivered by such Lender or the Issuing Bank, ascttse may be, to such Borrower or the Administatigent pursuant to 85.12.5. Each Lender an
Issuing Bank hereby authorizes the Administratigedt to set off and apply any and all amounts gtteme owing to such Lender or the Issuing Banl
the case may be, under this Credit Agreement oro#imgr Loan Document against any amount due tcAtministrative Agent under this clause (b).
agreements in this clause (b) shall survive thigmesion and/or replacement of the AdministrativgeAt, any assignment of rights by, or the replacerog
a Lender or the Issuing Bank, the termination efTiotal Commitments and the repayment, satisfactiatischarge of all other Obligations.

5.12.4. Evidence of Payments Upon request by any Borrower or the Administrathgent, as the case may be, after any payment oésrb)
such Borrower or by the Administrative Agent to e@rnmental Authority as provided in this §5.1ZtsBorrower shall deliver to the Administrative Ad
or the Administrative Agent shall deliver to suchrB®wer, as the case may be, the original or dfieeftcopy of a receipt issued by such Governm:
Authority evidencing such payment, a copy of artynrerequired by law to report such payment or ogwdence of such payment reasonably satisfatt
such Borrower or the Administrative Agent, as taseemay be.

5.12.5. Status of Lenders; Tax Documentation (i) Each Lender shall deliver to the Borrowers amdhe Administrative Agent, at the time
times prescribed by applicable Laws or when redslgn@quested by the Borrowers or the AdministetAgent, such properly completed and exec
documentation prescribed by applicable Laws orheytaxing authorities of any jurisdiction and swther reasonably requested information as will (%
the Borrowers or the Administrative Agent, as theeemay be, to determine (A) whether or not paysnesside hereunder or under any other Loan Doct
are subject to Taxes, (B) if applicable, the reggiirate of withholding or deduction, and (C) su@mders entitlement to any available exemption from
reduction of, applicable Taxes in respect of aljrpants to be made to such Lender by the Borrowersuant to this Credit Agreement or otherwis
establish such Lender’s status for withholdinggarposes in the applicable jurisdiction.

(&) Without limiting the generality of the foregoind a Borrower is resident for tax purposes in thatéthStates,

(i) any Lender that is a “United States persaithin the meaning of Section 7701(a)(30) of thal€shall deliver to such Borrower and
Administrative Agent executed originals of InteriRdvenue Service Form @/or such other documentation or information piiésdt by applicabl
Laws or reasonably requested by such Borrower @Aitiministrative Agent as will enable such Borrowerthe Administrative Agengs the cas
may be, to determine whether or not such Lendsuligect to backup withholding or information refrogtrequirements; and
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(i) each Foreign Lender that is entitled under the Godeny applicable treaty to an exemption fromeatuction of withholding tax wit
respect to payments hereunder or under any oth@n Dmcument shall deliver to such Borrower andAbeninistrative Agent (in such number
copies as shall be requested by the recipienty @mniar to the date on which such Foreign Lendeobees a Lender under this Credit Agreement
from time to time thereafter upon the request @hsBorrower or the Administrative Agent, but onfysuch Foreign Lender is legally entitled to
s0), whichever of the following is applicable:

(A) executed originals of Internal Revenue Service F&WBEN claiming eligibility for benefits of an incontax treaty to which tt
United States is a party,

(B) executed originals of Internal Revenue Service POH8BECI,
(C) executed originals of Internal Revenue Service Fa#8IMY and all required supporting documentation,

(D) inthe case of a Foreign Lender claiming the bésefithe exemption for portfolio interest undeBgg) of the Code, (x) a certificate
the effect that such Foreign Lender is not (A) arily’ within the meaning of §881(c)(3)(A) of the GpdB) a “10 percent shareholdef a
Borrower within the meaning of §881(c)(3)(B) of tBede, or (C) a “controlled foreign corporatiotéscribed in §881(c)(3)(C) of the C«
and (y) executed originals of Internal Revenue BerForm W-8BEN, or

(E) executed originals of any other form prescribedapplicable Laws as a basis for claiming exemptiomfor a reduction in Unite
States Federal withholding tax (including, withéiotitation, prescribed pursuant to FATCA) togetiéth such supplementary documenta
as may be prescribed by applicable Laws to perodh Borrower or the Administrative Agent to detemmithe withholding or deducti
required to be made.

(b) Each Lender shall promptly (A) notify the Borrowensd the Administrative Agent of any change in winstances which would modify
render invalid any claimed exemption or reductemd (B) take such steps as shall not be matedahdvantageous to it, in the reasonable judgmiesual
Lender, and as may be reasonably necessary (ingltié redesignation of its Eurocurrency Lending Office)atmid any requirement of applicable Law
any jurisdiction that the Borrowers or the Admirasive Agent make any withholding or deduction fmxes from amounts payable to such Lender.

5.12.6. Treatment of Certain Refunds. Unless required by applicable Laws, at no timelghal Administrative Agent have any obligation iie
for or otherwise pursue on behalf of a Lender er Idsuing Bank, or have any obligation to pay tg Bender or the Issuing Bank, any refund of Ti
withheld or deducted from funds paid for the acdafrsuch Lender or the Issuing Bank, as the caselme. If the Administrative Agent, any Lender loe
Issuing Bank determines, in its sole discretiont thhas received a refund of any Taxes or Otfexe$ as to which it has been indemnified by anydos
or with respect to which such Borrower has paiditaithl amounts pursuant to this Section, it spayy to such Borrower an amount equal to such re¢
(but only to the extent of indemnity payments madeadditional amounts paid, by such Borrower unlisr Section with respect to the Taxes or Otheetd
giving rise to such refund), net of all outqodcket expenses incurred by the Administrative Agsich Lender or the Issuing Bank, as the casebaagni
without interest (other than any interest paidhmy elevant Governmental Authority with respect to
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such refund), providethat such Borrower, upon the request of the Adrtrimii’e Agent, such Lender or the Issuing Bankeagrto repay the amount
over to such Borrower (plus any penalties, intemgsbther charges imposed by the relevant Govertahéwthority) to the Administrative Agent, st
Lender or the Issuing Bank in the event the Admiiatsze Agent, such Lender or the Issuing Bankeiguired to repay such refund to such Governm
Authority. This subsection shall not be construedejuire the Administrative Agent, any Lenderta tssuing Bank to make available its tax retuomsagy
other information relating to its taxes that it seeconfidential) to any Borrower or any other Parso

5.13. Cash Collateral.

5.13.1. Certain Credit Support Events . Upon the request of the Administrative Agent or Iiguing Bank (i) if the Issuing Bank has honorag
full or partial drawing request under any LetterGyedit and such drawing has resulted in a LetteZredit Borrowing and an Event of Default exigtss
applicable Borrower shall immediately Cash Collalige the then outstanding amount of all LetteCoédit Obligations, or (i) if, as of the Letter Gfedi
Expiration Date with respect to any Letter of Ctediny Letter of Credit Obligation for any reas@mains outstanding, the applicable Borrower
immediately Cash Collateralize the then outstandimpunt of any Letter of Credit Obligations in respof all Letters of Credit expiring on such Letoé
Credit Expiration Date. At any time that there $leaist a Defaulting Lender, immediately upon tegquest of the Administrative Agent, the Issuing Bar
the Swing Line Lender, the Borrowers shall deliteethe Administrative Agent Cash Collateral in ancaint sufficient to cover all Fronting Exposuretét
giving effect to 85.14.1(d) and any Cash Collateralvided by the Defaulting Lender).

5.13.2. Grant of Security Interest . All Cash Collateral (other than credit support nonstituting funds subject to deposit) shall berntzned it
blocked, norinterest bearing deposit accounts with the Admiatste Agent. The Borrowers, and to the extent hed by any Lender, such Lender, hel
grants to (and subjects to the control of) the Adstiative Agent, for the benefit of the Adminigive Agent, the Issuing Bank and the Lenders (idiclg
the Swing Line Lender), and agrees to maintainirst priority security interest in all such caskepdsit accounts and all balances therein, andtladl
property so provided as collateral pursuant hegeid,in all proceeds of the foregoing, all as sector the obligations to which such Cash Collatenay b
applied pursuant to 85.13.3. If at any time the Adstrative Agent determines that Cash Collatesatibject to any right or claim of any Person othar
the Administrative Agent as herein provided, ortttiee total amount of such Cash Collateral is lgwm the applicable Fronting Exposure and ¢
obligations secured thereby, the Borrowers or ¢hevant Defaulting Lender will, promptly upon derdasy the Administrative Agent, pay or provide te
Administrative Agent additional Cash Collaterabim amount sufficient to eliminate such deficiency.

5.13.3. Application . Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contaiirethis Credit Agreement, Cash Collateral provideder any of this §5.:
or 884 or 5.14 in respect of Letters of Credit airy) Line Loans shall be held and applied to thesfection of the specific Letter of Credit Obligais
Swing Line Loans, obligations to fund participasaherein (including, as to Cash Collateral progitly a Defaulting Lender, any interest accrued wf
obligation) and other obligations for which the B&llateral was so provided, prior to any othgsl@ation of such property as may be provided ferein.

5.13.4. Release. Cash Collateral (or the appropriate portion théreodvided to reduce Fronting Exposure or otheigaltions shall be releas
promptly following (i) the elimination of the applible Fronting Exposure or other obligations giviisg thereto (including by the termination
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of Defaulting Lender status of the applicable Len@e, as appropriate, its assignee following caarme with §15.1.1(d)) or (ii) the Administrativeg@nt’s
good faith determination that there exists excesshCCollateral; providedhowever, (x) that Cash Collateral furnished bywrbehalf of a Loan Party sk
not be released during the continuance of a Defaulivent of Default, and (y) the Person provid®gsh Collateral and the Issuing Bank or Swing
Lender, as applicable, may agree that Cash Cadllatdrall not be released but instead held to supjpdure anticipated Fronting Exposure or o
obligations.

5.14. Defaulting Lenders.

5.14.1. Adjustments . Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contairedhis Credit Agreement, if any Lender becomesedaDlting Lende
then, until such time as that Lender is no longBeéaulting Lender, to the extent permitted by agatile Law:

(&) Waivers and AmendmentsThat Defaulting Lendes’ right to approve or disapprove any amendmentyevair consent with respect to 1
Credit Agreement shall be restricted as set fort§1i6.12.

(b) Reallocation of PaymentsAny payment of principal, interest, fees or otherounts received by the Administrative Agent foe ficcount ¢
that Defaulting Lender (whether voluntary or maodat at maturity, pursuant to 813 or otherwise, amduding any amounts made available to
Administrative Agent by that Defaulting Lender pusst to §16.1), shall be applied at such timeroe$ as may be determined by the Administrative £
as followsfirst, to the payment of any amounts owing by that DiéfegiLender to the Administrative Agent hereundscond to the payment on a pro r
basis of any amounts owing by that Defaulting Lerdethe Issuing Bank or Swing Line Lender hereunttérd , if so determined by the Administrat
Agent or requested by the Issuing Bank or Swingelliender, to be held as Cash Collateral for fufuneling obligations of that Defaulting Lender ofy.
participation in any Swing Line Loan or Letter ofe@it; fourth , as the Borrowers may request (so long as no DefalEvent of Default exists), to t
funding of any Loan in respect of which that Defeng Lender has failed to fund its portion therasfrequired by this Credit Agreement, as determiy
the Administrative Agentfifth , if so determined by the Administrative Agent ehd Borrowers, to be held in a narterest bearing deposit account
released in order to satisfy obligations of thafabD#ing Lender to fund Loans under this Credit égmentsixth, to the payment of any amounts owin
the Lenders, the Issuing Bank or Swing Line Leradea result of any judgment of a court of compejtaigdiction obtained by any Lender, the Issuirank
or Swing Line Lender against that Defaulting Lenaeia result of that Defaulting Lender’s breacitbbligations under this Credit Agreemesgyenth sc
long as no Default or Event of Default exists, te payment of any amounts owing to the Borrowera assult of any judgment of a court of compe
jurisdiction obtained by any Borrower against tRefaulting Lender as a result of that Defaultingntler’s breach of its obligations under this Cr
Agreement; aneighth, to that Defaulting Lender or as otherwise dirddig a court of competent jurisdiction; provididt if (X) such payment is a paym
of the principal amount of any Loans or Letter @édit Borrowings in respect of which that Defauitibender has not fully funded its appropriate stzare
(y) such Loans or Letter of Credit Borrowings wenade at a time when the conditions set forth in @&2e satisfied or waived, such payment sha
applied solely to pay the Loans of, and Letter oédt Borrowings owed to, all noDefaulting Lenders on a pro rata basis prior togpeipplied to th
payment of any Loans of, or Letter of Credit Boriogs owed to, that Defaulting Lender. Any paymeptgpayments or other amounts paid or payabl
Defaulting Lender that are applied (or held) to payounts owed by a Defaulting Lender or to poshQ2allateral pursuant
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to this §5.14.1(b) shall be deemed paid to andeetid by that Defaulting Lender, and each Lendevacably consents hereto.

(c) Certain Fees That Defaulting Lender (x) shall be entitled ¢zeive any Facility Fee pursuant to §2.2 for amjopleduring which that Lender
a Defaulting Lender only to extent allocable to suen of (1) the outstanding amount of the Loansléhby it and (2) its Commitment Percentage o
stated amount of Letters of Credit and Swing Limaths for which it has provided Cash Collateral pang to §84, 5.13 or §5.14.1(b), as applicable the
Borrowers shall (A) be required to pay to eachhef issuing Bank and the Swing Line Lender, as epble, the amount of such fee allocable to its fing
Exposure arising from that Defaulting Lender andl Bt be required to pay the remaining amount ehdiee that otherwise would have been requir
have been paid to that Defaulting Lender) andfg)le limited in its right to receive Letter ofedlit Fees as provided in 84.10.

(d) Reallocation of Applicable Percentages to Reducatifrg Exposure During any period in which there is a Defaultingnder, for purposes
computing the amount of the obligation of each Dafaulting Lender to acquire, refinance or fund hsgparticipations in Letters of Credit or Swingné
Loans pursuant to §82, 2.6.2 and 4, the “CommitrRententage” of each ndefaulting Lender shall be computed without givéftect to the Commitme
of that Defaulting Lender; providetat, (i) each such reallocation shall be giveeeatfbnly if, at the date the applicable Lender bees a Defaulting Lendt
no Default or Event of Default exists; and (ii) thggregate obligation of each nDefaulting Lender to acquire, refinance or fund heaparticipations |
Letters of Credit and Swing Line Loans shall noteed the positive difference, if any, of (1) then@oitment of that non-Defaulting Lender min{® the
aggregate outstanding amount of the Loans of teatlr.

5.14.2. Defaulting Lender Cure . If the Borrowers, the Administrative Agent, Swinineé Lender and the Issuing Bank agree in writinghieir
sole discretion that a Defaulting Lender shouldormer be deemed to be a Defaulting Lender, the iAdinative Agent will so notify the parties her¢
whereupon as of the effective date specified imswatice and subject to any conditions set foréren (which may include arrangements with resfeei)
Cash Collateral), that Lender will, to the extepplécable, purchase that portion of outstandingrisoaf the other Lenders or take such other actsnth
Administrative Agent may determine to be necessaause the Loans and funded and unfunded patiiois in Letters of Credit and Swing Line Loan
be held on a pro rata basis by the Lenders in daooe with their Commitment Percentages (withoungieffect to §5.14.1(d)), whereupon that Lendér
cease to be a Defaulting Lender; provideat no adjustments will be made retroactively wihpect to fees accrued or payments made by beloalf of th
Borrowers while that Lender was a Defaulting Lended_provided further, that except to the extent otherwise expresslgexyby the affected parties,
change hereunder from Defaulting Lender to Lend#rocanstitute a waiver or release of any claimaofy party hereunder arising from that Lenddraving
been a Defaulting Lender.

6. GUARANTORS .

6.1. Guaranty by Subsidiaries.

(@) BGI shall cause each of the Significant Subsid&(excluding any foreign Subsidiaries) to execute deliver to the Administrative Agent,
the benefit of the Administrative Agent and the ders, (i) a Guaranty in the form of ExhiBitattached hereto, and (ii) any other instrumentsdoodiment
as the Administrative Agent may reasonably requégether with legal opinions in form and substame@sonably satisfactory to the Administrative Age
be delivered
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to the Administrative Agent and the Lenders opirasgo authorization, validity and enforceabilifysach Guaranties.

(b) To the extent any of BG4’ Subsidiaries agree to provide a guaranty to &tlgeolenders under the Existing Senior Debt oeothdebtedne:
permitted hereunder, BGI, if requested by the Adstiative Agent with 60 days prior written notideyt in no event later than the grant of such ¢
guaranty, will cause each Subsidiary (excluding forgign Subsidiaries) that has agreed to guaranth other Indebtedness to become a Guarar
accordance with (a) above.

6.2. Guaranty by BGI, Barnes Germany, Barnes Luxembourcand Barnes Switzerland.

On or prior to September 27, 2013, (i) BGI shak@xe and deliver to the Administrative Agent, thee benefit of the Administrative Agent and the tlers
the BGI Guaranty in the form of Exhibit attached hereto, (ii) Barnes Luxembourg shall eteeand deliver to the Administrative Agent, for thenefit of th:
Administrative Agent and the Lenders, the Barneselmbourg Guaranty in the form of Exhiltattached hereto, (iii) Barnes Switzerland shallcexe and delive
to the Administrative Agent, for the benefit of tAdministrative Agent and the Lenders, the BarnegZgrland Guaranty in the form of Exhiltit attached heret
(iv) Barnes Germany shall execute and deliver ® Aldministrative Agent, for the benefit of the Admsitrative Agent and the Lenders, the Barnes Gey
Guaranty in the form of Exhibit attached hereto and (v) each of BGI, Barnes Germmagnes Switzerland and Barnes Luxembourg, asaise may be, sh
execute and deliver any other instruments and dentsras the Administrative Agent may reasonablyiregn connection the foregoing guarantees necg$se
the enforceability thereof, together with a legginton in form and substance reasonably satisfgctorthe Administrative Agent to be delivered tee
Administrative Agent and the Lenders opining asutithorization, validity and enforceability of the&SBGuaranty, the Barnes Switzerland Guaranty, then&
Luxembourg Guaranty and the Barnes Germany Guaranty

7. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES .

Each of the Borrowers represents and warrantsethéinders and the Administrative Agent as follows:

7.1. Corporate Authority .

7.1.1. Incorporation; Good Standing . Each of the Borrowers and each of their Subsidia@ is a corporation (or similar business entityly
organized, validly existing and in good standinglemthe laws of its jurisdiction of incorporatiom formation, (b) has all requisite corporate (oe
equivalent company) power to own its property aodduct its business as now conducted and as phkesentemplated, and (c) is in good standing
foreign corporation (or similar business entityjflas duly authorized to do business in each jucismi where such qualification is necessary exeépre
failure to be so qualified would not have a Matefidverse Effect.

7.1.2. Authorization . The execution, delivery and performance of thisd@rAgreement and the other Loan Documents to wiaich of the
Borrowers or any of their Subsidiaries is or isoerome a party and the transactions contemplatebyand thereby (a) are within the corporate Iie
equivalent company) authority of such Person, éyehbeen or will be (prior to becoming a party ¢ty duly authorized by all necessary corporatehe
equivalent company) proceedings, (c) do not andl mat conflict with or result in any breach or cawention of any provision of law, statute, rule
regulation to which any of the Borrowers or anyttadir Subsidiaries is subject or any judgment, Qraeit, injunction, license or permit applicabledny o
the Borrowers or any of their Subsidiaries or aryvjsion of the Governing Documents of the Borrosvand (d) do not conflict
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with any agreement or other instrument binding upog of the Borrowers or any of their Subsidiariescept where any such conflict would not ha
Material Adverse Effect.

7.1.3. Enforceability . The execution and delivery of this Credit Agreemeamd the other Loan Documents to which any of the@®vers or any «
their Subsidiaries is or is to become a party, ugxecution and delivery hereof or thereof, willuksn valid and legally binding obligations of su®erso
enforceable against it in accordance with the reigpeterms and provisions hereof and thereof, jpixae enforceability is limited by bankruptcy, ihemcy
reorganization, moratorium or other laws relatiogt affecting generally the enforcement of craditaghts and except to the extent that availabilityhe
remedy of specific performance or injunctive relgsubject to the discretion of the court befofeol any proceeding therefor may be brought.

7.2.  Governmental Approvals. The execution, delivery and performance by anyhefBorrowers and any of their Subsidiaries of @riedit Agreemet
and the other Loan Documents to which any of ther@®weers or any of their Subsidiaries is or is tedrmae a party and the transactions contemplateene
thereby do not require, on the part of the Borrea@rany such Subsidiary, the approval or conskrdrdiling with, any governmental agency or auihoothel
than those already obtained.

7.3. Title to Properties . Except where the failure to do so would not hawdaterial Adverse Effect and would not violate tkisedit Agreement, tt
Borrowers and their Subsidiaries own all of theetsseflected in the consolidated balance sheBtdfand its Subsidiaries as at the Balance Shett @raacquire
since that date (except property and assets satherwise disposed of in the ordinary course aitess since that date), free from Liens other Brermitted Lien:

7.4. Financial Statements.

7.4.1. Fiscal Year. Except as set forth on Schedule 7.4.1, as of thei@j Date, each of the Borrowers and each of Sefisidiaries has a fisi
year which is the twelve months ending on Decertiesf each calendar year.

7.4.2. Financial Statements. There has been furnished to the Administrative Agerd each Lender a consolidated balance sheeGbfBd it:
Subsidiaries as at the Balance Sheet Date, andsalatated statement of income of BGI and its Siibses for the fiscal year then ended, certifigdte
Accountants. Such balance sheet and statementcomm have been prepared in accordance with GAAPfaing present in all material respects
financial condition of BGI and its Subsidiarieseghe close of business on the date thereof ancesults of operations for the fiscal year theteein Ther
are no contingent liabilities of any of the Borrawer any of their Subsidiaries as of such datelinmg material amounts required to be disclosedeu
GAAP, known to the officers of BGI, which were mi$closed in such balance sheet and the notesdelatreto.

7.5. No Material Adverse Changes, Etc Since the Balance Sheet Date there has been ngelvathe business, properties, assets or finanoraditior
of the Borrowers and their Subsidiaries taken asale which has had a Material Adverse Effect. 8itite Balance Sheet Date the Borrowers have not raay
Restricted Payment that would violate this Credjtéement.

7.6. Franchises, Patents, Copyrights, EtcBGI and each of its Subsidiaries possesses altliiaes, patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade sidinense
and permits, and rights in respect of the foregoampquate for the conduct of its business subaligras now conducted without known conflict wihy rights o
others, which has had, individually or in the aggte with all such other conflicts, a Material Adse Effect.
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7.7. Litigation . There are no actions, suits, proceedings or iryatstins of any kind pending or, to B&lknowledge, threatened against BGI or any «
Subsidiaries before any Governmental Authorityt,tisa far as BGI can now reasonably foresee, coeddonably be expected to have, individually othie
aggregate, a Material Adverse Effect.

7.8. Compliance with Other Instruments, Laws, Etc. Neither BGI nor any of its Subsidiaries is in vidda of any provision of its Governil
Documents, or any agreement or instrument to whicha party or by which it or any of its propegimay be bound or any decree, order, judgment,dtatute
license, rule or regulation, in any of the foregpaases in a manner that could be reasonably fm@echave a Material Adverse Effect.

7.9. Tax Status. Each of BGI and its Subsidiaries (a) has madeled fall federal, material state and material faneigcome and other material
returns, reports and declarations required by arigdiction to which it is subject, (b) has paititakes and other governmental assessments angeshsinown ¢
determined to be due on such returns, reports aedldmtions, except those being contested in gaitidl &nd by appropriate proceedings and (c) haasseéé on it
books provisions reasonably adequate for the payofeil taxes for periods subsequent to the psriodvhich such returns, reports or declaratioqdyad here ar
no unpaid taxes in any material amount claimecetduee by the taxing authority of any jurisdiction.

7.10. No Event of Default. No Default or Event of Default has occurred andastinuing.

7.11. Investment Company Act. None of the Borrowers nor any of their Subsidiaigesr is required to be registered as an “ investrtompany’ unde
the Investment Company Act of 1940.

7.12. Certain Transactions . Except for transactions permitted under §9.11 andsalength transactions pursuant to which BGI or aiys Subsidiarie
makes payments in the ordinary course of businpes terms no less favorable than BGI or such Sidrgidtould obtain from third parties, none of théicers,
directors, or employees of BGI or any of its Sulzsids or Affiliates is presently a party to angrtsaction with BGI or any of its Subsidiaries (ottiean for service
as employees, officers and directors), including @mtract, agreement or other arrangement prayiftinthe furnishing of services to or by, proviglifor rental o
real or personal property to or from, or otherwigguiring payments to or from any officer, directorsuch employee or, to the knowledge of the Boers, an
corporation, partnership, trust or other entityvinich any officer, director, or any such employes b substantial interest or is an officer, dingdtastee or partner.

7.13. Employee Benefit Plans

7.13.1. Each Plan is in compliance in all material respadts the applicable provisions of ERISA, the Caael other Federal or state laws, ex
where such nogempliance could not reasonably be expected toltr@suiability of any Borrower or Subsidiary in aaggregate amount in excess
$20,000,000. Each Pension Plan that is intenddaeta qualified plan under §401(a) of the Code leasived a favorable determination letter from
Internal Revenue Service to the effect that thenfof such Plan is qualified under §401(a) of thel€and the trust related thereto has been detedrbinehe
Internal Revenue Service to be exempt from fedaame tax under §501(a) of the Code, or an appicdor such a letter is currently being procesby
the Internal Revenue Service, or such Pension Blanaintained pursuant to prototype plan documémtsvhich the prototype sponsor has receiv:
favorable Internal Revenue Service opinion lefferthe best knowledge of the Borrowers, nothingdamurred that would prevent or cause the lossicif
tax-qualified status.
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7.13.2. There are no pending or, to the best knowledgdefBorrowers, threatened claims, actions or lawsoit action by any Governmer
Authority, with respect to any Plan that could meably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effidtere has been no prohibited transaction oatiimt
of the fiduciary responsibility rules with respéatany Plan that has resulted or could reasonabBxpected to result in a Material Adverse Effect.

7.13.3. (i) No ERISA Event has occurred, and no Borrowearmy ERISA Affiliate is aware of any fact, eventaircumstance that could reason:
be expected to constitute or result in an ERISAnEwvEth respect to any Pension Plan; (ii) each 8war and each ERISA Affiliate has met all applie
requirements under the Pension Funding Rules pertf each Pension Plan, and no waiver of thenmaim funding standards under the Pension Fur
Rules has been applied for or obtained; (iii) athefmost recent valuation date for any Pension, Rfee funding target attainment percentage (agetkir
8430(d)(2) of the Code) is 60% or higher and nor@eer or any ERISA Affiliate knows of any facts drcumstances that could reasonably be expec
cause the funding target attainment percentagarigrsuch plan to drop below 60% as of the mostntecaluation date; (iv) no Borrower or any ERI
Affiliate has incurred any liability to the PBGChetr than for the payment of premiums, and therenarneremium payments which have become due th
unpaid; (v) no Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate hasgaged in a transaction that could be subjec#®6$ or 84212(c) of ERISA; and (vi) no Pension
has been terminated by the plan administrator ¢fierer by the PBGC, and no event or circumstansedcaurred or exists that could reasonably be ¢gf
to cause the PBGC to institute proceedings undér IM of ERISA to terminate any Pension Plan.

7.13.4. On the Closing Date, no Borrower or any ERISA Adfié maintains or contributes to, or has any usSedi obligation to contribute to,
liability under, any active or terminated PensidanFPother than those listed on SchedulE3.4hereto.

7.14. Use of Proceeds

7.14.1. General. The proceeds of the Loans shall be used to refen#ire Existing Credit Agreement, for working cabitapital expenditures a
general corporate purposes including the acquisitpermitted under §9.5.

7.14.2. Requlations U and X. No portion of any Loan will be used, and no portafnany Letter of Credit will be obtained, for therpose ¢
purchasing or carrying any_“ marggecurity” or “ margin stock” as such terms are used in Regulations U and XeoBtiard of Governors of the Fed:
Reserve System, 12 C.F.R. Parts 221 and 224.

7.15. Environmental Compliance . Except as could not reasonably be expected to adwaterial Adverse Effect:

(@) none of the Borrowers, their Subsidiaries, norrtg Borrower’s nor to any of their Subsidiariésiowledge, any operator of the Real Esta
any operations thereon is in violation, nor, to kmowledge of any of the Borrowers or any of th®irbsidiaries, is there any alleged violation, of
Environmental Laws;

(b) none of the Borrowers nor any of their Subsidialias received notice from any third party includimgthout limitation, any Governmen
Authority, (i) that any one of them has been id#edi by the United States Environmental Protec#gency (“ EPA”) as a potentially responsible pz¢
under CERCLA with respect to a site listed on tlaidhal Priorities List, 40 C.F.R. Part 300
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Appendix B; (ii) that any hazardous waste, as defiby 42 U.S.C. 86903(5), any hazardous substarecdsfined by 42 U.S.C. §9601(14), any polluta
contaminant as defined by 42 U.S.C. §9601(33) andtaxic substances, oil or hazardous materialstber chemicals or substances regulated by
Environmental Laws (* Hazardodubstance$) which any one of them has generated, transportedisposed of has been found at any site at wh
Governmental Authority has conducted or has ordénatlany of the Borrowers or any of their Subgidi conduct a remedial investigation, remov:
other response action pursuant to any Environmésatat or (iii) that it is or shall be a named partyany claim, action, cause of action, complaintiega
or administrative proceeding (in each case, costih@r otherwise) arising out of any third pastyncurrence of costs, expenses, losses or danochges
kind whatsoever in connection with the release afatdous Substances;

(c) (i) no portion of the Real Estate currently ownledsed or operated by any of the Borrowers or dnlyer Subsidiaries, or to the knowledge
any of the Borrowers or any of their Subsidiariesmerly owned, leased or operated has been ugethdéohandling, processing, storage or dispos
Hazardous Substances except in material compliaitbeapplicable Environmental Laws; and no undesgibtank or other underground storage recef
for Hazardous Substances is located on any podfothe Real Estate currently owned, leased or ¢perhy any of the Borrowers or any of ti
Subsidiaries, or to the knowledge of any of therBaers or any of their Subsidiaries, formerly ownlegised or operated; (ii) in the course of anyiets
conducted by any of the Borrowers or any of theibsidiaries or, to the knowledge of any of the Barers or any of their Subsidiaries, by operatorthe
Real Property currently owned, leased or operayeanly of the Borrowers or any of their Subsidiaries Hazardous Substances have been generatee
being used on the Real Estate except in materfaptance with applicable Environmental Laws; (tifere have been no releases (i.e. any past orrgt
releasing, spilling, leaking, pumping, pouring, &mg@, emptying, discharging, injecting, escapidgposing or dumping) or threatened releases oétdiaz:
Substances on, upon, into or from the Real Promentyently owned, leased or to the knowledge of@fre Borrowers or any of their Subsidiaries, rapex
by any of the Borrowers or any of their Subsidisirier, to the knowledge of any of the Borrowersany of their Subsidiaries, formerly owned, lease
operated by any of the Borrowers or any of theipstdiaries; (iv) to the knowledge of any of the Buvers or any of their Subsidiaries there have be
releases on, upon, from or into any real propertyhé vicinity of any of the Real Estate which otigh soil or groundwater contamination, may haveedx
be located on the Real Estate; and (v) in additiory, Hazardous Substances that have been generatet/ of the Real Estate have been transportsie
only by carriers having an identification numbesuisd by the EPA (or the equivalent thereof in amgifin jurisdiction), treated or disposed of oniy
treatment or disposal facilities maintaining vatiermits as required under applicable Environmelnaays, which transporters and facilities have bewd
are, to the knowledge of any of the Borrowers or @fitheir Subsidiaries, operating in complianc#wguch permits and applicable Environmental Laawns

(d) none of the Borrowers nor any of their Subsidiaries any of the Real Estate is subject to anyiepiple Environmental Law requiring 1
performance of Hazardous Substances site assessmettie removal or remediation of Hazardous Suusts, or the giving of notice to any Governme
Authority or the recording or delivery to other Bams of an environmental disclosure document ¢ersant by virtue of the transactions set forth imeagc
contemplated hereby, or to the effectiveness ofadhgr transactions contemplated hereby.

7.16. Subsidiaries, Etc. As of the date of this Credit Agreement, (i) théSidiaries of BGI (direct and indirect) are list Schedul&.16, (ii) except a
set forth on_Schedule7.16hereto, neither BGI nor
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any Subsidiary of BGI is engaged in any joint veatar partnership with any other Person, andti#) jurisdiction of incorporation/formation and meipal place ¢
business of each Subsidiary of BGI is listed oneBdte 7.1éhereto.

7.17. Disclosure. None of this Credit Agreement or any of the otheah Documents contains any untrue statement ofteri@lafact or omits to state
material fact (known to any of the Borrowers or afitheir Subsidiaries in the case of any docuneeribformation not furnished by the Borrowers oy afi theii
Subsidiaries) necessary in order to make the setterein or therein not misleading in lightted tircumstances under which they were made; peadvitht, witt
respect to projected financial information, sucbj@eted financial information was prepared in géaith upon assumptions believed to be reasonalifeeaime, i
being recognized that such projected financialrimfation may materially differ from actual financiaformation and results.

7.18. OFAC . (a) No Borrower, nor any Subsidiary, nor, any dibecofficer, employee, agent, affiliate or repmseive thereof, is an individual or en
currently the subject of any Sanctions, (b) ncarig Borrower or any Subsidiary located, organizedesident in a Designated Jurisdiction or is iolation of an;
Anti-Corruption/Terrorism Law, (c) nor does any Borrowerany Subsidiary have any of its assets in agbeséd Jurisdiction or in the possession, custa
control of a Person Subject to Sanctions in violatof any AntiCorruption/Terrorism Law, (d) does business in dgthwor derives any of its income fr
investments in or transactions with, any Designdtgikdiction or Person subject to Sanctions ifation of any AntiCorruption/Terrorism Law, or (e) engage
any dealings or transactions prohibited by any Airuption/Terrorism Law.

8. AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS

Each of the Borrowers covenants and agrees thdgngpas any Loan, Unpaid Reimbursement Obligatieiter of Credit or Note is outstanding or
Lender has any obligation to make any Loans oAtfministrative Agent has any obligation to issudead or renew any Letters of Credit:

8.1. Punctual Payment. Each of the Borrowers, as applicable, will duly gnehctually pay or cause to be paid the principal mterest on the Loans,
Reimbursement Obligations, the Letter of Creditsr¢lee Facility Fee, the Administrative AgenFee and all other amounts provided for in thisd@rAgreemer
and the other Loan Documents to which BGI or anytofSubsidiaries is a party, all in accordancehwiite terms of this Credit Agreement and such olthvar
Documents.

8.2. Maintenance of Office. BGI will maintain its chief executive office in Bitiol, Connecticut, or at such other place in théddnStates of America
BGI shall designate upon written notice to the Awistrative Agent, where notices, presentationsdamands to or upon BGI in respect of the Loan Danistc
which BGI is a party may be given or made. Barnesi@ny will maintain its chief executive office Mymphenburger Str. 3, 80335 Miinchen, Germany, suet
other place as Barnes Germany shall designate wpitten notice to the Administrative Agent, wheretioes, presentations and demands to or upon E
Germany in respect of the Loan Documents to whiamBs Germany is a party may be given or madejgedthat such notices, presentations and demand:
upon Barnes Germany simultaneously may be givenaate via BGI. Barnes Luxembourg will maintain itset executive office in 102, rue des Maraicher@ 1124
Luxembourg, Granduchy of Luxembourg, or at such other place as &ailruxembourg shall designate upon written noticthé Administrative Agent, whe
notices, presentations and demands to or upon 8&uneembourg in respect of the Loan Documents tichvBarnes Luxembourg is a party may be given aden
providedthat such notices, presentations and demands tpam Barnes Luxembourg simultaneously may be giwemade via BGI. Barnes Switzerland 1
maintain its chief executive office in Teufen, Switland and a branch office in Nevis, West Indiesgt such other place as
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Barnes Switzerland shall designate upon writtericadb the Administrative Agent, where notices,sgrgations and demands to or upon Barnes Switzkeih
respect of the Loan Documents to which Barnes ®&wiénd is a party may be given or made; provitted such notices, presentations and demands tpar
Barnes Switzerland simultaneously may be given adervia BGI.

8.3. Records and Accounts. Each of the Borrowers will (a) keep, and cause excits Subsidiaries to keep, true and accuratertscand books
account in which full, true and correct entrieslvoé made in accordance with GAAP (or the foreigiealent with respect to any Foreign Subsidiarjth
recalculations to GAAP as required to comply wigh4, (b) maintain adequate accounts and reseoved|ftaxes (including income taxes), depreciatepletion
obsolescence and amortization of its propertiestaadroperties of its Subsidiaries, contingencéesl other reserves, and (c) at all times engagédzountant
and will not permit more than thirty (30) days tapse between the cessation of such firm’s (orsamgessor firns) engagement as the independent certified |
accountants of the Borrowers and their Subsidianesthe appointment in such capacity of a succdissoas shall be satisfactory to the AdministratAgent.

8.4. Financial Statements, Certificates and Information. BGI will deliver to the Administrative Agent:

(a) as soon as practicable, but in any event not thser ninety (90) days after the end of each figeal of the Borrowers, the consolidated bal.
sheet of BGI and its Subsidiaries as at the lagtadiauch fiscal year, and the related consolidatatement of income and consolidated statemeoast
flow for such fiscal year, each setting forth immguarative form the figures for the previous fisgar and all such consolidated statements to beagpnabl
detail, prepared in accordance with GAAP (exceptreapiired by a change in GAAP or as concurred tothHey Accountants), and certified, with
qualification and without an expression of uncettaas to the ability of BGI or any of its Subsiiés to continue as going concerns, by the Accausta

(b) as soon as practicable, but in any event not thter sixty (60) days after the end of each of itst three fiscal quarters of each fiscal ye¢
the Borrowers, copies of the unaudited consolidatddnce sheet of BGI and its Subsidiaries aseatai$t day of such quarter, and the related catesek
statement of income and consolidated statemerasif low for the portion of the Borroweifgscal year then elapsed, all in reasonable datuallprepared
accordance with GAAP, together with a certificatlpnthe principal financial or accounting officer BGI that the information contained in such fineat
statements fairly presents the financial positibB@I and its Subsidiaries on the date thereofjeilio the absence of footnotes and year-end toifurss);

(c) simultaneously with the delivery of the financightements referred to in subsections (a) and (byaba statement certified by the princ
financial or accounting officer of BGI in substaaily the form of Exhibit C hereto (a “_ Complianc€ertificate”) and setting forth in reasonable de
computations evidencing compliance with the covénaonntained in §10 and (if applicable) recondiias to reflect changes in GAAP since the Bal
Sheet Date;

(d) contemporaneously with the filing or mailing thefrecopies of all material of a financial natureefil with the Securities and Excha
Commission or sent to the stockholders of any eBbrrowers;

(e) upon request of the Administrative Agent, BGI's aahbusiness plan; and
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(f)  from time to time such other financial data andinfation (including accountantshanagement letters) as the Administrative Agent
reasonably request.

The Administrative Agent will promptly deliver tcaeh Lender via Intralinks or another similar elenic system (the * Platforrt) (or other method «
delivery permitted thereunder) copies of all infatian received by it pursuant to this §8.4.

The Borrowers hereby acknowledge that (i) the Adsniative Agent will make available to Lenders ahé Issuing Bank materials and/or informa
provided by or on behalf of Borrowers hereundefi¢ctively, “ Borrower Materials) by posting Borrower Materials on Intralinks or tRkatform and (ii) certain
the Lenders may be “public-side” Lenders (i.e., dens that do not wish to receive material palic information with respect to the Borrowerstlogir securities
(each, a “_Public Lendel). The Borrowers hereby agree that (w) all Borrowertévials that are to be made available to Publicdees shall be clearly a
conspicuously marked “PUBLIC” which, at a minimugehall mean that the word “PUBLICShall appear prominently on the first page therédf;by marking
Borrower Materials “PUBLIC,the Borrowers shall be deemed to have authorized\tiministrative Agent, the Issuing Bank and thedess to treat such Borrov
Materials as either publicly available informationnot material information (although it may be siéme and proprietary) with respect to the Borresver thei
securities for purposes of United States Federmdlistate securities laws; (y) all Borrower Materialarked “PUBLIC"are permitted to be made available throu
portion of the Platform designated “Public Investaand (z) the Administrative Agent shall be entitiedtreat any Borrower Materials that are not ma
“PUBLIC” as being suitable only for posting on arfian of the Platform not designated “Public Inwest

8.5. Notices.

8.5.1. Defaults . Promptly upon becoming aware of any such event) eithe Borrowers will notify the Administrativeg&nt in writing of th
occurrence of any Default or Event of Default, tihge with a reasonably detailed description theraafl the actions the Borrowers propose to takh
respect thereto. If any Person shall give any eatictake any other action in respect of a claihef@ult (whether or not constituting an Event ofdbudt)
under this Credit Agreement or any other note, @vwie of indebtedness, indenture or other obligatiowhich or with respect to which BGI or any o
Subsidiaries is a party or obligor, whether as gipial, guarantor, surety or otherwise, the Borrawvehall forthwith give written notice thereof toe
Administrative Agent describing the notice or antand the nature of the claimed default.

8.5.2. Notice of Litigation and Judgments. Each of the Borrowers will, and will cause eaclit®Subsidiaries to, give notice to the Administre
Agent in writing within fifteen (15) days of becong aware of (i) any litigation or proceedings thes&d in writing or any pending litigation
proceedings, or (ii) any violation of any Envirormed Law that any of the Borrowers or any of tHeubsidiaries reports in writing or is reportabledugt
Person in writing (or for which any written repstpplemental to any oral report is made) to @oyernmental Authority affecting any of the Borrawei
any of their Subsidiaries, or (iii) any event inialhany of the Borrowers or any of their Subsidiaris or becomes a party involving an uninsuredin
against any of the Borrowers or any of their Sulbsiels_providedhat such matters referred to in clauses (i), ¢ii)(iii) above could reasonably be expe:
to have a Material Adverse Effect on any of therBaers or any of their Subsidiaries, taken as alevtuch notices shall state the nature and stéitsisct
litigation, proceedings, violation or event. Eadhttee Borrowers will, and will cause each of itsbSigliaries to, give notice to the Administrativeehg, ir
writing, in form and detail satisfactory to the Atistrative Agent, within ten (10) days of any judgnt not covered by insurance, final or
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otherwise, against any of the Borrowers or amyheirtSubsidiaries in an amount in excess of $50D,

8.5.3. New Subsidiaries. Each of the Borrowers will, and will cause eachtsfSubsidiaries to, provide the Administrative Agevith writter
notice promptly following any creation or acquisitiof a Subsidiary after the Closing Date.

8.5.4. Restatement or Adjustment of Financial Statements BGI will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries give prompt notice to tl
Administrative Agent of any determination by BGI afneed for a restatement or other adjustmentdditiancial statements of BGI or its Subsidie
referred to in 85.3(b), and BGI shall promptly slefi such restated or adjusted financial statenteritsee Administrative Agent.

The Administrative Agent will promptly deliver t@eh Lender copies of all notices and other infoiomateceived pursuant to this §8.5.

8.6. Leqal Existence; Maintenance of Properties Except as otherwise permitted hereunder, eacheoBthrrowers will do or cause to be done all th
necessary to preserve and keep in full force afedtts legal existence, rights and franchisestande of its Subsidiaries. Each of the Borrowgrwi(l cause all o
its properties and those of its Subsidiaries necgd®r the conduct of its business or the busimésts Subsidiaries to be maintained and keptdodyconditior
repair and working order and supplied with all reseey equipment, (i) will cause to be made allessary repairs, renewals, replacements, betternagi
improvements thereof, all as in the judgment ohsBorrower may be necessary so that such propelitpavable to serve the functions for which theg aurrentl
being used, and (iii) will, and will cause eachitefSubsidiaries to, continue to engage primarilyhie businesses now conducted by them and inagimilrelate
businesses; providdtiat nothing in this 88.6 shall prevent any of Barowers from discontinuing the operation and rteaiance of any of its properties or an
those of its Subsidiaries if such discontinuancéishe judgment of such Borrower, desirable i ¢onduct of its or their business and will nottia aggregate ha
a Material Adverse Effect.

8.7. Insurance . Each of the Borrowers will, and will cause eactlitefSubsidiaries to, maintain with financially sauand reputable insurers insura
with respect to its properties and business agaimsih casualties and contingencies as shall bedor@ance with the general practices of businessgaged i
similar activities in similar geographic areas amcimounts, containing such terms, in such fornd fan such periods as may be reasonable and primlesoict
Borrower’s judgment.

8.8. Taxes. Each of the Borrowers will, and will cause eachitefSubsidiaries to, duly pay and discharge, oseao be paid and discharged, before
same shall become overdue, all taxes, assessnrehtstfeer governmental charges imposed upon it snBRéal Estate, sales and activities, or any perebf, o
upon the income or profits therefrom, as well dslaims for labor, materials, or supplies thatifpaid might by law become a Lien or charge upon afnits
property;_providedhat any such tax, assessment, charge, levy anclaed not be paid if the validity or amount théstall currently be contested in good faitt
appropriate proceedings and if such Borrower ohSubsidiary shall have set aside on its bookswateqeserves or otherwise made appropriate pomgsherefc
as required by GAAP with respect thereto; and mhedfurtherthat each such Borrower and each Subsidiary wyllglhsuch taxes, assessments, charges, lev
claims forthwith upon the commencement of procegslio foreclose any Lien that may have attachexbasrity therefor.
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8.9. Inspection of Properties and Books, Etc

8.9.1. General . Each of the Borrowers shall permit the Lendersouh the Administrative Agent or any of the Lendesther designate
representatives, to visit and inspect any of tloperties of such Borrower or any of its Subsid&rie examine the books of account of such Borramelrit:
Subsidiaries (and to make copies thereof and dxttherefrom), and to discuss the affairs, finarared accounts of such Borrower and its Subsidiavids
and to be advised as to the same by, its anddffeiers, and to conduct examinations and verifareg (whether by internal commercial finance exarsro
independent auditors), all at such reasonable tiames intervals as the Administrative Agent or argndler may reasonably request; providiedt the
Administrative Agent and the Lenders shall not eiser such rights more than two times during angruddr year and the Borrowers shall only be oblid
to pay for one visitation, inspection or examinatif their properties during such calendar yeawidex further that if a Default or Event of Default f
occurred and is continuing, the Administrative Agand the Lenders may do any of the foregoing eguiently as the Administrative Agent and the Leg
deem necessary, in each case at the expenseBdtteevers.

8.9.2. Communications with Accountants. Each of the Borrowers authorizes the Administrafigent and, if accompanied by the Administra
Agent, the Lenders to communicate directly with Aoeountants and authorizes the Accountants tdaisdo the Administrative Agent and the Lenderg
and all financial statements and other supportingnicial documents and schedules including copiiesny management letter with respect to the busi
financial condition and other affairs of such Baves or any of its Subsidiaries. At the requesthef Administrative Agent, such Borrower shall defie
letter addressed to the Accountants instructinmtteecomply with the provisions of this §8.9.2.

8.10. Compliance with Laws, Contracts, Licenses, and Perits . Each of the Borrowers will, and will cause eaclitefSubsidiaries to, comply with
the applicable laws and regulations wherever itsirt@ss is conducted, including all Environmentalvka(b) the provisions of its Governing Documer(es, all
agreements and instruments by which it or any ©fpioperties may be bound and (d) all applicablereds, orders, and judgments except for mattershy
individually or in the aggregate, would not hav®aterial Adverse Effect. If any authorization, ceng approval, permit or license from any officegency c
instrumentality of any government shall become ssagy or required in order that any of the Borr@amrany of their Subsidiaries may fulfill any tf bbligation
hereunder or any of the other Loan Documents tahvhich Borrower or such Subsidiary is a partyhdsorrower will, or (as the case may be) will casset
Subsidiary to, immediately take or cause to bertaltereasonable steps within the power of suchr@®wer or such Subsidiary to obtain such authodzratconsen
approval, permit or license and furnish the Adntmaigve Agent and the Lenders with evidence thereof

8.11. Employee Benefit Plans. Each of the Borrowers will, on behalf of itself ardch of its Subsidiaries, provide to the Admirite Agent fo
delivery to each of the Lenders: (i) promptly upeneipt thereof, copies of any notices or documisstsed (A) pursuant to §8101(f) and (j) of ERISAhwespec
to any Pension Plan or (B) pursuant to §8101(§)p(kL01(l ) of ERISA with respect to any Multiemployer Planat following written request of the Administrag
Agent to do so, any such Borrower or any ERISA Iife shall request from any plan administratoplan sponsor; and (ii) promptly following the ocarrce of a
ERISA Event, written notice thereof.

8.12. Use of ProceedsEach of the Borrowers will use the proceeds ofLth@ns and obtain Letters of Credit solely for thepwses set forth in §7.14.1.
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8.13. Further Assurances. Each of the Borrowers will, and will cause eaclit®fSubsidiaries to, cooperate with the LendersthadAdministrative Agel
and execute such further instruments and docunenthe Lenders or the Administrative Agent shafisomably request to carry out to their satisfactima
transactions contemplated by this Credit Agreeraadtthe other Loan Documents.

9. CERTAIN NEGATIVE COVENANTS

Each of the Borrowers covenants and agrees thdgngpas any Loan, Unpaid Reimbursement Obligatieiter of Credit or Note is outstanding or
Lender has any obligation to make any Loans oAtirministrative Agent has any obligations to issexdend or renew any Letters of Credit:

9.1. Restrictions on Indebtedness None of the Borrowers will, and will not permit any its Subsidiaries to, create, incur, assumerajiae or be
remain liable, contingently or otherwise, with respto any Indebtedness other than:

(a) Indebtedness to the Lenders and the Administr&tgent arising under any of the Loan Documents;

(b) endorsements for collection, deposit or negotiatiod warranties of products or services, in eade ¢acurred in the ordinary course
business;

(c) Indebtedness in respect of any Derivative Contriactise ordinary course of business;

(d) Existing Senior Debt, and refundings, replacementeefinancings thereof;_providetiat no such refunding or refinancing shall shotte
maturity or weighted average life to maturity ocri@ase the principal amount of any of the ExisBegior Debt;

(e) Indebtedness of BGY’ domestic Subsidiaries that are Guarantors nexe¢eed $10,000,000, including such Indebtednesstamding on tF
Closing Date;

(f)  Indebtedness of B&Y foreign Subsidiaries not to exceed in the agdeefm all such foreign Subsidiaries $100,000,0i0@Juding suc
Indebtedness outstanding on the Closing Date kelu@xg Indebtedness under the Loan Documents:igedvhat the Borrowers are in current complie
with and, after giving effect to the proposed imence of Indebtedness, will continue to be in coamgle with all of the covenants in 8§89 and 10 hieasdl
the transaction occurred on the first day of theéogleof measurement;

() Indebtedness of the Borrowers or any Subsidiaryisha Guarantor that constitutes a Synthetic Leasgapitalized Lease or otherwise incu
to finance the acquisition of fixed or capital dss@ther than pursuant to Sale Leaseback Traosacteferred to in §9.1(n), whether pursuant toam
financing lease or otherwise) in an aggregate jpai@mount not to exceed $30,000,000 at any tinistanding;

(h) Indebtedness of the Borrowers or any Subsidiaryishe Guarantor in respect of Subordinated Debt;

(i) Indebtedness of the Borrowers owing to any Subsidid such Borrower that is a Guarantor which ipressly subordinated to the pi
payment in full in cash of all Obligations on terdisclosed to and reasonably acceptable to the @dtrative Agent prior to the incurrence thereof;
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() Indebtedness of a Person outstanding at the tirgefiitst acquired by any of the Borrowers in amasition permitted pursuant to §9.5.1
providedthat any such Indebtedness was not created &tribeof or in contemplation or in anticipation ofchuacquisition;

(k) Indebtedness of any of the Borrowers or any ofrtBebsidiaries which are Guarantors incurred imneation with the issuance of any su
bonds, Performance Letters of Credit or other sinplerformance bonds required pursuant to any @ctot@l Obligation or requirement of law to whicty
of the Borrowers or any of their Subsidiaries whatie Guarantors are subject in an aggregate paheimount not to exceed $15,000,000 at any
outstanding;

() additional Indebtedness of the Borrowers not exioge$i35,000,000 lesany Indebtedness incurred under paragraph (g)gdnegate princip.
amount at any one time outstanding;

(m) Indebtedness of Subsidiaries of the Borrowers whieghGuarantors owing to any other Subsidiarigb®Borrowers which are Guarantor:
to the Borrowers which results from an Investmesrttted under 89.3(g) or (i);

(n) Indebtedness of BGI and its domestic Subsidiarieglware Guarantors incurred in connection witheSat¢aseback Transactions, in
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $25,00080@ny time outstanding;

(0) Indebtedness of BGI and its domestic Subsidiariekhvare Guarantors incurred in connection withoaots receivable securitizations
customary terms or supply chain financing in theirmary course of business which is nonrecoursééoBorrowers in an aggregate amount not to e»
$75,000,000;_providethat the Borrowers are in current compliance witl,aafter giving effect to the proposed incurrenténdebtedness, will continue
be in compliance with all of the covenants in 888l 40 hereof as if the transaction occurred orfitbeday of the period of measurement;

(p) unsecured Indebtedness of BGI and its domesticidialies that are Guarantors in respect of earpayments incurred in connection with .
acquisition permitted under 89.5; providéuht the Borrowers are in current compliance witid,aafter giving effect to the proposed incurremt
Indebtedness, will continue to be in compliancenveill of the covenants in 889 and 10 hereof aldfttansaction occurred on the first day of theogeof
measurement; and

(@) unsecured Indebtedness of BGI and its domesticidiatiss which are Guarantors, including, withomitation, convertible notes, in e
case, on terms no more restrictive than this Crsglieement, and, in respect of convertible notdt) & maturity date later than the Maturity Dgtegvidec
that the Borrowers are in current compliance witl,after giving effect to the proposed incurren€éndebtedness, will continue to be in compliangth
all of the covenants in 889 and 10 hereof as iitaesaction occurred on the first day of the gegbmeasurement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the aggregate amoti(i) Indebtedness of the Borrowers (under paaplgs (j) or (I)) secured by Liens plus (ii) Indebtes
of the Borrowers’'Subsidiaries (under paragraphs (e), (f), (j), fl)(@) shall not exceed fifteen percent (15%) om€alidated Total Assets of the Borrow
determined as of the end of the then most receutiypleted fiscal year of the Borrowers. For theidaoce of doubt, the parties acknowledge and atfrateif
Indebtedness permitted in any subsection of thigi®@e9.1 is permitted to be incurred by BGI andday of its Subsidiaries, and BGI guarantees thigations o
any Subsidiary in respect of such IndebtednesB@&ieGuaranty shall not increase the amount of elgness deemed incurred under such subsection.
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9.2. Restrictions on Liens.

9.2.1. Permitted Liens . None of the Borrowers will, nor will permit any it Subsidiaries to, (a) create or incur or suffebe created or incurr
or to exist any Lien upon any of its property osets of any character whether now owned or hereadguired, or upon the income or profits therefr¢n)
transfer any of such property or assets or thenmceor profits therefrom for the purpose of subjegtthe same to the payment of Indebtedne
performance of any other obligation in prioritygayment of its general creditors; (c) acquire, gnea or have an option to acquire, any propertgsset
upon conditional sale or other title retention arghase money security agreement, device or amaege (d) suffer to exist for a period of more thhinty
(30) days after the same shall have been incumgdirrdebtedness or claim or demand against it ifhahpaid might by law or upon bankruptcy
insolvency, or otherwise, be given any priority wgueever over its general creditors;(ej sell, assign, pledge or otherwise transferracgivables with
without recourse; providetthat any of the Borrowers or any of their Subsidsmay create or incur or suffer to be createidarrred or to exist:

(i) Liens to secure taxes, assessments and other gozetricharges in respect of obligations not oventugens to secure claims for lak
material or supplies in respect of obligations exxrdue;

(i)  deposits or pledges made in connection with, oseoure payment of, workmentompensation, unemployment insurance, olc
pensions or other social security obligations;

(i) Liens on properties in respect of judgments or d&dinat have been in force for less than the agigicperiod for taking an appeal
long as execution is not levied thereunder or 8peet of which such Borrower or such Subsidianil sttghe time in good faith be prosecutinc
appeal or proceedings for review and in respeettoth a stay of execution shall have been obtapesttling such appeal or review;

(iv) Liens of carriers, warehousemen, mechanics andriaaten, and other like Liens on properties in gtise less than 180 days from
date of creation thereof in respect of obligatinosoverdue;

(v) encumbrances on Real Estate consisting of easemightts of way, zoning restrictions, restrictions the use of real property ¢
defects and irregularities in the title theretmdiord’s or lessor’s liens and other minor Liensovided that none of such Liens (A) interfe
materially with the use of the property affectedtie ordinary conduct of the business of such Beeroor its Subsidiaries, and (B) individually o
the aggregate have a Material Adverse Effect;

(vi) Liens securing Indebtedness permitted under §9.1(g)
(vii)  Liens on assets that are the subject of Sale Laakéliransactions permitted under §9.1(n);
(viii)  Other Liens in existence on the Closing Date astédiin_Schedul.2;

(ix) Liens securing acquired indebtedness under 89¢k(yided that such Liens secured such Indebtedméssto the related acquisitic
and are not spread to cover any
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additional assets or Indebtedness, and are navlation of the penultimate sentence of §9.1; and
(x) Other Liens in an aggregate principal amount nexeed $25,000,000 at any time outstanding.

Each of the Borrowers covenants and agrees thatyifof its Subsidiaries shall create or assumelagy upon any of its respective properties or as
whether now owned or hereafter acquired, other Pemmitted Liens (unless prior written consent Ishate been obtained from the Lenders), such Baromll
make or cause to be made effective provision wihyetied Obligations will be secured by such Lien diguand ratably with any and all other Indebtednéeseb
secured so long as such other Indebtedness shadl becured. The covenants of each of the Borroemrtined herein shall only be in effect for sogas suc
Borrower shall be similarly obligated under any estlindebtedness. An Event of Default shall occurdo long as such other Indebtedness becomes d
notwithstanding any actions taken by any of ther@oers to ratably secure the Obligations hereunder.

9.2.2. Restrictions on Negative Pledges and Upstream Lingtions . None of the Borrowers will, nor will permit any @6 Subsidiaries to (
enter into or permit to exist any arrangement aeagent (excluding the Credit Agreement and therottoban Documents) which directly or indirec
prohibits such Borrower or any of its Subsidiafiesn creating, assuming or incurring any Lien uftsrproperties, revenues or assets or those obhiig
Subsidiaries whether now owned or hereafter acduive (b) enter into any agreement, contract caragement (excluding the Credit Agreement ant
other Loan Documents) restricting the ability of 8ubsidiary of such Borrower to pay or make dinidie or distributions in cash or kind to such Boreo,
to make loans, advances or other payments of wénagsmature to such Borrower, or to make transiedistributions of all or any part of its asseisstcl
Borrower; in each case other than (i) restrictionsspecific assets which assets are the subjgmirchase money security interests to the extemhigec
under 89.2.1, (ii) customary argtssignment provisions contained in leases anddingragreements entered into by such Borrower cn Subsidiary in tr
ordinary course of its business and (iii) any nizgapledges granted in the Existing Senior Debt.

9.3. Restrictions on Investments None of the Borrowers will, nor will permit any i Subsidiaries to, make or permit to exist oremain outstandir
any Investment except Investments in:

(@) marketable direct or guaranteed obligations of Wimted States of America or Canada, or marketabl@gations of any instrumentality
agency thereof, the payment of the principal ater@st of which is unconditionally guaranteed l® thnited States of America or Canada;

(b) certificates of deposit or other obligations issbgdor bankersacceptances of, any bank or trust company organinddr the laws of Braz
Singapore, the Federal Republic of Germany, FraheeUnited Kingdom, Japan, Canada or the UnitedeStof America or any state thereof (inclur
foreign branches of any such bank or trust compangi)having capital, surplus and undivided prafitexcess of $100,000,000;

(c) securities commonly known as_* commercial papéssued by a corporation organized and existing wttte laws of the United States
America or any state thereof with a maturity noextess of 270 days from the date of acquisitienetf and that at the time of purchase have beed e
the ratings for which are not less than “P 2” teaby Moody’s, and not less than “A 2" if rated 8&P;
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(d) In the case of any foreign Subsidiary, but onlyhwiéspect to countries in which such Subsidiargtexisuch Investments of a compar
quality and term to the other Investments permibbgdlauses (a), (b) and (c) of this 89.3 as auallismade in the jurisdiction or jurisdictionswhich the
business of such foreign Subsidiary is principatimducted by prudent corporate investors in likeurnstances;

(e) Investments (including debt obligations and capdtaick) received in connection with the bankrupteyreorganization of suppliers &
customers and in settlement of delinquent obligetiof, and other disputes with, customers and grggrising in the ordinary course of business;

(f) Investments existing on the date hereof in Subisétinand other Investments existing on the datediend listed on Schedul®.3hereto;

(g) Investments by BGI in Subsidiaries, including strovestments existing on the date hereof, not teeddn the aggregate fifteen percent (1
of Consolidated Total Assets; provid#tat the above limitation shall not apply with respto (x) Investments made in order to effect &itjons permitte
under 8§9.5 or (y) Investments in Barnes Germanyn&alLuxembourg or Barnes Switzerland or (z) Inwesits in Guarantors; and providedther tha
notwithstanding any provision set forth in this3% the contrary, Investments in the Luxembourbs8liaries other than Barnes Luxembourg, other
amounts being held for application to the accotid®l, Barnes Germany, Barnes Luxembourg or Bawetzerland, shall be limited to $100,000;

(h) Investments consisting of permitted acquisitiondesr§9.5;
(i) (A) Investments by Subsidiaries of BGI in BGI, pidedthat any Investment by Subsidiaries in BGl musabequity Investment or expres
subordinated to the prior payment in full in castaib Obligations on terms disclosed to and reabfnacceptable to the Administrative Agent priortia

incurrence thereof; and (B) Investments by Subs&bizof BGI in other Subsidiaries of BGI;

() Investments consisting of loans and advances tdog®s for moving, entertainment, travel and o#ietilar expenses in the ordinary cours
business not to exceed $2,000,000 in the aggregaigy time outstanding;

(k) Investments in joint ventures; providetht the operation to be invested in is in a sindlarelated business and providadherthat after givin
effect to such joint venture, the Borrowers shalifbcompliance, on a pro forma historical basith all financial covenants;

()  Investments arising from payments under the BGlréng, Barnes Germany Guaranty, Barnes Luxembouwar&dty, Barnes Switzerla
Guaranty or any Guaranty executed and deliveresujaumt to 6.1 of this Credit Agreement;

(m) Investments by BGI in Capital Stock of any Persoan aggregate amount not to exceed $30,000,0880ding at any time;
(n) Investments in respect of Restricted Payments peapursuant to §9.4; and

(0) Investments by BGI arising from the repurchaseomversion of Subordinated Debt in compliance wB§
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9.4. Restricted Payments. None of the Borrowers will, nor will permit any tfeir Subsidiaries to make any Restricted Paymexdept that (i) pursua
to §9.3(0), BGI may issue its Capital Stock or maksh payments upon the repayment or conversioapg@able, of Subordinated Debt in accordancé it
applicable subordination provisions of the writiaatruments evidencing such Subordinated Debt ando( long as no Default or Event of Default thexists o
would result from such payment, any of the Borraveay (a) declare or pay any dividends, or (b) eadeconvert, retire or otherwise acquire sharemgfclass ¢
its Capital Stock; providethat with respect to clause (ii) of the foregoitaking into account such Restricted Payment, thtalT@ommitment minughe sum of th
Maximum Drawing Amount and all Unpaid Reimbursem@hbligations shall exceed the outstanding amourttoains by $10,000,000 as of the date on whic
Restricted Payment is made. Notwithstanding thev@bany Subsidiary may make Distributions to therBeers and each of the Borrowers agrees thaterestirc|
Borrower nor any Subsidiary will enter into any egment restricting Distributions from such Subsidia such Borrower.

9.5. Merger, Consolidation and Disposition of Assets

9.5.1. Mergers and Acquisitions . None of the Borrowers will, nor will permit any d@fs Subsidiaries to, become a party to any me
amalgamation or consolidation, or agree to or éfé@y asset acquisition or stock acquisition (othan the acquisition of assets in the ordinaryrsew
business consistent with past practices) excepnérger or consolidation of, or asset or stock mitipns between existing Subsidiaries, mergersxidting
Subsidiaries with and into any of the Borrowers] asset or stock acquisitions by any of the Borreveé the stock or assets of existing Subsidiades
except as otherwise provided in this 89.5.1. The®weers may purchase or otherwise acquire all bstntially all of the assets or stock or otheritst
interests of any other Person provided that

(@) the Borrowers are in current compliance with ariding effect to the proposed acquisition (includiagy borrowings made or to be mad
connection therewith), will continue to be in compke with all of the covenants in 89 hereof ahéf transaction occurred on the first day of theopleot
measurement;_providetthat, to the extent such acquisition will be in@ddas an Acquired Business, the Administrative Agdmall have received
Officer’s Certificate certifying compliance with 8.1-10.3 on a pro forma historical combined basis gbéftransaction occurred on the first day of
period of measurement and the related documentsitiowing the estimated calculations (subject toadjystments) made in determination thereof;

(b) at the time of such acquisition, no Default or BvehDefault has occurred and is continuing, anchsacquisition will not otherwise creat
Default or an Event of Default hereunder;

(c) the business to be acquired is similar to the mssitonducted by BGlI, or businesses reasonabtgdata incidental thereto;

(d) not later than seven (7) days prior to the prop@seglisition date, notice of any proposed acquisitiith an aggregate consideration (inclu
assumption of indebtedness) of more than $30,0000@ether with all information reasonably reqedsby the Administrative Agent with respect to ¢
acquisition (including without limitation, histoatfinancial statements and due diligence summesieall have been furnished to the AdministratigeAt;

(e) the board of directors and (if required by appliedhw) the shareholders, or the equivalent theraiothe business to be acquired has appt
such acquisition;
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(f) if such acquisition is made by a merger, BGI (ertelly-owned Subsidiary of BGI) shall be the suimiy entity; and

(g) the total consideration to be paid in connectiothvany acquisition or series of related acquisgjdn the form of cash and assumption of
with respect to any such acquisition or seriesetdted acquisitions, shall not exceed $400,000v@ifiibut the consent of the Administrative Agent dhe
Required Lenders.

9.5.2. Disposition of Assets None of the Borrowers will, nor will permit any @ Subsidiaries to, become a party to or agreer teffect an
disposition of assets, other than transfers oftagsdween such Borrower and Subsidiaries of sustoBrer that would be permitted Investments un@e8.
transfers of assets from a Subsidiary of such Beerdo another Subsidiary of such Borrower, the sdlinventory or discounted receivables, the s
receivables in connection with accounts receivaleuritizations permitted under 9.1(0), the licegsdf intellectual property, leases of property dine
disposition of obsolete assets, in each case inrtli@ary course of business consistent with pesttizes; provided however, that in any fiscal year, t
Borrowers may dispose of up to ten percent (10%itsofConsolidated Total Assets (calculated as ef tibst recent quarter end prior to any prop
disposition) in the aggregate, based on the faiketasalue or book value, of such assets being @otitherwise disposed of, whichever is greater.

9.6. Sale and Leaseback BGI will not, and will not permit any of its doméstSubsidiaries to, enter into any Sale LeasebaekSaction, except to t
extent the Indebtedness incurred in connection siitth Sale Leaseback Transaction and any relagedispermitted under §89.1(n) and 9.2.1(vii).

9.7. Compliance with Environmental Laws . Except to the extent required by the dayd&y operations of each of the Borrowers and itssBlidries, an
in all instances in compliance in all material s with all applicable Environmental Laws, nofi¢ghe Borrowers will knowingly, and will not knowgty permi
any of its Subsidiaries to, (a) use any of the FResthte or any portion thereof for the handlingcpssing, storage or disposal of Hazardous Sulesta(it) cause
permit to be located on any of the Real Estateumderground tank or other underground storage tackepfor Hazardous Substances, (c) generate angréiau
Substances on any of the Real Estate, or (d) coraycactivity at any Real Estate or use any Ra#htE in any manner so as to cause a releasee(easing
spilling, leaking, pumping, pouring, emitting, eryipy, discharging, injecting, escaping, leachingspdsing or dumping) or threatened release of Hima
Substances on, upon or into the Real Estate.

9.8. Business Activities. None of the Borrowers will, nor will permit any $ Subsidiaries to, engage directly or indire¢tirether through Subsidiar
or otherwise) in any type of business other thanbilisinesses conducted by them on the Closingdbattén similar or related businesses.

9.9. Fiscal Year. None of the Borrowers will, nor will permit any @§ Subsidiaries to, change the date of the eritbdiscal year from that set forth
§7.4.1.

9.10. Transactions with Affiliates . None of the Borrowers will, nor will permit any @§ Subsidiaries to, engage in any transactionggixtransactior
which in any one calendar year do not involve i dlggregate an amount in excess of $500,000) wittAiliate (other than for services as employesfficers ani
directors), including any contract, agreement beoarrangement providing for the furnishing ofveegs to or by, providing for rental of real or penal property 1
or from, or otherwise requiring payments to or frany such Affiliate or, to the knowledge of suchri®ever, any corporation, partnership, trust or otetity ir
which any such Affiliate has a substantial intexsis an officer, director, trustee or
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partner, on terms more favorable to such Persanwloauld have been obtainable on an arm’s-lengtis iashe ordinary course of business.

9.11. Optional Payment of Subordinated Debt. None of the Borrowers will, nor permit any of th&ubsidiaries to make any Optional Subordin
Payment, unless (i) no Default or Event of Defalnétn exists or would result from such Optional Sdbwted Payment and (ii) taking into account sOghiona
Subordinated Payment, the Total Commitment mithes sum of the Maximum Drawing Amount and all Umh&eimbursement Obligations shall exceec
outstanding amount of Loans by $10,000,000 asefitie on which such Optional Subordinated Payfsenade.

9.12. Sanctions; Anti-Corruption/Terrorism Laws . (1) None of the Borrowers will, nor permit any bétr Subsidiaries to, directly or indirectly, usegy
Loans or the proceeds of any Loans, or lend, dauttior otherwise make available such Loans optbeeeds of any Loans to any Person, to fund atiyitées of
or business with any Person, or in any Designateddiction, that, at the time of such fundingthie subject of Sanctions, or in any other mannarwhil result in
violation by any Person of Sanctions.

(b) None of the Borrowers shall be, nor permit anyhefit Subsidiaries to be (i) a Person with whom kegder is restricted from doing busin
under Executive Order No. 13224 or any other &grruption/Terrorism Law, (ii) engaged in any besis involved in making or receiving any contribo
of funds, goods or services to or for the bendfisuch a Person or in any transaction that evadesaids, or has the purpose of evading or avojdine
prohibitions set forth in any Anti-Corruption/Teriem Law, or (iii) otherwise in violation of any ArCorruption/Terrorism Law. The Borrowers sl
provide to the Lenders any certifications or infatian that a Lender reasonably requests to confiompliance by the Borrowers with Anti-
Corruption/Terrorism Laws.

10. FINANCIAL COVENANTS .

Each of the Borrowers covenants and agrees thdgngpas any Loan, Unpaid Reimbursement Obligatieiter of Credit or Note is outstanding or
Lender has any obligation to make any Loans oAtfministrative Agent has any obligation to issudead or renew any Letters of Credit:

10.1. Interest Coverage. As of the end of any fiscal quarter, the Borroweils not permit the ratio of (a) Consolidated EBIADo (b) Consolidated Ca
Interest Expense for the four (4) consecutive figoarters then ending to be less than 4.25:1.

10.2. Leverage Ratio. As of the end of any fiscal quarter, the Borroweits not permit the ratio of Consolidated Total D€bxcluding, for purposes
calculation of the Leverage Ratio, reverse interag swap contracts) as at such date to ConsetidaBITDA for the four (4) consecutive fiscal quas the|
ending (the “_Leverage Ratf) to be more than 4.00:1; providetlat at the end of each of the first four fiscabdars ending after the consummation o
acquisition permitted under §9.5.1 with an aggregamsideration in excess of $150,000,000, thedB@rs will not permit the Levera